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Five Years’ Financial Summary

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

—E-E2F —E-NF ZTE-NF ZE—tF T F
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
THERT FTHAT FHT TAET THL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
WA Revenue 552,880 201,541 68,350 1,682,786 45,806
KATEHBAEERF]  Profit attributable to the
owners of the Company 47,696 572,899 606,619 440,660 315,348
g Dividends 135,910 129,348 115,908 90,435 66,233
BREFN (ET) Earnings per share (HK$) 0.08 0.99 1.10 0.86 0.64
BRES (BT Dividends per share (HK$) 0.22 0.22 0.20 0.17 0.13
BFRIESLE () Dividend cover (time) 0.36 4.50 5.50 5.06 4.92
BENMNAE Assets and liabilities
BIEEE (fit () Fixed assets (Note (a)) 7,127,240 7,698,535 7,132,876 5,676,053 5,582,149
HthERBEE Other non-current assets 201,472 187,652 182,030 145,437 39,515
MBEEFE Net current assets 655,203 402,637 553,436 1,537,156 1,271,036
FREBEE Non-current liabilities (1,251,999) (1,459,115)  (1,325,913)  (1,592,942)  (1,591,690)
BEESE Net assets 6,731,916 6,829,709 6,542,429 5,765,704 5,301,010
BREEFE(ET)  Netassets per share (HKS) 10.52 11.47 11.48 10.85 10.58
Kt - Note:

(a BEEEEBREEEME WX HEKFE (a) Fixed assets include investment properties and property, plant

i e and equipment.

% 2 ) CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = (£M)&R27 | Annual Report 2020 4
@



REERARFETIR_ZE_TF+—A++L
HEH-_TF=RREFTEEF BEE18
RHIRESISBETRRBFRE  B&

THI=EIR

(HRBEE_ZT_ZFXA=THILFE
ZHRBMNESSEZHEMBREE

(D)EIRARHRE.

(Z)ERBEFREBETEMNE

(M E=HEREEEME

(AFHFRERENBBESE NIERSE

o o e
FORFER

BB

(i)

(iii)

R XEGNE 2 RSB T - =
R EGREERAREES
REBMETEARRE]Z—1]
N BRARBRAS 2K

OR

EXEGEIFTI A2 F R - A
MR ARREEFGEFZH
EARE  THERESES
REBHRRERARREITH
RRARNEFEEERELZ
B 2 BRI R A S 2 i

(N

AR RIRYE B XA 2 #HE &
R ERED 2 KRR I E{E
RE - B TEBBAARAR DT
RAEERERD 2T

REBEXEES
Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General
Meeting will be held at 35/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Tuesday, the 17 day of
November 2020 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 30 June, 2020;

2. To declare final dividend;
3. To elect Directors and fix their remuneration;
4. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration; and

5. As special business to consider and if thought fit, pass
the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

A. That:

(i) subject to paragraph (iii) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period of
all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares in the capital of the Company be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

(ii) the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the Company to
repurchase its own shares at a price per share

determined by the Directors at their discretion;

(iii) the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company which the Company
is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (i) above shall not
exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue;
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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(iv) for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the

passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(@)

the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.
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REBEXEES
Notice of Annual General Meeting

B. THAT:

(i)

(if)

following any repurchase of shares in the
capital of the Company pursuant to the
authorisation conferred on the Directors under
Ordinary Resolution A above, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to allot
additional shares in the Company, and to make
offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power, equivalent
to the number of shares so repurchased be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the company to
allot or make offers, agreements and options
to allot additional shares which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;

(iii) for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;
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BRRBEXERES
Notice of Annual General Meeting

(b) ANRBRBEDITELRTT (b) the expiration of the period within which
Z TERRAFEXg R the next Annual General Meeting of the
fEaimz B & Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) BMERERRBAFARKE L (c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
T BORHE RIS B R by ordinary resolution of the shareholders
IR o in general meeting.

W B C. THAT:

(i) ETRXEGNEZREIT &2 (i) subject to paragraph (iii) below, pursuant to
| R EGGERATREA section 141 of the Companies Ordinance,
ARG R 141N B B A the exercise by the Directors of the Company
BB BT8R 1D - W7 A] ¢ 1 sk B during the Relevant Period of all the powers of
R BITEIEE D2 BEHE the Company to allot additional shares and to
& ham M B make or grant offers, agreements and options

which might require the exercise of such power

be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

(i) 358D Z BL 4 AT B AN AR (ii) the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be
NAEESES Z(EMEM in addition to any other authorisation given
RiE - WREANRFESFTSA to the Directors of the Company and shall
B BEBRELHSETHAR authorise the Directors of the Company during
BRABBAEITE LiEH 2 the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
BRI - s R agreements and options which might require

the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;
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REBEXEES
Notice of Annual General Meeting

) RRBIEEGMKRE X FEG)ED (iii) the aggregate nominal amount of share
HEE T B 3% 2[R B A IR S capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
R AL 2 R A EEARE (B unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors
FCEF IS AT RBIAERE Z of the Company pursuant to the approval in
REBREFTEITERIN TEE paragraph (i) above, otherwise than pursuant
MARNR ZBEITRANEESLT to a rights issue or on the exercise of the
BHoz=-1: & subscription rights under any warrants, shall

not exceed the aggregate of 20 per cent of the
aggregate amount of the issued share capital of

the Company; and

AR ZEMES - (iv) for the purpose of this Resolution:

[BRAHME | fE R AR R AR “Relevant Period” means the period from the

ZBETIN=F22RFHEBIE passing of this Resolution until whichever is

2 HR the earliest of:

(@) BBTORZR ZIEFTET (a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
ZERXRRBFERNGHE Meeting of the Company following the
REF - ZIARES KR passing of this Resolution at which time it
BRIEFEZ A MB T @R shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
BEBTRBRZEER passed at that meeting, the authorisation
B (N om B B IR - conferred by this Resolution is renewed,

either unconditionally or subject to
conditions;

(b) ARFRBOEGIMALETT (b) the expiration of the period within which
Z NERRBEFKSHR the next Annual General Meeting of the
feimz B ¢+ R Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) BMEERERFARE LI (c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
TR 5 R SR R by ordinary resolution of the shareholders
R o in general meeting.
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REBFXERSE
Notice of Annual General Meeting
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“Rights issue” means an offer of shares open
for a period fixed by the Directors to holders
of shares on the register on a fixed record date
in proportion to their then holdings of such
shares (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors of the Company
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange in any territory

outside Hong Kong).

By Order of the Board
Ho Sau Fun Connie

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29 September 2020

Registered Office:
Suite 4901, 49/F
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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REBEXEES
Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notes:

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the above
meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company but must be present in person to represent the

member.

Where there are joint registered holders of any shares, any
one of such persons may attend and vote at the Meeting,
either personally or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if
he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the Meeting personally or by proxy,
that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first
on the register of members of the Company in respect of such

shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed on it
together with the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
of it must be deposited at the office of the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd.,
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding of the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof. The completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the

Meeting or any adjournment thereof if you so wish.

The purpose of Ordinary Resolution 5A of this Notice is to
seek approval from shareholders for a general mandate to

repurchase shares in the Company.

Concerning Ordinary Resolutions 5B and 5C of this Notice,
the Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans
to issue any new shares of the Company; approval is being
sought from members as a general mandate in compliance

with the Listing Rules.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES FOR THE AGM

1.

In light of the epidemic situation of COVID-19, the

Company will implement the following precautionary

measures at the AGM to protect attending shareholders,

staff and stakeholders from the risk of infection:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Compulsory body temperature checks will be
conducted for every shareholder or proxy at the
entrance to the AGM venue. Any person with a
body temperature of 37.5 degrees Censius or above

will not be given access to the AGM venue.

All attendees will be required to wear surgical face
masks (self-supplied) before they are permitted to
attend, and during their attendance of, the AGM.
Attendees are advised to maintain appropriate
social distance with each other at all times when
attending the AGM. Seating at the AGM venue will

be arranged accordingly.

Attendees may be asked if (i) he/she is subject to
any HKSAR Government prescribed quarantine
requirement; (ii) he/she has travelled outside Hong
Kong within 14 days immediately before the AGM
(“recent travel history”); and (iii) he/she has had
close contact with any person under quarantine
or with recent travel history. Any person who
responds positively to any of these questions will
be denied entry into the AGM venue or be required
to promptly leave the AGM venue.

Any attendee who declines any of the
abovementioned measures will be refused

admission to the AGM venue.
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REBEXEES
Notice of Annual General Meeting

(v) No refreshments will be served, and there will be

no corporate gifts.

(vi) Anyone attending the AGM is reminded to observe

good personal hygiene at all times.
(vii) Hand sanitizing medical will be distributed.

Shareholders are requested (a) to consider carefully
the risk of attending the AGM, which will be held in
an enclosed environment, (b) to follow any guidelines
or requirements of the HKSAR Government relating
to COVID-19 in deciding whether or not to attend
the AGM and (c) not to attend the AGM if they
have contracted or are suspected to have contracted
COVID-19 or have been in close contract with anybody
who has contracted or is suspected to have contracted
COVID-19.

In light of the continuing risks posed by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Company strongly encourages
shareholders NOT to attend the AGM in person, and
advises shareholders to appoint the Chairman of the
AGM as their proxy to vote according to their indicated
voting instructions as an alternative to attending the
meeting in person, by completing and return the proxy
form. The proxy form will be sent to the shareholders

accompanied with the 2020 Annual Report.

For those non-registered holders whose shares are held
in the Central Clearing and Settlement System, they are
strongly encouraged to vote through HKSCC Nominees
Limited by giving instructions to their brokers or

custodians.
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BRRBEXERES
Notice of Annual General Meeting
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If any shareholder chooses not to attend the AGM
in person but has any question about any resolution
or about the Company, or has any matter for
communication with the Directors of the Company, he/
share is welcome to send such question or matter to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are set out below. The Company
undertakes to respond in writing to any question raised
by a shareholder that could otherwise have been

answered “live” at the AGM.

The Company Secretary

Suite 4901, 49/F., Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

Email: info@cheuknang.com.hk

If Shareholders have any questions relating to the AGM,
please contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor

Services Limited, the Company’s Registrar as follows:

17M Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2862 8555
Fax: +852 2865 0990

Contact us: www.computershare.com/hk/contact
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FEHREE
Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
Hong Kong Properties

The outbreak of Covid-19, the effectiveness of the relief
measures introduced by the governments/central banks
around the world has become weakened. Most research
institutes believed that the Employment Support Scheme will
delay the explosion of the problem companies and will not
actually solved that matter. The credit advisory consultancy
agencies anticipated that the bankruptcy rate of Hong Kong

will be increased to over 35%.

The outbreak of Covid-19 has significant impact on Hong

Kong’s hotel, retail, food and beverages, entertainment

venues, airlines and other tourism-related assets.

The demand for shops and commercial properties continued
under pressure. Many Hong Kong companies adopted the
mode of Work from Home which resulted some companies
selected to shift to smaller office spaces located outside

central business district.
The progress of our projects in Hong Kong are as follows:

1. One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,

Tsuen Wan

Residential project developed in two phases.

Phase 1 comprised of a block of 21-storey building
with 49 residential units (including 6 duplex units) and
39 car parking spaces. The net floor area of the units
ranged from 1,075 square feet to 2,095 square feet.
11 units has been sold and majority of other units are
rented. The occupation permits for both Phase 1 and 2

have been issued.
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Phase 2 comprised of clubhouse, 29 car parking spaces
and five 3-storey garden villas. The net floor area of the
villas ranged from approximately 1,497 square feet to
2,329 square feet. The clubhouse provides recreational

facilities and swimming pool.

The application for Certificate of Compliance of the

whole development has already been submitted.

Villa Cecil Phase Il, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of three blocks of
4-storey low density residential building provides 29
residential units. 10 units have been sold and the total
remaining marketable gross floor area is about 50,000
square feet. The gross floor area of the apartments
ranged from approximately 1,200 square feet to 3,000

square feet.

The occupancy rate maintained at 85%.

Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of two blocks
of 4-storey building for rental purpose. The total
marketable gross floor area is about 97,000 square
feet. Block 1 provides 11 residential units and Block 2
provides 32 units. The gross floor area of the apartments

ranged from 760 square feet to 3,800 square feet.

The occupancy rate of the two blocks has reached 95%

which contributed good rental income to the Group.

Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

A residential premises comprised of two deluxe 3-storey
residential villas, namely Villa Begonia and Villa
Crocus. The renovation of the two villas to enhance the
quality is completed and due to the present situation, is

still under marketing.
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Chairman’s Statement

New Villa Cecil, No. 33 Cheung Chau Sai Tai Road,
Cheung Chau

A residential project developed into 2 phases with
total marketable gross floor area approximately 58,000

square feet.

Phase | comprised of 19 blocks of 2-storey residential
villas has already received Occupation Permit. The
gross floor area of the villas ranged from 1,450 square
feet to 2,700 square feet. Phase Il comprised of 4 blocks
of 2-storey residential villas. The gross floor area of the
villas ranged from approximately 2,000 square feet to
12,000 square feet. Recreational facilities including

swimming pool and landscape garden are provided.
All the villas in Phase 1 are leased out.

China Properties

Shenzhen

Cheuk Nang Garden

Longhwa, Shenzhen

Shenzhen’s real estate market remain active. Upto the
date of this report, a total of 783 units have been sold
and the sales transaction amount achieved is RMB3,813

million.

Hangzhou

The municipal government imposes three-year
residency rule for parents staying with their children
in the city before allowing home purchase. Measures
seen as pre-empting excessive speculation ahead of
September-October months, the peak season in China’s

annual home sales.
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Cheuk Nang ¢ Riverside
Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou

The development comprised land area of 38,983 square
metres (419,613 square feet). The total net floor area is
122,483 square metres (1,318,407 square feet) with 14
multi-storey buildings provides 849 residential units, 22
deluxe villas by the riverside, 780 car parking spaces,
clubhouse, recreational facilities and shopping centre.
The size of the residential units and villas ranged from
65 square metres (700 square feet) to 270 square metres
(2,906 square feet).

The construction of the development is completed. The
inspection of fire, electricity, plumbing and drainage
are already passed. We have already submitted
application forfiZ|5: 4. We have commenced our legal
action against the main contractorEEZXREBABRE
fEA Flregarding the delay in the construction works for
both Shenzhen and Hangzhou projects and claim for

damages.

Macau Properties

Following the recognition of the national health code
system in both Macau and China, people are allowed
to move around between the cities freely without
the requirement for quarantine. The property market

activities turn to become more steady recently.

Golden Cotai No. 1

Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

Application for change of land use was submitted to
the Direccao dos Servicos de Solos, Obras Pdblicas
e Transportes (“DSSOPT”) and we maintain close

communications with the new Government elected.
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Chairman’s Statement

Malaysia Properties

Following the outbreak of Covid-19, the Malaysian
economy is seriously affected due to the impacts of the
coronavirus abroad and movement control measures

imposed domestically.

Phase I “Parkview”

Lot 1359, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala Lumpur

The development is a ready built 41-storey residential
building providing 417 residential units and 163 car
parking spaces. The total gross floor area is 325,626
square feet. Most units have been sold by our Parkview
joint venture partner. The remaining 27 unsold units
are operated as serviced apartments. The demand for
hotel and short-term accommodation has decreased

drastically after the outbreak of Covid-19.

Phase Il “Cecil Central Residence”

Lot 11385 and 11386, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala
Lumpur

The development currently comprised of 4 blocks of
residential condominium with total approved gross
floor area is 1,708,648 square feet. The main podium is
completed upto Level 5. The amended proposed plans

were submitted and pending for approval.

INVESTMENT IN PERPETUAL NOTES AND
DEBENTURES AND STOCK

Our total investment in perpetual notes and debentures
market as at 30 June 2020 is HK$190,704,000. A total of
HK$31,593,000 was purchased and HK$3,996,000 was sold
during the year. The market price of our investment in the
Hong Kong stocks as at 30 June 2020 is HK$31,168,000.
During the year, a total of HK$6,115,000 stock was sold and
HK$38,638,000 stock was purchased.

Annual Report 2020 4¢3t | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 54 (%£B) AR2AA
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OUTLOOK
The trade war between China and the U.S. hopefully may be

improved after the presidential election. The introduction of
the National Security Law in Hong Kong on 1 July 2020 has
regained order and peace in Hong Kong despite there are

still some small scale propaganda/demonstration happened.

It is hoped that the vaccine against the Covid-19 will
be successfully tested in the next few months, and the
economies of China, overseas and Hong Kong will have
the opportunity to recover gradually and back to normal

operations again in the distant future.

DIRECTORS AND STAFF

The dedication of our directors and staff during the year are
much appreciated. Due to the operation in China, member

of our staff team are substantially increased.
By order of the Board
CECIL CHAO

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 September 2020
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
DIRECTORS

CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil — Executive Chairman

Dr. Chao, aged 84, is the founder and Executive Chairman
of the Group since 1988. Dr. Chao obtained a Bachelor
of architecture degree, with honours, from The University
of Durham, England and subsequently worked in the
field of property, investment, finance and architectural
design for over fifty years. He has also worked for Hong
Kong Government Building Department and Architectural
Office and elected as director of Hong Kong Real Estate
Developers’ Association for consecutive 30 years. He
is a Hong Kong registered architect and a member of
the Royal Institute of British Architect and has obtained
Honorary Doctor Degree (Ph. D.) from the U.S. Morrison
University. Dr. Chao is also awarded 2004’s World
Outstanding Chinese and Lifetime Achievement Award
given by the ASEAN Outstanding Business Award 2016.
Dr. Chao is appointed as the Honorary Advisory Chairman
of the Business Advisory Councils of Asia Pacific Platinum
Business Club. Dr. Chao is the Chairman and beneficial
owner of Yan Yin Company Limited and Szehope Securities
Company Limited which are the controlling shareholders of

the Group.

LAM Ka Wai, Graham

Mr. Lam, aged 52, is the independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the
University of Southampton, England with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director
of an investment bank and has over 25 years experience in
investment banking as well as over 3 years experience in

accounting and auditing.
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In addition, Mr. Lam was the independent non-executive
director of Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (stock
code: 1229) from 25 March 2008 to 7 September 2017,
China Fortune Financial Group Limited (stock code:
290) from 14 September 2007 to 11 April 2014, Applied
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) from 1
October 2005 to 12 December 2011, Pearl Oriental Oil
Limited (now known as CHK Oil Limited) (stock code:
632) from 3 October 2008 to 19 March 2013, King Stone
Energy Group Limited (stock code: 663) from 23 April 2012
to 22 March 2013, Value Convergence Holdings Limited
(stock code: 821) from 4 January 2010 to 24 May 2012,
CT Environmental Group Limited (stock code: 1363) from
14 June 2011 to 15 April 2014, ZZNode Technologies
Company Limited (now known as China Chuanglian
Education Group Limited, stock code: 2371) from 29
January 2008 to 5 October 2010, Hao Wen Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8019) from 17 November 2010 to 16
May 2011, Well Way Group Limited (now known as Global
Mastermind Holdings Limited, stock code: 8063) from 24
March 2011 to 16 April 2014, China Railway Logistics
Limited (now known as Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited,
stock code: 8089) from 22 December 2008 to 27 April 2012
and Finet Group Limited (stock code: 8317) from 5 August
2009 to 24 January 2011, companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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SUN Ping Hsu Samson
Dr. Sun, M.B.E., J.P., aged 95, is currently the Chairman

of the Sun International Group of Companies. He is also
holding independent non-executive directorship in two
other companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, namely Oriental Watch
Holdings Limited and National Electronics Holdings
Limited. He was the Deputy Chairman and a Director
of Inchcape Hong Kong Ltd. and its predecessor Gilman
& Co. Ltd. from 1967 to his retirement in 1985. Dr. Sun
has over 60 years experience in marketing, distribution
and manufacturing of wrist watches, and over 30 years
in marketing and distribution of consumer products and
electronic goods. He has been a pioneer in developing trade
with China since 1979, and continued to be active in both

trading and manufacturing in China.

Dr. Sun has a long service record in leader’s capacity
in many voluntary community services and charitable
organizations, including Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, the

Community Chest and Scout Association of Hong Kong.

TING Woo Shou Kenneth

Mr. Ting, SBS, JP, aged 78, is a Chairman and Managing
Director of Kader Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
180). He was an Independent Non-executive Director of
Wheelock and Company Limited (Stock Code: 20) from
2003 to 27 July 2020. Mr. Ting currently serves as the
Honorary President of Federation of Hong Kong Industries,
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and
The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong Limited,
and the Honorary Life President of the Hong Kong Plastics

Manufacturers’ Association Limited.

Mr. Ting also serves as a member of a number of other trade
organizations and public committees such as The Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce. He is a Life Honorary
Court Member of The Hong Kong University of Science and

Technology Court.
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LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Mr.
Chee Yen Investment Company (PTC) Limited and holds

Lee, aged 58, is currently the Managing Director of

many directorships with companies in Hong Kong and
overseas. He earned his Bachelor degree in Business
Management & Economics from Sophia University Tokyo
in 1984. Mr. Lee started his career working for Kyocera
Corporation in Japan specialising in manufacturing
semiconductor packages. In 1987 he returned to Hong
Kong to establish a photographic and digital imaging
lighting manufacturing business distributing his products
internationally. A manufacturing, property development,
and property investment veteran with 35 years of
experience, Mr. Lee possesses a sound knowledge in
manufacturing, a sound knowledge in developing
distribution network internationally, and a sound knowledge

in real estate businesses in Hong Kong and Japan.

YUNG, Philip
Mr.

2005. Mr. Yung has more than 20 years experience in

Yung, aged 62, has joined our Group since June,

the Accounting industry and Listed Property Developers
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yung is currently a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow Member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
holding a Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr.

Yung is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company
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HO Sau Fun Connie

Miss Ho, aged 53, was appointed as a Director of the
Company since 1996. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of U.K.
She has been working in the company secretarial field for
over 30 years. Miss Ho is also a director of the subsidiaries

of the Company.

CHAO, Howard
Mr. Chao, aged 37, is the elder son of Dr. Cecil Chao, the

Group Executive Chairman and the controlling shareholder
of the Company and is the brother of Ms. Gigi Chao, the
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chao hold degrees
of Master of Science in Real Estate and Bachelor of Arts in

Business Management.

Mr. Chao has joined the Group as Executive Manager since
January, 2006 and Executive Director of the Company since
1 December 2006. He is a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Chongging, Committee
Member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
and Vice-chairman of Young Executives’” Committee of The

Chinese General Chamber of Commerce.
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CHAO, Gigi

Ms. Chao, aged 41, is the eldest daughter of Dr. Cecil
Chao, the Group Executive Chairman and the controlling
shareholder of the company, and sister of Mr. Howard
Chao, Non-Executive Director of the company. She
graduated from the University of Manchester, Manchester
school of Architecture, England with a Bachelor of Arts in
Architecture with Honours. Subsequently, she worked with
prominent British Architect and Urban Designer Sir Terry
Farrell in London and Hong Kong where she participated in
projects such as Kowloon Station, Tsuen Wan West Station,
and various design competition submissions for prominent
iconic buildings in mainland China. Besides a background
in architecture and construction, her multi-faceted
experience in management and service was acquired from
an early career in marketing and retail services in Hong
Kong and China, during which she handled key accounts
such as Rolex, Audemars Piquet, Hong Kong Jockey Club,
Mont Blanc, inter alia. In 2017, she also completed her
LLB with Honours at the University of London International
Programmes. From early years as a summer intern at various
regional offices since a young age, Ms. Chao officially
joined the group in 2011 as Senior Project Manager and was

later promoted to Executive Director.

Ms. Chao has always been a passionate member of the
global community and a prominent advocate for various
charitable endeavours. She is the China Representative
and board member of OutRight Action International
(formerly the International Gay & Lesbian Human Rights
Commission IGLHRC) a global organisation that has EcoSoc
consultative status at the UN and reports to the UN General
Assembly annually. Gigi is also the founder of Hong
Kong registered charity Faith in Love Foundation, which
encourages volunteerism and alleviation of poverty through
scholarships, resource distribution, and emotional support
for marginalised youth. She is the specialist private sector
adviser for the United Nations Development Programme
Being LGBTI in Asia. An enthusiastic aviator, Gigi is Past
President of the Hong Kong Aviation Club and Honorary
Specialist Flight Lieutenant of the Hong Kong Air Cadets
Corp.
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)

CHAO Gigi (Vice Chairman)

YUNG Philip

HO Sau Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

CHAO Howard

LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors

SUN Ping Hsu Samson
TING Woo Shou, Kenneth
LAM Ka Wai Graham

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LAM Ka Wai Graham (Chairman)

SUN Ping Hsu Samson
LEE Ding Yue Joseph

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SUN Ping Hsu Samson (Chairman)

CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil
LAM Ka Wai Graham

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)

SUN Ping Hsu Samson
TING Woo Shou Kenneth

COMPANY SECRETARY

HO Sau Fun Connie

Annual Report 2020 4¢3t | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £& (%£B) AR2AA



—

A E

Corporate Information

A ER REGISTERED OFFICE
BB ET Suite 4901, 49th Floor
7B B 1855k Central Plaza
IR 5 18 Harbour Road
49184901 = Wanchai
Hong Kong
¥ BUED AUDITORS
BE(EB) @stMEBAER QA Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
EN R -y ] Certified Public Accountants
AR T BANKERS
"R Hong Kong
BITHRIT(BR) BRAA Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
R R1TTERAF The Bank of East Asia, Limited
BARITAERAA Hang Seng Bank Limited
A F R ERTT Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
RBRITRDBERAREBEDIT The Bank of Communications, Limited Hong Kong Branch
ERRT (FE)BRAFA DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
RE R ERT (M) IR BBR A A China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
PERTT(FB)FRAF Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
= Overseas
LERTAERAF Hong Leong Bank Berhad
(e SOLICITORS
ok B & E PR 12 B = 15 B Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.
Al BEERTT Ho & Ip Solicitors
PR R EEMTT Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
R4 B FERLE SHARE REGISTRARS & TRANSFER OFFICE
BEEPREBHZELEBRAA Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
BEBERANEBER1835 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
& A L46E 183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
®ERH A LISTING EXCHANGE
BERMAERSHMBERRR The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Highlights

Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2020 (the “Year”)
amounted to HK$552,880,000 (Year ended 30 June 2019:
HK$201,541,000),
last year. It was mainly due to increase in properties sold in
Shenzhen amounted to HK$474,911,000 during the year.

a 174.3% increase as compared with

For property leasing, the Year recorded an increase of
13.4% in rental income as compared with the corresponding
year in 2019, amounting HK$63,453,000 (2019:
HK$55,975,000).

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$370,596,000, a
153.5% increase as compared with last year.

Other recorded an increase of 47.6% to
HK$55,995,000 when compared with last year. The other

income for the Year were mainly attributed to dividend

income

income, interest income, gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and gain on disposal of
investment properties. Decrease in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
HK$9,294,000 (2019: HK$558,000).
of investment properties amounted to HK$5,840,000 (2019:
HK$683,397,000).
58.8% to HK$109,321,000 as compared with last year.
Finance costs increased by 21.3% to HK$36,382,000 as

compared with last year. The increase was mainly due to

Increase in fair value

Administrative expenses increased by

increase in interest rate during year. Income tax expenses
increased to HK$244,427,000 (2019: HK$166,478,000)
which was mainly due to land appreciation tax and profit
tax in China arisen from sale of properties in Shenzhen

during the year.
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Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
was HK$47,696,000 (2019: HK$572,899,000).
earnings per share was HK$0.08 (2019: HK$0.99) and fully
diluted earnings per share was HK$0.08 (2019: HK$0.99).

Basic

A final dividend of HK5.0 cents (2019: HK15.0 cents) was
proposed together with the interim dividend of HK7.5 cents
(2019: HK7.5 cents) a total of HK12.5 cents for the year
ended 30 June 2020 (2019: HK22.5 cents). Scrip dividend
alternative was offered to shareholders in respect of

proposed final dividend.

Total Equity Attributable To The Owners Of The Company
As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s total equity attributable

to the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$6,555,623,000 (30 June 2019: HK$6,638,727,000),
a decrease of HK$83,104,000 or 1.3% when compared
with 30 June 2019. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 639,613,567 as at 30 June 2020 (2019:
595,634,100 shares), the total equity attributable to
the owners of the Company per share was HK$10.25,
representing a decrease of 8.1% compared to HK$11.15 as
at 30 June 2019. The decrease in total equity attributable to

owners of the Company per share was mainly attributable to

increase in number of ordinary shares during the Year.

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the
annual report, the Group did not have any confirmed future

plans for material investment or acquiring capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment In Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit

Or Loss And Other Comprehensive Income

As at 30 June 2020, the fair value of investment in listed
securities, perpetual notes and debentures and structured
deposit amounted to HK$31,168,000, HK$190,704,000
and HK$426,878,000 respectively were classified as the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at
fair value through other comprehensive income. During
the Year, the portfolio was increased by a net acquisition
of listed securities of HK$32,523,000, loss on fair value
of HK$9,294,000 of listed securities and net acquisition
of HK$27,597,000, loss on fair value of HK$8,142,000 of
perpetual notes and debentures. The investment in financial
assets as at 30 June 2020 represented 5.9% (2019: 4.0%)
of the total assets, which formed part of the Group’s cash

management activities.

Equity
The number of issued ordinary shares as at 30 June 2020

and 30 June 2019 were 639,613,567 and 595,634,100

respectively.

Debts And Gearing

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings amounted to HK$1,442,453,000 (2019:
HK$1,332,977,000). Cash and bank balances amounted
to HK$1,236,667,000 (2019: HK$595,454,000) and
net borrowing amounted to HK$205,786,000 (2019:
HK$737,523,000).

Total debts to equity ratio was 22.0% (30 June 2019:
20.1%) and net debt to equity ratio was 3.1% (30 June
2019: 11.1%).

The increase in the total debt to equity ratio and decrease in
net debt to equity ratio were mainly due to increase in bank
borrowing during the year and increase in cash and bank

balances resulted from increase in sale of properties during year.

Annual Report 2020 4¢3t | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 54 (%£B) AR2AA



J& & m B 53 #T

Management Discussion and Analysis

RN-ZE-_FF A= ‘T_EI $§%@E’\]f5‘<f"}
REMEEHABITEE RAEENIR
TREMEELREE,442,453,00075 T -
BRIEE R E R &) T8 E B 5K B 38 FUR K
87.5% * 11.8%K&0.7%D B AR —F A

—EMFARRERFAEE AEEH
MITREMEEFZELRBREBRITAER

B o

N

EEERA

RZE_FEFXA=ZFTH AEBEKSE
CFZJ% FEDERIHWEREFERAEMA
7 5l A2,972,900,000%8 7T (= F — L 5F -
2,205,600,0007% 7t) * 1,539,000/ 7t (=
Z— L4 : 1,539,000/ 7T) £&36,400,0007%
T (ZZF — L : 36,400,00078 1) B EHK
PHEAREBES —RIBITER -

B 5§ B 2R
VBERKABRERRITREMER T8 -
CERAEERIL AFEERELZ
A B 719,793,000 7T - T EFE AR
18,649,000 7L - AEFEE 2 E X H R
36,382,000/ 7T - M EAF R HAE M F| B
7 30,004, OOO;%Ei“jJDN 3% ° FE ﬁa-ﬂsi
ENMEBZHRAFERITERME REA
%E&Zsibu%lﬁzoﬁé@ﬁﬁirﬁmzﬂ?i@
MER3A%(ZF—NF :3.2%) " TINAE
FMEXHBUNFESEEBEFSE -

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Of the Group’s
total bank and other borrowings HK$1,442,453,000, 87.5%,
11.8% and 0.7% were repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years
and 2 to 5 years respectively by reference to the repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments of the
loan agreement. The Group’s bank and other borrowings
carried interest rates by reference to Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate (“HIBOR”).

Pledge Of Assets
As at 30 June 2020,

properties held for sales and land and building with carrying
value of HK$2,972,900,000 (2019: HK$2,205,600,000),
HK$1,539,000 (2019: HK$1,539,000) and HK$36,400,000
(2019: HK$36,400,000) were pledged to secure general

the Group’s investment properties,

banking facilities of the Group.

Finance Costs

Financial costs included interest expenses on bank
and other loans, arrangement, facility and commitment
fee expenses.
HK$19,793,000 as compared to HK$18,649,000 for the
last year.
HK$36,382,000,

interest expenses of HK$30,004,000 recorded for the same

Interest capitalized for the Year was

Interest expenses for the Year amounted to

representing 21.3% increase over the

period last year. The increase in interest expense was mainly
due to increase in bank loans interest and other borrowing
cost during the Year. The average interest rate over the year
under review was 3.4% (2019: 3.2%) which was expressed
as a percentage of total interest expenses over the average

total borrowing.
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Property Valuation

A property valuation has been carried out by Messrs. Roma
Appraisals Limited and K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited in respect
of the Group’s investment properties and certain property,
plant and equipment as at 30 June 2020 and that valuation
was used in preparing 2020 financial statements. The
Group’s investment properties and investment properties
under development were valued at HK$5,428,781,000
and HK$1,656,094,000 respectively making the total
HK$7,084,875,000 (2019: investment properties and
investment properties under development were valued at
HK$5,937,518,000 and HK$1,721,893,000 making the
total HK$7,659,411,000). The increase in fair value of
approximately HK$5,840,000 was credited to the income
statement for the Year. The Group land and building held
for a director’s quarter carried at fair value were valued at
HK$36,400,000 (2019: HK$36,400,000). No change in fair
value for the Year. Properties under development for sale
of the Group were stated at lower of cost or net realisable

value in the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor
and control the various types of risk it faces. This is
supplemented by active management involvement and

effective internal controls in the best interests of the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

As at 30 June 2020, the Group employed a total 82 (as at 30
June 2019: 95) staff.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Remuneration packages comprised salary, year end double
pay and year end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive
Directors continued to review employees’ contributions and
to provide them with necessary incentives and flexibility for
their better commitment and performance. No share option

scheme was adopted for the Year.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
Profit Attributable To Owners Of The Company and

Earnings Per Share

The Company uses the profit attributable to owners of
the company and earnings per share as the Group’s as
the financial key performance indicator. The Company’s
aim to increase the Group’s profit attributable to owners
of the company and earnings per share. We compare the
profit against the previous period as a measure of the

performance. Detail refer to Financial Highlight section.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has appointed external professional firm to
perform periodic review on the internal control of the
Group. Current year review has completed and some minor
weakness have been identified. The Group will carry out

necessary procedures to improve these control weaknesses.
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RIFBOR M E T ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
COMPLIANCE
HRPMIREBREFTAEMAE LR MEEM Our environmental policy is to meet all the environmental
BV IRIFIR A - legislations which relate to our operation.
HREBKRHORRDET TER - A review on the performance on our environmental policy

has been carried out.

B8 #2 B9 1R KEY RELATIONSHIPS
B ERE IR R Relationships with vendors

KD ESESTS - FEMSRAEAESE  We have established relationships with numbers of suppliers
MBI TIEM M ERESL T & 1EBIR o Br  for the construction and renovation work in Hong Kong,
TR —EETREHERBSVKERZESI - PRC and Malaysia. Other than one supplier relating to our
ABEHEVIERENTEEKLEF DAL E  construction work which recently has financial problem,
B o Btk 29N R B ERMEME the work originally carried by the contractor has been
JERBEERNEREM - reassigned to other contractor. Other than this, there is no

major events affecting our relationships with our suppliers.

HEFHRER Relationships with customers

RO EEMBEBRKERMMNES - &£ Our sale and leasing team maintain good relationship with
HERMOEZERFTRIFOEERER - our customers especially our tenants.

HETHWERE Relationships with employees
FAR-HBMEEERETMERNEMFFETRK During the Year, we are not aware of any major event
P88 Ta 1R - affecting our relationships with our employees.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Hong Kong Properties

The outbreak of Covid-19, the effectiveness of the relief
measures introduced by the governments/central banks
around the world has become weakened. Most research
institutes believed that the Employment Support Scheme will
delay the explosion of the problem companies and will not
actually solved that matter. The credit advisory consultancy
agencies anticipated that the bankruptcy rate of Hong Kong

will be increased to over 35%.

The outbreak of Covid-19 has significant impact on Hong
Kong’s hotel, retail, food and beverages, entertainment

venues, airlines and other tourism-related assets.

The demand for shops and commercial properties continued
under pressure. Many Hong Kong companies adopted the
mode of Work from Home which resulted some companies
selected to shift to smaller office spaces located outside

central business district.

The progress of our projects is as follows:

1. One Kowloon Peak, No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,

Tsuen Wan

Occupation permits for both Phase 1 and Phase 2
have been obtained. Application for Certificate of
Compliance of the whole development has already

submitted.

2. Villa Cecil Phase I, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

The occupancy rate of the three blocks is 85% which

contributed good rental income to the Group.

3. Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

The occupancy rate of the two blocks is 95% which

contributed good rental income to the Group.

; 34 ) CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = (£M)&R27 | Annual Report 2020 4
@



EEER R T

Management Discussion and Analysis

4. HEEEIAT - 1) JE i) B30 4. Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak
R E Rl B2 1 BB R 12 B ST K I 1 Renovation works for the two villas is completed and
B o under marketing.
5. o RNIGERES335E 5. New Villa Cecil, 33 Cheung Chau Sai Tai Road, Cheung
Chau
—HIMEETEES TR EED Construction of Phase I has already been completed and
AKAE - FRERIEE 2 & H - 8K occupation permit obtained. All the villas in Phase 1
ETEME _HNEREEETH - were leased out. The overall site improvement work and

construction of Phase Il is in progress.

B ) 2 China Properties
BEFEZE Cheuk Nang Carden
RN BEEE Longhwa, Shenzhen

A ETEHMERFT EZR B EZAHE Shenzhen’s real estate market remain action. Upto the date
Fmz B HELR783EEN - 55X 54 of this report, a total of 783 units have been sold and the

BAARE38.13187T ° sales transaction amount achieved is RMB3,813 million.
ELE o A BEEF Cheuk Nang e Riverside
BN T R0 = Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou

BEBHMEETIZEE5EM o BBy ~ £+ The construction of the development is completed. The
EEMBEKMNBREELEB  IREMBAT inspection of fire, electricity, plumbing and drainage are
FEREBRW - RO MEEAEFEE  already passed. We have already submitted application for
EREBEREEAFAMRIIEMIMNIEE REBK. We have commenced our legal action against
REZETRERBRFEZEFALEREEE - the main contractor EEEZXREBEABRET AR regarding

the delay in the construction works for both Shenzhen and

Hangzhou projects and claim for damages.

A RY/ES Macau Properties

BEZRPIANF Bl A B KBRS 815 B 72 Following the recognition of the national health code system
B A AHFEN T 2B BAEBEZE - M in both Macau and China, people are allowed to move
ETIRE - - BHEMS ERAA I T4 around between the cities freely without the requirement for
FERTRE- quarantine. The property market activities turn to become

more steady recently.
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Golden Cotai No. 1

Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

Application for change of land use was submitted to
the Direc¢do dos Servicos de Solos, Obras Pdblicas
e Transportes (“DSSOPT”) and we maintain close

communications with the new Government elected.

Malaysia Properties

Following the outbreak of Covid-19, the Malaysian economy
is seriously affected due to the impacts of the coronavirus
abroad and movement control measures imposed

domestically.

Phase | “Parkview”

Lot 1359, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia

The 27 units in Phase | are operated as service apartment.
The demand for hotel and short-term accommodation has

decreased drastically after the outbreak of Covid-19.

Phases Il “Cecil Central Residence”

Lot 11385 and 11386, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia

The development currently comprised of 4 blocks of
residential condominium with total approved gross
floor area is 1,708,648 square feet. The main podium is
completed upto Level 5. The amended proposed plans were

submitted and pending for approval.
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POLICY AND OUTLOOK
The trade war between China and the U.S. hopefully

may be improved after the presidential election. The
introduction of the National Security Law in Hong Kong on
1 July 2020 has regained order and peace in Hong
Kong despite there are still some small size propaganda/

demonstration happened.

It is hoped that the vaccine against the Covid-19 will
be successfully tested in the next few months, and the
economies of China, overseas and Hong Kong will have
the opportunity to recover gradually and back to normal

operations again in the distant future.
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company
safeguard the interests of its equity holders and improve the

performance of the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company
complied with all Code Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“the Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of

the Listing Rules, except the following deviations:

1. Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. However, all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
The Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the Code.

2. Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the role
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be

clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
different channels, still looking for a suitable person
to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.
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DIRECTORS
A.1 THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and control the
business operations of the Group. It formulates
strategic directions, oversees the operations and
monitors the financial performance of the Group.
The management manages the business of the
Group within the delegated power and authority by
the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either
directly or through Board Committees and some
of which have been delegated to the management
of the Company. The types of decisions which are

reserved to be taken by the Board include:

1. matters relating to conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a director of the

Company;

2. formulation of the Company’s policies relating
to the overall strategic direction and strategic
plans, key business and financial objectives,
dividend policy or entering into contract
involving significant capital acquisition or

expenditure;

3. financial controls, compliance and risk
management for the approval of annual
operating and capital expenditure budgets,
the Company’s financial statements, published
reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosure required under the Listing

Rules or other statutory requirements;

4. changes to the Company’s capital structure,
including reductions of share capital, share

buy-backs or issue of new securities;
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major appointments or removal to the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Company’s
chief financial officer, company secretary and

external auditors;

changes to the terms of reference or
membership of any committee of the Board and
the authority delegated to the Chief Executive

Officer and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the senior

management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes
of the Corporate Governance Practical
Manual of the Company, the Code of Ethics
and Securities Transactions entered into
by the directors and other specified senior
management of the Group, group legal policy
(if any) and group system control and risk

management policy.

The terms of reference of the Board includes the

following:

(a)

(c)

to develop and review an issuer’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the board;

to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of

directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the issuer’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements;
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to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

The Board should be responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties set out above or it
may delegate the responsibility to a committee or
committees.

The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other save that Ms. Gigi Chao and Mr.
Howard Chao are the children of the Chairman.
When the Board considers any proposal or
transaction in which a Director has a conflict of
interest, he declares his interest and is required to

abstain from voting.

BOARD MEETINGS

» %% During the year, two full board meetings were held and the

individual attendance of each director is set out below:

HEEEESRAH
Number of Board

HE =

Meetings attended Attendance rate

2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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A2 TRERITHABER A.2 CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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The Company has identified the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer under the Listing Rules and
understood that the two positions cannot be performed
by the same individual to ensure that there is a clear
division of responsibilities at the board level to entail a

balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the
Board, for ensuring that the Board functions effectively,
and for ensuring communication of the views of
the Board to the public. In performing this role, the
Chairman’s responsibilities include chairing meetings
of the Board; ensuring the board meetings receive
accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring
constructive relations between executive and non-
executive directors; formulating for discussion and
decision, questions which have been moved for the
consideration of the Board; ensuring that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings;
acting as liaison between the Board and management;
in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and
the company secretary or his/her designated delegates,
drawing up and approving the agenda for each board
meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any
matters proposed by the other directors for inclusion
in the agenda; and at least annually hold meetings
with non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the presence of the

executive directors.

The Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for
recommending policy and strategic directions for Board
approval, implementing the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board and conducting the day-to-day

operation of the Company.
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The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
different channels, still looking for a suitable person
to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board is chaired by Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (the

“Chairman”). The Board comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors
and four Executive Directors. The names, biographical
details of the directors are set out in the “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to 24
to the annual report. All Independent Non-Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors bring a variety
of experience and expertise to the Company. The Board
includes a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) so that there is an independent
element on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgment, and that non-executive directors
should be of sufficient caliber and number for their

views to carry weight.

The independent non-executive directors are identified
in all corporate communications that disclose the

names of the directors.

An updated list of directors of the Company and their
role and function is maintained on the websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited.
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DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into appointment letters
with all the directors of the Company. Pursuant to
such appointment letters, each of the directors of the
Company is not appointed on fixed term but is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company. In accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association, all newly
appointed Directors (either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board) shall hold office only until the
next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken
into account determining the Directors who are to retire

by rotation at such meeting.

The Board at all times met the requirements of Rules
3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
Executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-
Executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-Executive directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 to the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors are explicitly

identified in all corporate communications.
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Independent non-executive director serving more
than 9 years could be relevant to the determination
of his independence. According to Code A.4.3, if an
independent non-executive director serviced more than
9 years, his further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
At the annual general meeting held on 13 November
2019, one independent non-executive director was
required to retire. This independent non-executive
director has serviced for 9 years and his re-election was
passed under a separate resolution and the papers sent
to shareholders accompanying that resolution prior to
the general meeting already included the reasons why
the board believes he is still independent and should be

re-elected.

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, a shareholder can propose a person for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting
by giving the Company notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected shall have been given to the Company at least
seven days before the date of the general meeting. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a Director are available and

accessible on the Company’s website.

In addition, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire
on every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons
who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall be determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall

be eligible for re-election.
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A5 REZE® A.5 NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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The Company has established a Nomination Committee
with specific terms of reference which deals clearly
with its authorities and duties. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of two Independent Non-
Executive Directors namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson,
Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth and one Executive
Director namely Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil. Dr. Chao

Sze Tsung Cecil is the Chairman of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee will review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identify suitable
candidates to the Board, and to make recommendations
on any matters in relation to the appointment or re-
appointment of members of the Board and succession
planning for director, in particular, the chairman and
the chief executive. The Nomination Committee will
also assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors. Appointment of new Directors is

reserved for the Board’s approval.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee ensures that the Board comprises members
with mixed skills and experience with appropriate
knowledge necessary to accomplish the Group’s
business development, strategies, operation, challenges
and opportunities. The Nomination Committee take
into account of that person’s skill, qualifications and
expected contributions to the Company before making
any recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment or re-appointment of members of the
Board.
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Where the board proposes a resolution to elect an
individual as an independent non-executive director
at the general meeting, the papers sent to shareholders
accompanying that resolution prior to the general
meeting already included the reason why the board

believes he is independent and should be re-elected.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, the
Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy setting

out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The individual attendance of each member is set out

below:

HEEE22BXEH
Number of HE=R

E=nS Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
e Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 1/1 100%
FRRE Sun Ping Hsu Samson 11 100%
TH%= Ting Woo Shou Kenneth 1/1 100%
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A.6 RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director will be received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that
he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules

and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the
Group’s business and the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Group conducts its business

to the Directors.

The functions of non-executive directors include
participating in board meetings to bring an
independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct; taking the lead
where potential conflicts of interests arise; serving on
audit, remuneration, nomination and other governance
committee, if invited and scrutinizing the issuer’s
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and

objectives, and monitoring performance reporting.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for
securities transactions by directors of the Company. A
copy of the Model Code has been sent to each Director of
the Company. Also, formal written notices are sent to the
Directors one month before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s half-year result and two months
before the approval of annual result, as a reminder that the
Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of the

Company until after such results have been published.
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Under the Model Code, Directors of the Company are
required to notify the Chairman and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman
himself, he must notify the Board and receive a dated
written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting year under review.

Directors’ interests as at 30 June 2020 in the shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) are set out on

pages 115 to 116.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing briefing and professional development to

Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company circulates details of training courses which
may be of interest to directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s

expense.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code which came into effect on
1 April 2012 on Directors’ training. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provide
a record of training they received for the year ended 30 June

2020 and up to the date of publication of this annual report.
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BHE_ZTZ-_ZFXA=Z1tHIFENKEZE The individual training record of each Director received
NEBRAZEOE  SEEMETEI 2@ for the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to the date of

RIRCERBEAL LN T -

publication of this annual report is summarized below:

RESEIERIZIH R 2 RR

ESHAREE P& 2 3% Training provider or source of Fr AR (/M)

Name and Title of Directors Training received training materials Time spent (hour)

By MERLHEERRE TERRE 2

EERIRRNTES Review the Collection and Management of 2

Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Land Appreciation Tax in Shenzhen

Chairman of the Board and

Executive Director

HAZ ERERGER BREE 1

NTES Blockchain Basics LinkedIn Learning 1

Chao Gigi,

Executive Director TIRTE AR L EE 0.3
Overcoming Overwhelm LinkedIn Learning 0.3
BRRFNATHENL BREE 1.6
Learning Design for Sustainability LinkedIn Learning 1.6
GepgERo £ BREH 1.6
Green Building Concepts Foundations LinkedIn Learning 1.6
JER TR 2 B B BREE 1.4
Finance for Non-Financial Managers LinkedIn Learning 1.4
&R EA A - RSN BHPE 1.5
Blockchain: Beyond the Basic LinkedIn Learning 1.5
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RESFIERZIH R 2 RR

ESRARBE P& 2 453 Training provider or source of FrREE (M)
Name and Title of Directors Training received training materials Time spent (hour)
i B W RABERRMERNECERLERE  PER BRATELES 2.5
FRITEER HER LB EE

Chao Howard, Discuss the current economic and social The Chinese General 2.5
Non-Executive Director situation in Hong Kong; share economic Chamber of Commerce

information and related data.

ARBHERIRNIFE  RATEMELE BATELHE 25
BR
People’s Congress and CPPCC Meeting The Chinese General 2.5
Exchange Sharing Session to exchange Chamber of Commerce
economic policies between China and Hong
Kong.
2EMERHIZE ARE SEEEME BAERAS 1.5
fBie PEXNERE
A national spirit sharing meeting of the two ~ The Chongqing Federation of 1.5
associations to convey the spirit of the two ~ Hong Kong
associations to the structure and members;
share the measures of the Greater Bay Area.

NREB_F_TFETHELEREARER BETELNE 2
2 HEREYE TROEERBYRKE
Introduce Hong Kong's economic and The Chinese General 2
business environment outlook for the Chamber of Commerce

second half of 2020, share economic data,
development situations and opportunities in

different industries.
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REFIERZIH R 2 RR

EEHEAREE Fir g 32 553 Training provider or source of Fr AR (M)
Name and Title of Directors Training received training materials Time spent (hour)
#xR1E “E-NFEMRAES ABREXEREIFOERAA 1
BHTES (BFeNESHD)

Sun Ping Hsu Samson, 2019 Updates on Listing Rules BMI Professional Training 1
Independent Non-Executive (Guidelines for the Board and the Directors) ~ Centre Limited

Director

FRE READRE R -HERBHY LH Em BAGHMNE 3
FUTES EABMITHNAL

Lee Ding Yue Joseph Corporate Governance Series — Regulator HKICPA 3
Non-Executive Director Actions and Investigations against Listed

Companies and their Officers

TFE KPMG B FEHTESHE S
FHTES The KPMG INED Forum KPMG

Ting Woo Shou Kenneth

Non-Executive Director

MR L FEHENABRUBNEENEEN ERBHAMEBMERRA

BUFHTES Economic Substance update on Cayman Vision & Co. CPA Limited

Lam Ka Wai Graham, Islands and BV!I

Independent Non-Executive

Director REHERELREANBES (RFARR EREHAMEBMERAA 2.5
BRIEE)
ESG disclosures & Financial Information (IPO  Vision & Co. CPA Limited 2.5
related)
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Name and Title of Directors

Bk

HITES

Yung Philip,
Executive Director

EEERRE
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RESFIERZIH R 2 RR

P 53 Training provider or source of Fr AR (M)
Training received training materials Time spent (hour)
BEFNA B E BB BRGNS 1
Leading and Motivating a Virtual Team HKICPA 1
“E-NFEEHEM BEENE 3.5
Annual Accounting Update 2019 HKICPA 3.5
“E-NFEEERE BEGtNg 1
Members’ Forum 2019 HKICPA 1
R NFERBESN R VN 3.5
Annual Taxation Conference 2019 HKICPA 3.5
—E-ARERBAE BRGNS 3.5
China Tax Conference 2019 HKICPA 3.5
THERBRSHAESRANTBURELHE FEQHMAE 1
e EmEZ RN RE

The Impact of COVID-19 on Commercial HKICPA 1
Contracts and Points to Consider in a Business

Continuity Plan

MUERESREIENEREXRE R VN 1
Practical Employment Issues arising out of HKICPA 1

COVID-19 outbreak
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REFIERZIH R 2 RR

EEHEAREE Fir g 32 553 Training provider or source of
Name and Title of Directors Training received training materials
%% “E-NEFREBRASNIBZEENERER BARINELE
RTEERAAINE Major BVI Legal and Practice Developments  HKICS
Ho Sau Fun Connie, in 2019
Executive Director and
Company Secretary REMEBREIZRT: LMARNBERS: BERTUELY
ERAER

Company Secretarial Practical Training Series: HKICS
Continuing Obligations of Listed Company:
Practice and Application

HER deNEaRBARNCXEARERE BARFTNELS
Enterprise Risk Management to Environmental, HKICS

Social and Governance related Risks

REAREBERENRN  BFAMNR S BABSAUELE
EREEHA
Company Secretarial Practical Training HKICS

\D]]}

Series: Notifiable Transactions: Practice and

Application

B ERESKRAT  EHREREE: FERTNELE
PREBBEUMESNER

Governance, Risk and Compliance Series: HKICS

Incident or Crisis Management: Lifecycle &

Practices in Our Daily Business Resilience

EEARE-GREER BRABHNELE
Doing Business in Hong Kong - Compliance  HKICS
and Regulations

REAREERMIAN BER S ERARR FERANELE
Company Secretarial Practical Training HKICS

Series: Connected Transactions: Practice and

Application
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RESFIERZIH R 2 RR

ESRARBE P& 2 453 Training provider or source of FrREE (M)
Name and Title of Directors Training received training materials Time spent (hour)
B ERESKRAT  ERRTHENAEY FERANELE 1.5
RER RRzEMERTENRNE
Governance, Risk and Compliance HKICS 1.5

Series: What You Need to Know About

IT Governance, Cybersecurity and Cloud

Computing

Rr-LaftRR AMERMAg 1
Exploration of Some Compliance Issues Institute of Compliance Officer 1
RERZSEEND % AMAREAE 1
BVI Economic Substance Law Institute of Compliance Officer 1

REE-Z-_FFNA=F+HILFE - During the year ended 30 June 2020, Ms. Ho Sau

HWITEETRLAAMWMEMFSZLEE Fun Connie, an Executive Director and the Company

BR E AR BIZE3 29167 R 15/ Secretary, has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant

Z IR EELET - professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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A7 ERREHRER A.7 SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

1B A A R AR ERR AR B AR
5 EBEEAEMT RS RME
-

REBREHEZEMNE2L THOXEHIE
A - RIBA QN RIAMEIRZME] - =
ERHRREAER BN ZHEAR
BRANEREED -

EEEENMEBEREXMASEESS
ERMERHREI3REXGERE
$ o

ARAMEERAEREEER - WAEAR
ExgRANMRESSREFLMA
B R R N AR ) 15 5 8 T

T%Mi%iﬁﬁﬁfﬁii/\&ﬁii—r;
EERETMRERAG A - LR
e R E’U%E&%@Zﬂ@ﬁ%it’

BrEFEghHEETZER R

% REEBERNIEESEGREETE
BEeRILE RERERIZRESE
$§T§§i KE @ WHES HET

SHLBYESEE HETZEEME
BB S IR NOE BROR TE /E R SR A Y
FOER

The Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone
or through other means of electronic communication in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before
each regular meeting. According to the Company’s
Articles of Association, a Director may waive notice of
any meeting and any such waiver may be prospective or

retrospective.

An agenda and accompanying board papers were sent
to all directors at least 3 days before the intended date

of board or board committee meeting.

The directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are

followed.

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions
or minutes and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board and Board Committee

meetings.

The Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions
are sent to all Directors/Board Committee members
within a reasonable time after each Board and Board
Committee meeting and are available for inspection by

Directors/Board Committee members.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board/Board Committees and

decisions reached.
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ExAedEZe RSB R
EBR - EFTEERERR  REER
BARTFEHCHEN KR ERIELCE
Z e

EFCERAN FEINEFARALE
SKEIEXRER  RAWEBEAIRAR
B BRABAARRRAN -

BE2EE-MRABEARERTAEIE
NEEREF(BRBUIFNTES)
EMEABER AHEBHRER (H
BE) R THEZEIR

KEBEF 2 HFRREE  EFEEMR
EFRCNEARCRERBITRS 28

o

R B

\
7

FHITESZEH
EWRAIK R+ SFRIEXA4.1 B
KIEMTEEFNRERIETES - WA
BEXENRE  c ARABYIFRITES
B\EELE - HARBARRZ AR
HEERRNEARABGXELE=F
WRRE—RREXEIMER - Bt -
RARRREERDMEHEEERAST
Bl c ARIIEMITE SR U 2Bl
RHEF63,0008 T RN —UME AT
151,000 7T ©

Annual Report 2020 %% | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED g (%) AR AR (57 )

A.8

EEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are given an opportunity to comment on
draft Board minutes. Final version of Board minutes
is placed on record within a reasonable time after the

Board meeting.

Directors have been advised that the Company
Secretary can arrange independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company should such advice be

considered necessary by any Director.

Important matters are usually dealt with by way of
written resolutions so that all Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) can note and
comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval is

granted.

The Board having considered the attendance records
of the Directors is satisfied that each Director spends

sufficient time performing his responsibilities.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and should be subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once
every three years in accordance with the provision
of the Company’s Articles of Association. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to serve the purpose of this code provision.
Four out of the five non-executive directors have
remunerated at HK$63,000 per year and the remaining
has remunerated at HK$151,000 per year.
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2. EEREREBEAENFHMHR
ESEET&

B.1 iZEES

ARRAEKRIFMEE S RARAIN
EEMeBRMEMARNEEE

RHEEER -

FNEEERAE=(KE BEM
B IFATE S ARED T R
KEEER —UATESHELZ
K FZREBLIR/EZESIRE -

FHZESHNZBESED TIH
A A &) 2 # B (www.cheuknang.
com.hk) B 22 P 2 A B o

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD
EVALUATION

B.1 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee to advise the Company on the directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related

matters.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprised
of three members includes two Independent Non-
Executive Directors namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu
Samson and Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham and one
Executive Director namely Dr. Chao Sze Tsung
Cecil. Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson is the Chairman of

the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company (www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock

Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee is primary
responsible for formulating and making
recommendation to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structuring the remuneration of
the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group. No Directors or any
of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The remuneration package of the
Directors includes salary, bonus and pension. The
remuneration level is determined by reference
to the expertise, performance and experience

possessed by each Director.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at
least once a year or as requested by the director

responsible for resources function.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING

During the year, the Remuneration Committee
meeting was held in February 2020 reviewed and
recommended the remuneration package of all
directors and senior management to the Board for
approval with the relevant directors abstained to

the discussion of his/her remuneration package.

EXEBNEFESLBUWT - The individual attendance of each member is set
out below:
HESBRH
Number of HE=R
REEH Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
FRiR Sun Ping Hsu Samson 1/1 100%
MK B Lam Ka Wai Graham 1/1 100%
e Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 1/1 100%
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3. BEREHE
C.1 B ER

EEERAESTSRET D NEE
NER  BREFE A UBERGM
PIfERN M R EMER - (FEA
RENE EEERSANES
SREBRHEENER - HINBEEAN
RAINRI - B M AR
ERSREROFE - AT AR
EFETCEMARA) FH3.080K &
FE+T=—EMRENRE -

EBEFHYBHREZEM

EEMRABEENREARTMBER
2B WHERMBMETIBREE
PR ERBAGTEAMESR - &
SRR EER T EF@MS
WK ©

NN B INIEAZ HAN LR S AR 7]
SRRz EEZBEEHNE122
BEFIBTEZZHMBEEN -

EEmR  AERELEE—YAE

BRRITRM - FISER M #EE
REWEEFZBETRAERTHAS
GEAEP %“ FENRBFEL
EZRET e

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
C.1 FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Management provide sufficient explanation
and information to the board to enable it to
make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. All
members of the board are provided with monthly
updates giving and balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient details to enable the

board and each director to discharge their duties.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities
for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Company and ensure that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of such financial

statements.

The statement of the external auditors of
the Company with regard to their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the Report of the Auditors

on pages 122 to 131.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
specific enquiries of all directors, they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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C.2 INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has the responsibility to review annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. In 2020, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and

financial reporting functions.

Risk management is defined as the continuing
process to identify, analyse, evaluate, and treat loss
exposures and monitor risk control and financial

resources to mitigate the adverse effects of loss.

Risk Appetite is the amount of risk that the Board
and the management are willing to accept in the

pursuit of the Group’s value.

Risk Management Approach
The Group adopts a “Top-Down” approach in

the Group’s risk management framework which
the Board, the Audit Committee, the senior
management and the department heads exercise
strong oversight on the establishment and

maintenance of the risk management policy.

Annual Report 2020 %% | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED g (%) AR AR (61)



J—

TtEE

Corporate Governance Report

EREE

”/’;‘f&%/é\ffﬂﬂ f%

ZIXEIE)]}_L N\/El
AERK

PEBRUATS R

i. EEE
- HEANETHEEEAER
= B BES B R T IR A @
BEEEFIZE

— BFEEERREIRERN
le:fI» ’ Eb_ﬁiﬂjﬁl_ /;Eq'}% ;

— BRELEFHAEERR
HFf AR EBEREERA
BERMETES - WAA
BMEEAERARDRERS
FEEERMAIE R

I]]]I]

_l_

ok

|
%HMW

ii. 2

\r
N

B EWERE IR

HERENmRAREEE
RO HBREEERETHEA
| EH B E

- EREFEREMNARE
BERENTIEFEER
HEPHHERELHELA

BEEROE -

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure consists of

the following parties:

The

The

Board of Directors
evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in

achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;

oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk

management systems on an ongoing basis;

ensure that a review of effectiveness of
the Group’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management system has been conducted
at least annually and report to shareholder
that it has done so in Corporate

Governance Report.

Audit Committee
review the Group’s risk management

systems;

discuss the risk management systems with
management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective

systems;

consider major investigation findings on
risk management matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and

management’s response to these findings.
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Senior Management

identify corporate risks;

review of corporate risks and mitigating

actions;

consider risks when making decisions;

articulate risk appetite when making

decisions.

Department Head

identify risks to the achievement of their
unit’s business plan which might also
be corporate risks, and to advise senior
management and Board of Directors of

such risks;

identify any relevant mitigating actions, to
include these within their unit’s business
plan, and to ensure the objective of

business plan is achieved;

be alert to other risks that might develop.

All Staffs

be alert to possible corporate risks and
report the risks that they have identified to

their managers.
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The Group’s risk management process comprises 4

core stages:

(1)

Risk identification

Each of the head of department is responsible
to identify potential risks that affect the Group
through assessing the market, competition
environment and the daily operations by
considering the risks relating to their processes.
The risks are then recorded into the risk
register, which serves to summarize the risks of
the Group as a whole by four risk categories,
namely reporting, operational, strategic and

compliance risk.

The risk register is submitted to the internal
audit function and the Audit Committee for

review upon completion.

The identification process is performed
annually to respond to the changing business
environment and to determine whether
adjustment is required for the risk identification

result.

Risk Assessment and Prioritization

(2.1)Risk Assessment
A common set of assessment criteria is
deployed across departments to assess
the risks in terms of likelihood and
consequences. The head of departments
are required to assign the ratings on the
likelihood and the consequences of the
risks in accordance with the assessment
criteria. The rating applied ranges from 1
to 5.
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(2.2)Risk Prioritization

Risks are prioritized in descending order
after the overall ratings are calculated. The
design of risk mitigation plan is based on
the risk prioritization and the details of the
plan are described in “(3) Risk Response”

sections.

(2.3)Assessment Criteria

The assessment criteria is determined by
the management and approved by the
Board.

(3) Risk Response
(3.1)Risk Mitigation Plan

Each department head is responsible to
formulate the risk mitigation plan upon the

completion of risk prioritization.

The risk mitigation plan includes the

following sections:

(i) Risk Identified
The Group will list out the top 10 risks
in descending order by using result
from the risk assessment. Description
of the risks and the impact of the risks
are required to be included under this

section.
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(ii) Risk mitigation plan
In the midst of the design of the
risk mitigation action, management
needs to consider the impact and the
vulnerability of the risks, and select
the most appropriate measure to
respond to the risks. The following
reference table summarizes the
types of the risk responses and the
circumstances to be adopted upon the

formulation of the risk mitigation:

b R A EERANER
Type of Risk Responses |Circumstances to be adopted
2% Rl R AR TEEN  WAERBASKFEZA -
Acceptance Risks are considered as immaterial and it is within the risk
acceptance level.
- R R R RERA - A AR R R ER AR
Reduction IR e
Risks are considered as material, and controls are available
to reduce the risks to an acceptable level.
A= R REANEIR  ARBEERRAREEAZEZIKF -
Sharing EW iAWY EL &?ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁigﬁiﬁ@ﬁ/\% °
Risks are considered as material, and the Group is not able
to reduce the risks to an acceptable level solely. The portion
of risks has to be transferred to or shared with other parties.
s RWARAEWE - BT A—E# 77 2R E R A X 87K
Avoidance ¥ C REBEBEEI A EINKTREETSBNRAA

Risks are considered as material, and the risks cannot be
reduced to an acceptable level by all means, or it requires
unreasonably high cost to reduce the risks to an acceptable

level.
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(3.2)Reporting to those charged with
Governance After department heads
submit the risk register and risk mitigation
plans to senior management for review,
the senior management will perform the
consolidation of the risk register and the
risk mitigation plans, thereafter report to
the Board and the Audit Committee.

(4) Risk Monitoring
(4.1)Daily Monitoring
The department heads are responsible to
implement and monitor the risk mitigation
plan, and review its effectiveness since

implementation.

(4.2)Annual Review Reporting
A report, which summarises the monitoring
activities during the year and the risk
mitigation results, is prepared by each
responsible department annually, and
submitted to senior management for

review.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Company has developed its disclosure policy
to provide the general guideline on handling
confidential information, monitoring of information
disclosure and response to queries to its directors,
officers, senior management and the relevant
employees. The Company has executed supervision
programs to confirm the strict prohibition
from unauthorised access to and use of inside

information.
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C.3

The Group does not have an internal audit function
as the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the Group’s business. The situation will be

reviewed from time to time.

The Board also contracted Grant Thornton
Advisory Services Limited to conduct the risk
management and internal control reviews of the
financial reporting & disclosure controls, revenue
management and inventory management for
the year ended 30 June 2020. The reports were
distributed to the Audit Committee and the Board

for their review.

the Board

considered the Group’s risk management and

For the year ended 30 June 2020,

internal control system as adequate and effective
and that the Company has complied with the code

provisions on internal control of the Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises of two
independent non-executive directors and one
non-executive director, namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu
Lam Ka Wai Graham and Mr.
Ding Yue Joseph. Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham is the

Samson, Mr. Lee
chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 to the

Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.
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The main function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board to oversee the financial report
system, risk management and internal control
procedures and the external audit functions. The
Audit Committee annually assesses the appointment
of the external auditor, taking into account the
quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the
auditor service provided, the audit firm’s quality
control procedures, relationships between the
external auditors and the Company and the

independence of the external auditors.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the Code,
details of arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control and other matters have been
included in the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee in February 2012.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during the one year after he/she ceases to be a

partner of the auditing firm.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

FA - BIFZETR_ZE—NLFh During the year, two Audit Committee meetings
AN —ZE-_ZTF — AEINEZEAD were held in September 2019 and February 2020
HE NEITMAIAE@:E  SREREH with the presence of the external auditors. The
JEEFIBWT individual attendance of each member is set out
below:
HESBXRE

Number of HER
REAH Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
FRIR Sun Ping Hsu Samson 2/2 100%
eV Lam Ka Wai Graham 2/2 100%
FThRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 2/2 100%
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
procedure and policies adopted by the Company
and discussed with management and the external
auditors regarding the internal controls and
financial reporting matters. To monitor the integrity
of the financial statements of the Company, the
Audit Committee has reviewed the interim report
for the six months ended 31 December, 2019, the
audited financial statements for the year ended 30
June, 2020 before their submission to the Board.
There was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit Committee on the selection and
appointment of the external auditors during the

year under review.

4. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
D.1 INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance relationship
and communication with its investors. Detailed
information about the Company’s performance and
activities is provided in the annual report and the
interim report which are sent to shareholders. The
Company maintains close communications with
investors analysts, fund managers and the media by
individual interviews and meetings. The Group also
responds to requests for information and queries
from the investors in an informative and timely
manner. The Board also welcomes the views of
shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholders’” meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with

the Board or senior management directly.

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy which was posted in the
Company’s website and of the Stock Exchange.
The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors,

including:
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(i) printed copies of corporate communications
(including but not limited to annual reports,
interim reports, notices of meetings, circulars
and proxy forms) required under the Listing
Rules, and shareholders can choose (or are
deemed to have consented) to receive such
documents using electronic means through the
Company’s website;

(ii) the annual general meeting provides a forum
for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board;

(iii) updated and key information on the Group
is available on the website of the Company
(www.cheuknang.com.hk);

(iv) the Company’s website offers a communication
channel between the Company and its
shareholders;

(v) the Company’s Registrar deals with
shareholders for share registration and related
matters; and

(vi) the Company Secretary of the Company
handles enquiries from shareholders and
investors generally.

The annual general meeting is used as an
opportunity to communicate with all shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meetings for which a notice would be
served with at least 20 clear business days. For
all other general meetings, notice will be sent to
shareholders with at least 10 clear business days.
The Chairman and/or Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the
meetings. At general meetings, separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue
such as the election of individual directors and re-
appointment of auditors.
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Details of poll voting procedures and the rights
of shareholders to demand a poll is included in a
circular to shareholders accompanied the annual
report. The circular also includes relevant details
on proposed resolutions, and biographies of each

candidates standing for re-election.

The constitutional document of the Company
was posted in the Company’s website and of the
Stock Exchange. There has not been change in the

constitutional document during the year.

At the 2019 annual general meeting of the
Company, the external auditors and the Chairmen
of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee were attended to
answer the questions from the shareholders. The
Chairman of the meeting has explained the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll, and answered

questions from shareholders.

The Chairman of the meeting exercised his power
under the Company’s Articles of Association to put
each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by
way of a poll. Representatives of the Share Registrar
of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to
monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2019
annual general meeting. Since the Company’s 2009
annual general meeting, all the resolutions put to
vote at the Company’s general meetings were taken
by poll. Poll results were posted on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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5. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms Ho Sau Fun Connie, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and the Board activities
are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper
Board procedures and the timely preparation and
dissemination of meeting agendas and papers to the
Directors. Minutes of all meeting of the Board and the
Board committees are prepared and maintained by
the Company Secretary to record in sufficient details
the matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or the Board Committee. All minutes are sent to
the Directors and are available for inspection by any

Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments relating to the
Group and that it takes these into consideration when

making decisions for the Group.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible
for seeking to ensure the Group’s compliance with
all obligations under the Listing Rules and The Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and dispatch of
annual reports and interim reports within the time limits
set out in the Listing Rules and the timely dissemination

of the same to the Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the
Directors on their obligations for disclosures of interests
and dealings in the Group’s securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures
that the standard and disclosures required by the Listing
Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the

annual report of the Company.
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The appointment and removal of the Company is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. All members of
the Board have access to the advice and service of the

Company Secretary.

Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company in February 1996 and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. Ms. Ho
Sau Fun Connie has confirmed, following specific
enquiry made by the Company that she has complied
with all the qualifications, experience and training

requirements of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below are procedures by which Shareholders
may: (1) calling for extraordinary general meeting;
(2) putting forward enquiries to the Board and (3)
putting forward proposals at general meetings. These
procedures are generally governed by the provisions of
the Company’s Articles of Association and applicable
laws, rules and regulations, which prevail over what is

stated in this section in case of inconsistencies.
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Calling for Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “CQO”), registered
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least
5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings may
request to call an extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM”) of the Company. The request (a) must
state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting, (b) must be signed by
the requisitionist(s), and (c) must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (the
“Registered Office”) at Suite 4901, 49/F., Central
Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for the attention of the Company Secretary. If the
resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution,
the request should include the text of the resolution
and specify the intention to propose the resolution
as a special resolution. The request may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one

or more requisitionist(s).

The Directors must call an EGM within 21 days
from the date of the deposit of the valid request.
Such meeting should be held on a date not more
than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting. If the Directors fail to call the EGM
as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves call the
EGM. The EGM must be called for a date not more
than 3 months after the date of the deposit of the
request. Any reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) by reason of the failure of the
Directors duly to call an EGM shall be reimbursed

to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the
Board through the Company Secretary who will
direct the enquiries to the Board for handling. The
contact details of the Company Secretary are as

follows:

The Company Secretary

Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
Suite 4901, 49/F., Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: info@cheuknang.com.hk or

connieho@cheuknang.com.hk

Tel No.: (852) 2526 7799
Fax No.: (852) 2521 7728

Shareholders can also contact Computershare Hong
Kong Investors Services Limited, the share registrar
of the Company, if they have any enquiries about

their shareholdings.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at

General Meetings by Shareholders
Circulation of shareholders’ statement

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote may request
the Company to circulate to shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that

meeting.
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The request (a) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s), (b) must be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary, (c) must identify the statement to
be circulated, and (d) must be received by the
Company at least 7 days before the meeting to

which it relates.

The expenses of circulating shareholders’ statement
need not be paid by the requisitionist(s) if the
meeting to which the requests relate is an annual
general meeting of the Company; and requests
sufficient to require the Company to circulate
the statement are received in time to enable the
Company to send a copy of the statement at
the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
Otherwise, such expenses must be paid by the
requisitionist(s); and there is deposited with or
tendered to the Company, not later than 7 days
before the meeting, a sum reasonable sufficient
to meet such expenses in doing do, unless the

Company resolves otherwise.

Circulation of resolution for annual general meeting

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate, or at least
50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate, may request the Company
to give, to shareholders of the Company entitled
to receive notice of the annual general meeting,
notice of a resolution that is intended to be moved

at that meeting.
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The request (a) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s), (b) must be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary, (c) must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given, and (d) must be received
by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before
the annual general meeting to which the requests
relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is

given of that meeting.

The Company must send a copy of the notice of a
resolution at the Company’s own expense to each
shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual

general meeting.

Nomination of a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, a shareholder can propose a person
for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting by giving the Company notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person
of his willingness to be elected at least seven days
before the date of the general meeting. The period
for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of

such general meeting.
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Circulation of Written Resolution

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders entitled to
vote on the resolution, may request the Company
to circulate a proposed written resolution to its
shareholders. The requisitionist(s) may also request
the Company to circulate with the proposed written
resolution a statement of not more than 1,000

words in respect of the resolution.

The request (a) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s), (b) must be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary, and (c) must identify the resolution and

any statement to be circulated.

The Company must send a copy of the proposed
written resolution and statement (if any) at the
Company’s own expense to every shareholder not
more than 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the valid request. The Company must ensure
that the copy of proposed written resolution is
accompanied by guidance as to how to signify
agreement to the resolution and the day by which

the resolution must be passed.

7. INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS” AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

During the year, the Company has arranged for the
renewal of an insurance policy on directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the

Group.
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8.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or payable to external
auditors of the Company, Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, was approximately HK$665,000 for statutory
audit services rendered to the Group. The Group has
not engaged external auditors to perform non-audit

services.

The Group also appointed other external auditors
for the statutory audit purposes of certain overseas
subsidiaries and their remuneration for audit services

rendered was approximately HK$44,500.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Environmental Policy

Our commitment to protect the environment is well
reflected by our continuous efforts in promoting green
measures and awareness in all business practices. The
Group has introduced a green policy to enhance the
awareness of environmental protection among staff with
the aims of saving energy, fully utilizing resources and

recycling wastes in daily office operation.

For the past years, the Group had undertaken initiatives
to reduce paper usage including usage of electronic
devices, and encouraging the use of websites and
online version of corporate communications. To reduce
the power consumption, lighting and equipment will be
turned off when not in use. Our Group is using office
equipment carries Energy Label issued by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department which save the

energy in the offices.
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Community Involvement

We encourage our employees to spend more time with
their families and engage in volunteer work in their free
time. The focus areas of contribution have been poverty
alleviation, education, environmental recycling, and the
arts. The senior management of the Group endeavours
to lead the way through example by regularly
contributing time, supplies, and financial resources to

charitable work.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that our employees,
customers and business associates are keys to our
sustainability journey. We strive to achieve corporate
sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality services for our customers,
collaborating with business partners and supporting our
community. The Company provides a fair workplace,
promoting non-discrimination and diversity to our staff,
together with competitive remuneration and benefits, as
well as a range of opportunities for career advancement
based on employees’ merits and performance. The
Company provides subsidy to staff for trainings to keep
them abreast of the latest developments in the market

and industry.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

As a global corporate citizen, Cheuk Nang recognises
its responsibility to adopt environment-friendly practices
across business development. To achieve the goal of
alleviating adverse impacts on the environment and
pursuing the long-term sustainable development, the
Group actively integrates green protection concepts and
implements a series of environmental protection measures
into our projects and daily office operations. Similar to
last year, Cheuk Nang had limited projects of construction
during the Reporting Year and the business operation
focused on property leasing and provision of property
management services which mainly operated in an office

setting.

A1: Emissions
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Fuel consumption by vehicles and flights taken for
business trips are the main source of air emissions in
our operation. With the aim of reducing greenhouse
gas emissions, our motor vehicles are required to take
regular maintenance to utilize fuel efficiency. Cheuk
Nang also promotes the use of conference calls to
reduce the need for business trips. These practices not
only brings cost-saving benefit to the Group, but also

lowers the carbon footprint.

Another source of GHG emissions from our operation
is the electricity consumption in our office. The Group
has educated and encouraged our staff to commit to
good energy-saving practices by providing continuous

training and affix energy saving reminders.
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We committed to complying with the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance in Hong Kong to strengthen
pollution control and protect the environment. During
the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang generated 75.93 tons
of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions, produced
9.57 kg of nitrogen oxides, 0.39 kg of sulphur oxides
and 0.7 kg of particulate matter.

Wastes

During the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang had limited
construction works in Hong Kong and they were
mainly outsourced to external contractors. Most of the
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in construction
sites have been handled and disposed by third-party
contractors in accordance with the Waste Disposal
Ordinance in Hong Kong. Thus, there is limited
information available regarding the construction
waste. For the daily operation in office setting, Cheuk
Nang mainly generated recyclable wastes - papers and
domestic garbage, which are handled by the property
management service provider. To minimize the waste
of papers, the Group applies the concept of “4R” (i.e.
to replace, reduce, reuse and recycle) by taking a step

forward as below:

e Adopt electronic means of communications (such
as email, mobile and website) and electronic
filing of documents as far as possible;

e Use duplex printing for documents and adjusting
the print area before printing;

e Reuse waste paper for printing draft documents;
and

e Collect used paper for recycling.

During the Reporting Year, the Group consumed

0.175 tons of paper.
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Energy, water and other consumption

Electricity is the main resource use in our operation,
which is consumed by various office equipment,
e.g. computers, printers and light bulbs. During the
Reporting Year, the Group consumed 15.96MWh
electricity. We have proactively taken a series of
energy-saving measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, such as keeping the office temperature
at 24 to 26 degrees Celsius, turning off unnecessary
lighting and deploying energy-efficient devices which
carry energy efficiency label. In the future, we will
replace lighting or equipment with automatic low
power mode or energy-saving mode with the goal of

diminishing energy consumption.

The information on water consumption of the office
is unavailable since the water supply is controlled by
the property management service provider. Even so,
Cheuk Nang encourages the employees to minimize
water usage in order to build awareness of water
conservation. Besides, as a property developer,
packaging is not involved in the usual course of
Cheuk Nang’s business and therefore the use of
packaging material during the Reporting Year is not

applicable.
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A3: Environment and Nature Resources

As disclosed above, the major environmental impacts
of our Group include the emission of greenhouse
gases associated with the use of vehicles, the usage
of electricity and the consumption of paper for
office operations, thus the environmental impacts
regarding Hong Kong business operation are limited.
Despite this, Cheuk Nang is aware of the importance
of protecting the environment for the well-being of
society and the next generation. We endeavour to
further lessen the adverse impact on the environment
in the future by adopting more resource-saving
and environmentally-friendly equipment whenever
possible, to enhance the environmental awareness of
our staff and business partners as well as to achieve

the goal of sustainable development collectively.

B. SOCIAL

Acknowledging the significance of developing a mutually
beneficial community for sustainability and prosperity,
Cheuk Nang ingrains social responsibility into all aspects
of operations. The Group will continue to devote ourselves
to society through improving our contribution and

services.

B1. Employment

Employees are the foundation of our long-term
business success. Cheuk Nang embraces to build a
respectful and harmonious workplace to our staff so as

to enhance the employees’ working incentive.
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The Group attracts and retains talents with
competitive remuneration packages, generous welfare
and benefits. Cheuk Nang welcomes talent in all
kinds, regardless of their age, background, ethnic
group, gender, religion, marital status, family status,
pregnancy, disability, politics or race. We also
promote and make salary adjustment by a fair and

non-discriminatory evaluation procedure.

The Group provides employees with competitive
compensation, holiday benefits and discretionary
bonus. All of our staffs are entitled to the medical
benefits and a 5.5 working days arrangement, MPF
schemes, retirement benefits, annual leaves, marriage
leave, maternity leave and other leaves in lines with
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, Minimum
Wage Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong. To understand
our area of improvement, we try to address the
concern or complaints from our staffs. As stated in
the Group’s policy “Code of Conduct”, complaints
could be sent directly to the Executive Chairman and
all the feedback and complaints will be handled with
confidentiality. For leaving staff, we organise an exit
interview with them in order to listen to their opinions
given to Cheuk Nang. Dismissal of employees
is executed in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong or other relevant local laws

and regulations.

During the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang stringently
complies with the relevant laws and regulations in

Hong Kong, including but not limited to:

e Employment Ordinance;

e Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of
Hong Kong;

e Minimum Wage Ordinance;

e Employee’s Compensation Ordinance;
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e  Sex Discrimination Ordinances;

e Disability Discrimination Ordinance;

e Family Status Discrimination Ordinance;
e  Race Discrimination Ordinance; and

e The Hong Kong Bill of Rights Ordinance.

Health and safety

Cheuk Nang cares about employees’ talent and
priorities their health and safety at the top position.
We strictly comply with Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance at all times and takes necessary
safety measures in construction sites to prevent
occupational hazards, including precautionary tools
against extreme summer heat and winter coldness,
noise cancelling earplugs, insulated boots and gloves,
and antistatic clothing. In addition, Cheuk Nang
periodically inspects the fire extinguishers and other
fire prevention equipment in sites to ensure their
effectiveness. Every case of injury or accident and
potential danger must be reported and remediation
action shall be taken to improve the safeness of
workplaces. During the Reporting Year, there was no
record for work-related fatalities and lost days due to

work injury.

To ensure a hygienic working environment, the Group
periodically engages professional service provider
to carry out air-conditioning systems cleaning, pest
control and carpet disinfection treatment in the office
for the killing of viruses and bacteria. We also provide
first-aid kits as well as medical insurance to all staffs
as safety measures. Cheuk Nang also encourages
staff to join the fire drill organised by the property
management service provider to train their readiness

in responding to fire emergencies.
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B3.

The Group has also set up guidance for work
arrangements in emergencies, such as typhoons,

rainstorm warnings, strikes, protests and other
circumstances.
COVID-19,

measures at our workplaces to avoid the risk of

In response to the outbreak of

the Group has taken precautionary

infection:

e provide surgical masks;

e install air defenders and hand disinfectors;

e issue guideline to protect against infection by
COVID-19; and

e require staff with fever and respiratory symptoms
to report to the Group, visit doctors immediately

and stay home until fully recovered.

Development and training

The Group understands the need for staffs training
to carry out their duties at a high standard and for
their own career development. To support the growth
of employees and maintain their competitiveness,
we provide on-the-job training to staff. The training
covers not only technical skills but also the health
and safety and code of conduct. Besides, the Group
also encourages employees to attend external
training programs held by the government or relevant
recognised institutes, such as Vocation Training
Council and Occupational Safety and Health Council,
to enhance their work-related skills, maintain up-to-
date knowledge and share experiences among other

expertise.
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B4. Labour standards

Human rights are considered the fundamental right
and we fully agree that hiring child labour and
forced labour violates the fundamental human rights
protocol of international labour conventions. Thus,
Cheuk Nang places great emphasis on fairness
and strictly abide by the Employment Ordinance
and relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong.
Cheuk Nang reviews the identity documents and
conducts a background check to candidates prior to
signing an employment contract to prevent having
an employment relationship with a person under
15. Also, the Group strictly follow our employment
contracts and will not force our staff to work against
their will or under any kind of threat. We offer
compensation of leave to staff who works overtime

and they are free to resign upon notice to the Group.
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B5. Supply chain management

As a property developer, Cheuk Nang engages
contractors to carry out the construction work and
may purchase some of the materials ourselves. We
promote fair and open competition and aims at
developing long term relationships with suppliers
and contractors based on mutual trust as stated in
the Group’s policy “Code of conduct”. To ensure our
contractors and suppliers shares the same business
philosophy in running the business with a fair and
integrity manner, suppliers and contractors have
to pass through strict assessment procedures or
tendering procedures before engaging in business. In
addition to financial and quality aspects, suppliers’
and contractors’ attitudes towards the environment
and the society will also be a part of the assessment
criteria. The Group will not consider suppliers or
contractors who have been in bribery cases or have
incurred material safety or environmental incidents.
The Group performs on-going and regular reviews
on the contractors’ works to ensure the quality of the
construction works are within the Group’s standard
to lower the environmental and social risks. During
the Reporting Year, the Group engaged 4 contractors
and 10 suppliers in Hong Kong. In the future, the
Group will consider giving priorities to suppliers and
contractors with Environmental Management System

Certificates when feasible.
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B6. Product responsibility

Assuring the quality and safety of our products are
the topmost importance. Cheuk Nang cares about
customers and set high standards to ensure the
architectural quality and commercial values of the
properties. Product quality is controlled throughout
the construction processes and ongoing management
and maintenance. We perform tight selection
procedures of materials, suppliers and contractors at
the beginning of the projects. We pay full attention to
monitoring the work performed by the contractors and
take detailed acceptance procedures upon completion
of the project to ensure all our requirements have
been strictly followed. After taking a series of quality
audits to ensure our products were safe and up
to standard, we did not record any product recall
concerning the products safety during the Reporting

Year.

In view of high public concern over data privacy, all
the personal information received from the Group
regarding our business operations has been handled
with due care and in accordance with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance and similar regulations to
fulfill key stakeholders’ expectations on information
security and confidentiality. As emphasized in the
policy “Code of Conduct”, it is the responsibility
of each director and employee to provide adequate
safeguards to prevent the personal data of customers,
business partners, shareholders and customers to be
abused or misused. To preserve the confidentiality of
the data, only authorised persons have access to such

personal data.

The Group respects all intellectual property rights.
To avoid infringe intellectual property rights and to
comply with relevant licensing terms, the Group has
prohibited employees from using a pirate version of
software as well as duplicating, installing or using the
software in violation of its copyright or license terms.
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B7.

In case of any complaints related to product quality,
data privacy or intellectual property rights, Cheuk
Nang will strictly follow the complaints handling
procedures as stated in the policy “Code of Conduct”
to ensure the complaints will be investigated and

handled with due care.

Anti-Corruption

All employees, including directors, shall uphold the
code of ethics, advocate fair competition and act
against bribery according to the Group’s policy “Code
of Conduct” and Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 21) of Hong Kong. The Group takes zero-
tolerance towards all kinds of illegal activities, such
as corruption, bribery, money laundering, forgery, and
embezzlement and collusion case. The Group has set
up a clear reporting channel for all staffs to report any
violations notes from an individual or its departments.
The Group is committed to protect the whistle-blower
and keep his identity confidential. In addition, all
staffs shall not accept or request any personal benefits
advantages in connection with his or her duties and
with the business of the Group. Anyone who has
conflicts of interest must declare and obtain prior

written approval of the Group.

In case of any violation of laws or “Code of Conduct”
established by the Group, Cheuk Nang adopts
disciplinary actions with no mercy and hesitation.
During the Reporting Year, there was no legal case
regarding corrupt practices that was brought against
Cheuk Nang or its employees, and we strictly

complied with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.
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B8. Community investment

It is the primary corporate social responsibility of us
to contribute to our community where we operate.
Cheuk Nang believes that community involvement
could bring a positive return to both society and the
business. In 2020, Cheuk Nang has made donation
to the Hong Kong Basketball Association with the
aim of promoting basketball training to the youth.
Meanwhile, we also encourage our staff to participate
in voluntary and charitable services with their families

to build friendly community relations.

In the future, Cheuk Nang will continue to seek
opportunities to support community programmes

actively.
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REBERE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

g Environmental’
B BERAMER
Aspects KPIs
A1 BERRY) AA1YW (TNOx]) FTrF=]) RS
ATl: Emissions Nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) Kilogram (“kg”) 9.57
e ([SOx]) FTrFT=]) 0.39
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) Kilogram (“kg”) 0.39
kY (TPM]) FTrF%D 0.70
Particulate matter (“PM”) Kilogram (“kg”) 0.70
A1.2 D RERE EE-EEER
A1.2: Greenhouse gas |Scope 1 — Direct emissions
NEIME —REIREEFH R (AMEFTE) |61.91
Company’s vessels Carbon dioxide equivalent 61.91
emission (in tonnes)
EE-_StnEERHEREE “EEmEEHER (LIEETE) (61.91
Total direct carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent 61.91
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
BEE—SItmERFNETE “RAREEHKR (UMETE) [3.44
S EEAY
Intensity of direct carbon dioxide |Carbon dioxide equivalent 3.44
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)/Total
number of Employee
BE2-EEHER
Scope 2 — Indirect emissions
RS E 7 — S L B R AR B [12.77
Acquired Electricity Carbon dioxide equivalent 12.77
emission (in tonnes)
BE_SLREEHFRRAE “ERESHER (UMEE) [12.77
Total indirect carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent 12.77
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
BE_SILREEFREE —HeREEHHR (UMEE) 0.71
S EERY
Intensity of indirect carbon Carbon dioxide equivalent 0.71

dioxide equivalent emission

emission (in tonnes)/Total
number of Employee

SR R AU AR A HE R T TR SR 22 PR
B IR RERS B REERE 7)
— W= CREMRE MR IEE RIS
HEBE - BIERRED DA -

unless otherwise specified in this Report.
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Calculation of emission factors for environmental KPlIs is
based on the “How to prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2:

Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEx,
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BREMER
KPIs
BE3 - HMHEK
Scope 3 — Other emissions
AR EEMRR Rt EEH R (AMRETE) (0.84
Paper waste disposed at landfills  |Carbon dioxide equivalent 0.84
emission (in tonnes)
REBBMEIRTT —REiRE EBE R (LAREET E) |0.42
Business air travel by employees | Carbon dioxide equivalent 0.42
emission (in tonnes)
Htt —SHtmEBRHFNAE —RREEHBR(UBEE) [1.26
Total other carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent 1.26
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
Htt —SHtmEBFREE —HREEHER (UMEE) 0.07
S EEEY
Intensity of other carbon dioxide |Carbon dioxide equivalent 0.07
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)/Total
number of Employee
BERBERAE
Total greenhouse gas emission
BERBHERAE —HAREEHR(UHEEE) [75.94
Total greenhouse gas emission Carbon dioxide equivalent 75.94
emission (in tonnes)
BERBHERZE “EBRESHER (UMEE) 4.22
S EERY
Intensity of greenhouse gas Carbon dioxide equivalent 4.22
emission emission (in tonnes)/Total
number of Employee
A13: BEBEEY FEEREBERYHEE 7] i
A1.3: Hazardous waste | Total hazardous waste produced |Tonnes Nil
FEEREBRYRE W EE A i
Intensity of hazardous waste Tonnes/Total number of Nil
produced Employee
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BREMER
KPIs
Al.4: BERBERY) AR WA 0.18
A1.4: Non-hazardous |Papers Tonnes 0.18
waste £ERERY 1 =
Domestic wastes Tonnes Nil
FFEEEERRYAE MW 0.18
Total non-hazardous waste Tonnes 0.18
produced
FELERERRNEE W, EE A 0.01
Intensity of non-hazardous waste |Tonnes/Total number of 0.01
produced Employee
A2.1: BEIR EEEREE
A2.1: Energy Direct energy consumption
EERARE K F & B
Total direct energy consumption |MWh Nil
EERRREERE KRB EEAE B
Intensity of direct energy MWh/Total number of Nil
consumption Employee
Mz REE
Indirect energy consumption
BSHEN JKEL B 15.96
Acquired Electricity MWh 15.96
BEERAEERE JK B 15.96
Total indirect energy consumption | MWh 15.96
BEEREERE KER EEAE 0.89
Intensity of indirect energy MWh/Total number of 0.89
consumption Employee

B RHMER

Total energy consumption

HEEREHER K F B 15.96
Total energy consumption MWh 15.96
RERRERE KEE EREAH 0.89
Intensity of energy consumption |MWh/Total number of 0.89
Employee
A2.2 : FEKE BB AT i
A2.2: Water Total water consumption Cubic metre Nil
consumption HABE S P LT T =
Intensity of water consumption Cubic metre/Total number of |Nil
Employee
FFRABRYMBAEE g =
Total packaging material used Tonnes Nil
FFREENNEE W EE A =
Intensity of packaging material Tonnes/Total number of Nil
used Employee
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Aspects
B1.1: REMAH

B1.1: Total workforce

RE-HERERBRE
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Social
BEREARER
KPls
RERERED
By employment type
¥ REHH 18
Full time No. of employee 18
i BE#H i
Part time No. of employee Nil
RILEE D
By geographical region
e RE#A 18
Hong Kong No. of employee 18
B RE D
By gender
St EE8E 12
Male No. of employee 12
7 REH 6
Female No. of employee 6
BRERE D
By age
305 AT EEHH &
Below 30 No. of employee Nil
31ZE405% B A 3
31-40 No. of employee 3
4125058 BB A 6
41-50 No. of employee 6
5058 A £ EE8E 9
Over 50 No. of employee 9
RESERE S
By employee category
SRERAR BEHH 5
Senior management No. of employee 5
RARERAR REHH 7
Middle management No. of employee 7
—RBE EE#H 6
General staff No. of employee 6
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Bm

BREVRER

Aspects KPlIs
B1.2 : BERKAEK REREZES
B1.2: Employee turnover By employment type
X % 6
Full time % 6
PR % =
Part time % Nil
B EE 5
By geographical region
BB % 6
Hong Kong % 6
BRI E D
By gender
EEl % 8
Male % 8
gl % L
Female % Nil
BRERED
By age
308 AT %o s
Below 30 % Nil
312405% % s
31-40 % Nil
41E505% % i
41-50 % Ni
50884 £ % 11
Over 50 %o 11
B2.1 : AIL{ERAEMATHA | TIEMEEZET RE#A =
R bR Work-related fatalities No. of employee Nil
B2.1: Number and rate of TEREZBT % i
work-related fatalities Work-related fatalities % Nil
B2.2 : HTHBEXRIIFAE |HIBGEBRXIIER HE =
B2.2: Lost days due to work |Lost days due to work injury Days Nil

injury
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[Em BREMER

Aspects KPIs

B3.1: XFIEB B BRI 85D

B3.1: Percentage of By gender

employees trained B % 16.67
Male %o 16.67
1t % 33.33
Female % 33.33
RESER S
By employee category
SREREAE % 80
Senior management % 80
FREEAE % i
Middle management % Nil
—REE %o =
General staff % Nil

B3.2 : EFIINFARKSYE |BREETKZIINFHEK R 21 2.55

B3.2: Average training hours |Average training hours Hours 2.55

completed completed per employee
R BI85
By gender
S Ry 25 1.92
Male Hours 1.92
o 5 2K 3.81
Female Hours 3.81
RESER 82
By employee category
=AREEAR iSE 9.18
Senior management Hours 9.18
PREEAS i3 i
Middle management Hours Nil
—MREE Ry #X i
General staff Hours Nil
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[Em BREVRER

Aspects KPIs
B5.1 : f{ER M FAEAHE |REESD
B5.1: Number of supplier and | By geographical region

contractor BB R AR EE |14

Hong Kong No. of supplier and |14
contractor

B6.1 : EEXRCEXEMMEY |Rx2BREEMMADKRNE |% L

FRZHEEFRIEHAMARLY | EXNEEXEMBE

WA DL

B6.1: Percentage of total Total products sold or shipped |% Nil

products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and

subject to recalls for safety and | health reasons

health reasons

B6.2 : MEMMNEMMNRF |EERRERNIRF s 4= DPRIORERIK
#A i

B6.2: Number of products Products related complaints No. of complaint Less than
related complaints received received 10 material

complaints cased

B7.1 : BEAEHVAESRM RERPALZHITAKEEERE |RITFBHE B
#E I B EENE S ARRITFAE

B REMHER
B7.1: Number of concluded Number of concluded legal No. of case Nil
legal cases cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting

period and the outcomes of the

cases

B8.1%B8.2 : tH[@IEE ErEREE

B8.1 & B8.2: Community Donation on focus area

investment s BT 20,000
Sport HKD 20,000
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BRXA(RRE - HERERBRERSI)NWSE HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index
E3=]

—REBERBAREN
=] BEE Haat HESH
General disclosures Corresponding
Aspects and KPIs Description section
1 B —RIRE BRAERIMCBERBHIN - MK KL | A1 - B
WEES BEREBEEEVNELSE
Ky :
(@ BX: &
(b) BTHETABBEARZENMERE
eI FRY
&R o
AT: Emissions General disclosure |Information on: A1: Emissions

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations

that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to air and greenhouse

gas emissions, discharges into water

and land, and generation of hazardous

and non-hazardous waste.

AT.1 PR R AR R BE R BUR - KRBBERE

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective |Performance Data
emissions data. Summary

Al.2 BERBANE AW E) & (10E | RBEBERE
R)EE -

AT.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Performance Data
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Summary
intensity.

A1.3 FMELEBAEEEYMARE UHAE) M| RRBERE
(E M) ZE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced Performance Data
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Summary
intensity.
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B m

— R R B K
58

General disclosures

i

HEZHE

Corresponding

Aspects and KPIs Description section
Al.4 FEABREEEYES UMHE) R XRREBHE
(Em) EE -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced |Performance Data
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Summary
intensity.
A1.5 HAUBIRBEREN R EAFAR - A1 Y
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate ATl: Emissions
emissions and results achieved.
A1.6 B IE R ENREEEEYNIE B AL Y
BELAENEEBLAEKAR -
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and AT: Emissions
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
A2 BIRER | —RERE EREMRER(BREER KEEMERIA2 - BRER

A2: Use of

Resources

General disclosure

MEH) BV BUR e
Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and

other raw materials.

A2: Use of Resources

A2.1 REAESNERER SAEEERER KREHERE
B (MUK E) REE -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Performance Data
consumption by type in total (kWh in |Summary
’000s) and intensity.
A2.2 BIEKERTE - KRBBEHE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and Performance Data

intensity.

Summary
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—RIFERBAREN
=g BEE it HESH

General disclosures Corresponding
Aspects and KPIs Description section

A2.3 M BERE MR B RIS R - |A2 - BIRIEM

A2.3 Descrlptlon of energy use efficiency A2: Use of Resources

initiatives and results achieved.

A2.4 fod SKEUE KR LR B ERIRERE - bA A2 - BIRME
KR AR B R AT EARR -
A2.4 Description of whether there is any A2: Use of Resources

issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives

and results achieved.

A2.5 S mTABRRMBNEE (AMEETE) A2 - BIRER
MOnER) BEEEMGEE -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for A2: Use of Resources

finished products (in tonnes) and, if

applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.
A3 IRIEERAR | —REE WMIERETAHRBERRAREREKREKR|A3 - RIELRARER
BIR FENBR
A3: The General disclosure |Policies on minimizing the issuer’s A3: The Environment
Environment and significant impacts on the environment|and Natural Resources
Natural Resources and natural resources.
A3.1 AR B HIRERRAERNEKXN|A3  RERRXAER
FENMOCRDEEABEZENTH -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts |A3: The Environment
of activities on the environment and  |and Natural Resources

natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.
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B m

Aspects
B1 : &%

B1: Employment

—RIXTBEREAREX
BE

General disclosures
and KPlIs

— MR ER

General Disclosure

i

Description

ERHMEERE  BREREN - TEE

B FERE - 2l RESR

AR B8 R A& A A

(@) BE: &

(b) BTHETABBERZENHERE
eI TN

BB KY o

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and

regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to

compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and

other benefits and welfare.

HEZHE
Corresponding

section

B1 : 1B1&

B1: Employment

B1.1 RIER - EEBER - Fiedn MR | RIBEEHE
DHERB AR -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, Performance Data
employment type, age group and Summary
geographical region.

B1.2 RIER - FRARN MRS DHNEER | RRBIEBERHE
St o

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age | Performance Data

group and geographical region.

Summary
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Aspects
B2 : @ ML ®

B2: Health and
Safety

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

—RIXTBEREAREX
=F:d

General disclosures
and KPlIs

— MR ER

General Disclosure

Rig

i

Description

FARBLEZTIERERREEERR
BiEHErEEM:
(a) BE &
(b) BF¥ET

ENSEEN
B E KL o

Information on:

TABERZENRRE

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

HERERRE

HESH
Corresponding
section

B2 : f@EEHELE

B2: Health and Safety

B2.1 HTERIEMIL T H AN R - REHIERE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Performance Data
fatalities. Summary
B2.2 EIEBEAIHEBE- RRBEBEHE
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data
Summary
B2.3 IR R B R E R 2 25006 - LA (B2 - @R EL ®
MERATRERTIA -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and |B2: Health and Safety
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
3 BEERNMEI | —REE ERRTEERET TFREMMB M| B3« #EK&IEII

B3: Development

and Training

General Disclosure

BERVIRSR » fEAiZDIE S o

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training

activities.

B3: Development and

Training
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B m

— R R B K
58

General disclosures

i

HEZHE

Corresponding

Aspects and KPIs Description section
B3.1 RUERNMEEEN(MERERERE | RRBERHE
REREB)EITNZIREADL -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained |Performance Data
by gender and employee category Summary
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
B3.2 RERLEEERE D  BREE K | RRBBEHE
Al o
B3.2 The average training hours completed |Performance Data
per employee by gender and employee | Summary
category.
B4 : B T#A| |—KEE BREAMT L= Tesas] 8 TH B4 : &5 TR
(@ BE: &
(b) BTHETABBERTZENHERE
EISFER
AR -
B4: Labour General Disclosure |Information on: B4: Labour standards
Standards (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

labour.

B4.1 AR RIS E IR FE e AR R E T & (B4 : 85 T %A
SR T -

B4.1 Description of measures to review B4: Labour standards
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

B4.2 MR E RIS R HR B RAB AT B4 : 85 T AR
PREUH) B -

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate |B4: Labour standards

such practices when discovered.
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Aspects
B5 : e E 2
B5: Supply Chain

—RIXTBEREAREX
=F:d

General disclosures
and KPlIs

— MR ER

General Disclosure

RE-HERERBRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

i

Description
EEHERENREMERARER -

Policies on managing environmental

HEZHE

Corresponding

section
5: HEEER
B5: Supply chain

Management and social risks of the supply chain. management
B5.1 miEmE DR HEEEAE o RRBEBEHE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical |Performance Data
region. Summary
B5.2 AR REERHIED - MEHTT|B5 - HEEEIE
BERAEMHEEEEE - ARMEREKNIT
MEE A °
B5.2 Description of practices relating B5: Supply chain
to engaging suppliers, number of management
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
B6 : EmBE |—REE BRAMEHEMMRBOEREEZE - B6: EmE T

B6: Product
Responsibility

General Disclosure

BE BREELEBEENLRBRITE

Ky :

(@ BX: &

(b) BTHBETABEARTZENRZL
EIS TR

BE R -

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to health

and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods of

redress.

B6: Product
responsibility

B6.1

B6.1

EENCDELXEMEHTRLHER
EhmARKN A DL -

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety

and health reasons.

KRBBEHE

Performance Data

Summary
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B m

— R R B
58

General disclosures

%

i

HEZHE

Corresponding

Aspects and KPIs Description section

B6.2 REEREMNMEREORFEEANE | RRBERHE
L -

B6.2 Number of products and service Performance Data
related complaints received and how |Summary
they are dealt with.

B6.3 Mt BB ERRENBEREAHANE|Bo: EmAT
Bl o

B6.3 Description of practices relating to B6: Product
observing and protecting intellectual |responsibility
property rights.

B6.4 HlEEREBENMNERMOWEF > (Bo:EmBME

B6.4 Description of quality assurance B6: Product
process and recall procedures. responsibility

B6.5 MIEBEEERRELLERE - AN |B6: EmEE
HERITRER X -

B6.5 Description of consumer data B6: Product
protection and privacy policies, how |responsibility
they are implemented and monitored.

B7 : RES — R E BRI LLARRE - IR - MFFRARE |B7 : RES
Ky -
(@) BE: &
(b) BTHETABBERZENMERE
eI FAY
&R -

B7: Anti-corruption

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

B7: Anti-Corruption
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RiE

HERERRE

—REERBERENR
=g BEE it HEZHE
General disclosures Corresponding
Aspects and KPIs Description section
B7.1 EAEﬁ’zHﬂWﬁ TASERERLYE | REBERHE
REOWBEISHFARMTOEAE KRGS
% o
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Performance Data
regarding corrupt practices brought Summary
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
B7.2 Fet b SR b M B RAR T - A RAERAE (B - REDS
TTREEERTTIR -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures B7: Anti-Corruption
and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.
8 HRIRE |—REE BRANER2ERTH2EMELES B8 HEKRE

B8: Community

Investment

General Disclosure

ENBEREER IS EELBRFIED
BUR

Policies on community engagement

to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’

B8: Community

investment

interests.

B8.1 BEIEREE (NHE RKEFEFH %5 |B8: HEKE
IH:k @2 XMt -85) -

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. B8: Community
education, environmental concerns, investment
labour needs, health, culture, sport).

B8.2 EEIHRBMBIRER (M ENF | RAMEFE
) e

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or |Performance Data

time) to the focus area.

Summary
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EFRLBBRE_FoEFAASHAL
TEZREEREBHEAXZERAA
B

ZAN/N TIK%ﬁ%EﬁxéT Bt o

ARFNHBRRRBERRZ EEXER
HEBRAETE RN FEARKMNE
MERAEEDEERR RERERE -

REBAFERBEEBEEEE ZKRE
GRIE YN R R e R

EBER
FRAAEEFAEBHEREBERKER
EROMMEAENRAFREIZEEFE18E
WEFEREEAN MABASE A EES
B E b S T EABAE Z Rt - TREN S 61
BEEFSEMNGEERREAN KUK
WEEMABETEH T ASEE M B E R
EEEREBEK R-_TE_TFA=+H
FTFEREBRITEZEAINHAEEELE
MEREMNH AFWE2BRFIEEER
FUMBRME]  UMBERXRREZRSTR
SEFAKRE - I BRAEERRIEK
K HEBOEWRERREAEEEERTE
BARBERRRO 2 BTI5 2 Bl IR
FBOEEBIEMDEERAMER -
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The Directors submit to the shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates comprise property development, investment and
management in Hong Kong, Macau, the People’s Republic

of China and Malaysia.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to

the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 13
to 18 of this Annual Report. Description of possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 61
to 63. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. There is no important
event affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 30 June, 2020. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Years’
Summary on page 2 of this Annual Report. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 80 to 81.

Annual Report 2020 4 #
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EFEEHREE
Report of the Directors

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020
and the financial position of the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to
280.

An interim dividend of HK7.5 cents (2019: HK7.5 cents) per
share, totaling HK$46,565,000 was paid on 5 May 2020.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK5.0 cents (2019: HK15 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 25
November 2020, which together with the interim dividend
of HK7.5 cents (2019: HK7.5 cents) per share, makes a total
distribution of HK12.5 cents (2019: HK22.5 cents) per share
this year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 28 December
2020.

Particulars of dividends proposed and paid during the year

are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 29 and pages 139 to 140

respectively to the financial statements.

DONATIONS
There is no charitable donation made by the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2020.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and
property plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements respectively.

PROPERTIES

Details of the Group’s interest in properties are set out on
pages 281 to 284.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital are set out in note

29 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2020, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution amounted to HK$73,823,000 (2019:
HK$1,477,000).

BONDS

Details of the bonds of the Group are set out in note 17 to

the financial statements.

CAPITALISED INTEREST

The amounts of interest capitalized by the Group during the

year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the
Group’s principal associates as at 30 June 2020 are set out

in note 18 to the financial statements.
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RITERRHEMEE BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

KEBR T -_FTFA=Z+HZEITE The amounts of bank loans and other borrowings of the
AEREMEERAT : Group at 30 June 2020 were as follows:

£6
Group
BETFIT
HK$’000
RITE K Bank loans 1,272,271
EEEK Advances from a director 170,182
1,442,453

i
]
a
9
=

Repayment analysis:

IRITE R Bank loans
— LR —%F — within one year 1,261,920
—EE_F — in the second year -
—UEE=-EZFELF (BEERMT) — in the third to fifth years inclusive 10,351
1,272,271
BEEIAN Advances from a director
— & F R K - no fixed repayment terms 170,182
1,442,453

AREBZABEEEL R AL AE22.0% (= The Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 22.0%
T —NLEF :201%)  UMIRITTER R EME (2019:%) expressed as a percentage of bank loans and
BB AEBEEFEGNE - R17TERNE other borrowings over net assets of the Group. The ratio of
FEE Eﬁi%lzﬁﬂ“i\ﬁtbf”%msa 2% bank loans and advances from a director over the Group’s

—Z— % 88.0%) }11.8% (—ZF— 4. financial debts is 88.2% (2019: 88.0%) and 11.8% (2019:

F:12.0%) ° 12.0%) respectively.

HE TENA=1+H  AEBEAKAE Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances, bank loans

1;;21,%@&@&1—;?@\\ RITER MR EME and other borrowings were denominated in Ringgit

EAEKRAGESE ARBEETT o Malaysia, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar as at 30 June
2020.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
Ms. Chao Gigi (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Yung Philip

Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chao Howard
Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson
Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth
Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Mr. Chao Howard and Ms.
Ho Sau Fun Connie will retire at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

During the year and up to the date of this report, Messrs
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Chao Gigi, Yung Philip, Ho Sau
Fun Connie and Chao Howard are also directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Other directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Mr. Lee Siu Cheung (resigned on 15 November 2019)

Mr. Chan Tak Szy (appointed on 12 December 2019)

Ms. Haw Suat Tin
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Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
FRE iR
Lee Ding Yue, Joseph
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Ordinary Shares

Ordinary Shares
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biography of Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 30 June 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,

were as follows:

(i) Company
1B A 5

Personal interest

YLt

Corporate interests

31,831,292 442,848,323

1,765,767 -

Note: The shareholdings disclosed by Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
under the heading “Corporate Interests” in the above
represents the shares held by Yan Yin Company Limited
and Szehope Securities Company Limited, substantial

shareholders of the Company.

Annual Report 2020 463 | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((£8) AR AF C115)



EFEEHREE
Report of the Directors

(i) MEAF

MEBARBERE

Name of E=E
Subsidiaries Directors
Ace Cosmos Finance 8=

Limited

KARWERTARAESE ZZ=THA
By H %%/\#TE{TTWUE%$ Ellie%)
FER o

7

RZZE_TFNA=Z+8 KLl &
EEREBBASTEEGADASKEHK
NAIZBRD RN A B FIRIEFH K
R PIZE3S2 RN F R MR kiE =™
AIEEBFAHRHFAFTBRANARR T KB
R e

e

—

D) T %l

MAFERN - ARE - WBAF - BERH
B~ RS E &R B I R 2 B ] 1 5 AN
NAEFABEARASKEMAA 2 RN
B S I 1F R ek -

RBSFOFERBEZRBREERR
N-T_TEANA=1+H BHERBEKE
FIE336 B Rz BRM 228 B L
BEZEERERTRAS@EIN -
ARREAREFAFATHEARBREE
TRAES 2 A L2 = BHE% -

o
PN

% 116 ) CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((£@) HRAR |
O

Lee Ding Yue, Joseph

(if) Subsidiaries

(5PN 34 EEERE
IR A< Personal Corporate
Equity Interests Interests
A - 192 f&shares
Shares (1.92%)

The Company did not grant to the Directors, Chief Executive
or their associates any right to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares
of the Company or its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2020 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2020,
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that

the register of interests in shares

the Company had not been notified of any substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

Chief Executive as disclosed above.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There are no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, it is confirmed that
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float

under the Listing Rule.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the

Articles of Association of the Company.

STAFF

As at 30 June 2020, the Group employed 82 staff. Staff
remuneration packages are normally reviewed annually. The
Group also provides other staff benefits, which include year
end double pay and contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of related party transactions are set out in note 31 to
the financial statements and in the above under Directors’

interests in contracts.

SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during

the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the five largest suppliers and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for 50.6% and 23.8%

respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for 2.5% and 11.3%

respectively of the Group’s total turnover.

Save as aforesaid, at 30 June 2020, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Director has interest in any business which is,
either directly or indirectly, competing with the business of

the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 4 June 2018, the Company had entered into a Business

Service Agreement with Cecil Chao & Associates Limited
(“CCAL") and Cecil Chao Design (Macau) Limited (“CCA
Macau”) in respect of the provision of architectural,
engineering, design,
services by CCAL and CCA Macau to the Group. The
Agreement was entered for a fixed term of two years from
1 July 2018 to 30 June 2020. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is a
director and the ultimate owner of CCAL and CCA Macau.

project management and related

The maximum aggregate amounts payable by the Group
under the Business Service Agreement for the year ended
30 June 2019 and for the year ended 30 June 2020 are not
expected to exceed HK$24,150,000 and HK$24,150,000
(“the Cap”) respectively.

Given that the relevant percentage ratios in respect of the
maximum annual value of the Services to be provided by
CCAL and CCA Macau under the New Service Agreement,
on annual basis, are more than 1% but less than 5%,
the New Service Agreement is subject to reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements but are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 30 June 2020, the aggregate amount
of service fees in respect of the services paid by the Group
under the Business Service Agreement was HK$4,200,000,
which is within the annual cap for the said year of
HK$24,150,000 as disclosed in the announcement dated 4
June 2018.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that such transactions have been entered
into by the Group (a) in the ordinary course of business
of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms; and (c) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has performed review work in
respect of the continuing connected transactions under the
New Service Agreement for the year ended 30 June 2020
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has reported that nothing has come
to the Auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that
the said continuing connected transactions (a) have not
been approved by the Board; (b) were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group; (c) were not entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; or (d)
have exceed the annual cap as disclosed in the relevant
announcement of the Company. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in relation to the said continuing connected

transactions as disclosed above.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its Directors’ and senior management arising
from corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2020 were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, who will retire and a resolution to re-appoint Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company will

be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Cecil Sze Tsung Chao

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 September 2020
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Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 132
to 280, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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FREETEIE (&) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BB OAEEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRESEE
Key Audit Matter

REYE B E
Valuation of investment properties
BEBIR BRI E2. 5TAR B14H

Refer to Notes 2.5 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BPERENENETREFBRE

Our audit procedures in relation to the investment

RZE-TFA=+H  BEEFEFEER
REBEEENREYELIE?,084,875,000/%8
UC - RIEEWME QR EEE N4 45,840,000
BTEEZFENGEBRRPER -

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had — BFEMEREENHERS  WEEREEMMGE

properties included:

investment properties measured at
fair value amounted to approximately
HK$7,084,875,000 and an increase
in fair value of investment properties
of approximately HK$5,840,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the year then ended.

Bh et el M R A EMRANDEMEBRE

reviewed the valuation reports of the investment
properties and discussed with the management
and valuers to assess the methodologies and key

assumptions adopted in the valuation;

FHAEEMMEBRMBER MG - W HEMMNEER
et A EMNTEE B EMEN + K&

obtained the valuers’ qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement and evaluated
the objectivity, independence and competence of

the valuers; and
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AR ETEE (FH) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEE BB OAEEZSEE

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEBEREVENAABEMLTH EXE - FHETEMEZHERENENELL R MIGEE -
RIBAERWINE (B ERDETT B ER ERFEELES  RAYEHETREMBALKE
i B EAERAEG LG BREEES EEEKREMLEMAK -

ERETBRER - ELEYMEERBFERERM — evaluated the methodologies used and the key
ERBATATSEEREMETEMR I assumptions, such as capitalisation rate and market
2 HA R B EE TETELUY E rent, adopted in the valuation models based on
M5 S o market data, entity-specific historical information,
The estimate of fair values of the Group’s and the nature and composition of the Group’s
investment properties were assessed investment properties.

by the Group based on independent
valuations performed by qualified external
valuers, in which significant judgements
and estimation, including valuation
methodologies and key assumptions, are
used. These investment properties were
valued on market value basis on their
existing development stage and usage, and
by reference to recent market transactions
for similar properties in the same location

and condition.

BPEE—RE  DREEEFEEME
R Prs MV B ZMFAMAGT 2R ENET
BEME R AL -

We focused on this area because the
significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the property
valuations warrants specific audit focus and

attention on this area.
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A st = H ()

BAREITEE
Key Audit Matter

BT EYES A ZIFEILE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BB NAEEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Assessment of the net realisable value of properties held for sale

BREG A M ERE A IRAN 52 8 R E19H

Refer to Notes 2.8 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZF_TFXA=1H  EXEKEFE
Y H #)3%2,007,245,000% 7T °

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had
properties held for sale amounting to
approximately HK$2,007,245,000.

RAEGFEMERRKAMA B FERE 2R
K& SR - Al #BFEA KM HE BRI
EfGFF R AM B EMEMELENKA
AERFEHAKREZ2REERIIEIAER
L‘ﬁﬁ’ﬂé@ﬁ&i CHENARNFHEREYEDN
"""" BIFENEARHE MG - ZENFFE
%&Eﬂ%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ’]%aﬂﬁi%o 5 I1P B R
REBEE-Z-_ZFAA=ZTHILFENGTE
MERELRIE -
Properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in
selling the property. The net realisable value
was determined by the Group with reference
to the valuation performed by independent
qualified external valuers. Given the
significant judgment and estimates used
in assessing the net realisable value of
properties held for sale, such assessment
is considered significant to our audit.
Management concluded no impairment on
the properties held for sale was recognised
for the year ended 30 June 2020.

B GFENENETFRFERE
Our audit procedures in relation to properties held for

sale included:

- AMABERES  WEEREMGERMETS® - A
TERMEGEETERANITTEMER

— reviewed the valuation report and held discussions
with management and the valuers to understand
the methodologies and assumptions adopted in the

valuation of the properties;

- AHEAEMNEBRMB R - I 6P H B
iRt - FHEEEMOFEIE - B EMEEN

— obtained the valuers’ qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement and evaluated
the objectivity, independence and competence of

the valuers; and

— FEAEANTEARERTSEE HEERE
LEEBUEAEEREHENMEEMARDNGEER
AREANBERRR  mERAMEMHSES -

- evaluated the methodologies used and the key
assumptions, such as capitalisation rate and market
rent, adopted in the valuation models based on
market data, entity-specific historical information,
and the nature and composition of the Group’s

properties held for sale.
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REF R

VR % G
Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
If, based

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
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EFAERFZEENHH TRERTE
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5

BAMER  RYHSRAVHREAEEES T
FERNREFRERMEHHERNERR
AERGAEERE YHABRERMERLLN
ZBENRE - R LBEE QRGO
FA0SIRNRE - EMEEKEME © itk
SN I HE A AIEEERAE - &K
P TARARENARET  HEFMEEAL
BEIAEEREE-

BERBEKFHRE ETRERIIR
RIFEEFFENETHNERS X —&E
N $6FR PRI T B AR RE B 3R o FE SRR AL 7]
ARG ERRR S| HE - AR B IEFAHE
ERERERERAEZESEYBERRE
P& KRB B 15 ¥R R P AR H SR TE - R
BRANERBL AT RABIEERX -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control.
— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.

Annual Report 2020 463 | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t ((£8) AR AF 129 )



J—

;130>
@

BWAZB N RES

Ind

ependent Auditor’'s Report

BREMBRARE M ERREFAEEN

B (&)

T El

S

o 1E

HEERAKEKLSHERNGE
MAEL #m - IRIBPIEERMETRRE -
MEELFAEEFEKIBREHENE
AAMEEMN - Al e gy E&KE
IIFERE R NELEBARE - RHK
MRAFEERNTEENE  MIAELER
ZEH R ETIRBEREIEREY
BT EAERREE - A A RMEET
2 B FIEEERRMNER -
B & e E AR BED S B I PTES
FYERRHRAE © AT > RIRFIAKIE A

BREH BEXEETRIFELE -

FHESR AR RNERIIHRA N - 4
BMAZR > BEWNE ANV HR
REATERRMEBIZIMEIR -

B BERBEANEBIEFABNMBE
BEBGTRE - EENENRE  UESH
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Bt ERAEREEE -

CEEREI BMERFZEREAET
MWETEE AP EREFEFE

BRI ER BRI A E S
fA] K ERBA o

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12,

28 Hennessy Road,

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 September 2020

Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

L'ON Revenue
HEKAR Direct costs
EF Gross profit
H At Y A Other income
REMELAABEZE Changes in fair value of investment
properties
BARBERA Changes in fair value of financial
BazsemMEE assets at fair value through profit
DA EENEE or loss (“FVTPL")
THEM Administrative expenses
B 75 B AR Finance costs
BR B A1 & A Profit before income tax
PRS2 Income tax expense
TEERHELERN Profit for the year
THALTEERFEE Profit/(Loss) for the year
wBA () attributable to:
EN/NEIES TSN Owners of the Company
FEIE PR Non-controlling interests
YANVNEIEST DN Earnings per share for profit
S A FEER attributable to the owners of
ZEBRER the Company during the year
H K Basic
E Diluted

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ ((8) HR25 | Annual Report 2020 44t

K
Notes

14

12

12

SE L —E-nE
2020 2019

FER FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
552,880 201,541
(182,284) (55,335)
370,596 146,206
55,995 37,944
5,840 683,397
(9,294) (558)
(109,321) (68,854)
(36,382) (30,004)
277,434 768,131
(244,427) (166,478)
33,007 601,653
47,696 572,899
(14,689) 28,754
33,007 601,653
HK$0.08% T HK$0.99% 7T
HK$0.087% 7T HK$0.997% 7T




SRETHEWER
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

—E-FF —ET-hF
2020 2019
THET TET
HK$’000 HK$"000
AEFE R Profit for the year 33,007 601,653
Httz2mEmkE(XH) - Other comprehensive income/(expense)
2 HRBLIE for the year, net of tax
HigrEHmsRE Items that will be reclassified
BRMIER subsequently to profit or loss:
BARhEBEFAEMEZE Change in fair value of financial
Wz emEERAR assets at fair value through other
BEMNEE (BUH) comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
(recycling) (10,061) 5,419
BREBIINEBEFMBRRK Exchange loss on translation of
EAZEREE financial statements of foreign
operations (100,366) (298,094)
REGIAERHIEE Items that will not be reclassified
BEIEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
REFERALHRETF Change in fair value of land and
ARBEEZS buildings held for own use 728 2,914
H 2 TE W %5 B0 1 4B B BY Income tax relating to components of
F1E 5 other comprehensive income (120) (481)
REFHEMEPEX L Other comprehensive expense for the
2k 1A year, net of tax (109,819) (290,242)
AEEEE(ZE) WHEHLE Total comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year (76,812) 311,411
THATERERFERZE Total comprehensive (expense)/income
() Wz for the year attributable to:
AN/NCIESZSDN Owners of the Company (62,123) 282,657
JEE IR R Non-controlling interests (14,689) 28,754
(76,812) 311,411

IKEREFARGIFAAFBCDEHNEE Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company are
MEE11IEH - set out in Note 11.

Bfat - AEBERKEESTNERE BN Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July

E-NFLHA-BUTEBEEYBE 2019, using the modified retrospective approach. Under
WMEEBEI6IE - LU FET - LW this approach, comparative information is not restated
BRI gEl  MEaREREEVHR and the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS
HHRABIGENRFTZERERER 16 is recognised in retained profits at the date of initial
HEAERBE G AP FERR © 5F RMIFES o application. See Note 3.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZFEZFEA=1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Other non-current asset

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Properties under development
for sale

Completed properties for sale

Other financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Other payables

Contract liabilities

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders

Amount due to a related company

Interest-bearing borrowings

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Notes

14
15
16
17
27

19
19
17

20

21
22

23
24

25
25
26
28

—E_ETHF —E—-hF
2020 2019
FHE T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
7,084,875 7,659,411
42,365 39,124
950 950
184,232 171,922
16,290 14,780
7,328,712 7,886,187
1,496,021 1,496,668
511,224 445,141
6,472 1,626
458,046 250,217
30,333 45,799
1,236,667 595,454
3,738,763 2,834,905
151,611 191,268
436,470 306,600
239,990 239,990
1,547 1,381
1,261,920 1,163,687
2,627 -
989,395 529,342
3,083,560 2,432,268
655,203 402,637
7,983,915 8,288,824
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZFEZFH,XA=1H AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

—BCEBHF —B-hF
2020 2019
B &t THERT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
BREE Interest-bearing borrowings 26 10,351 10,108
BEEB Advance from a director 31(a) 170,182 159,182
HEBE Lease liabilities 28 1,004 _
ELERIBA®E Deferred tax liabilities 27 1,070,462 1,289,825
1,251,999 1,459,115
EEFE Net assets 6,731,916 6,829,709
s EQUITY
f% 7 Share capital 29 2,441,551 2,326,486
fE Reserves 4,114,072 4,312,241
ARBEEAERGER Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 6,555,623 6,638,727
FIERESR Non-controlling interests 176,293 190,982
BB Total equity 6,731,916 6,829,709
iRl H Ik 4
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil Yung Philip
EE EFE
Director Director

Bret . AEBEEREEITNERNE 2R = Note:
T-NFELtA-BNPERBEBEBYE
WMEERFEISR HEUTIET » &

BRI EEL - hEXERAEEMBR
EEANBIMNRARTEN B RER
H R E N PR - FERRES -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July
2019, using the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, comparative information is not restated
and the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS
16 is recognised in retained profits at the date of initial

application. See Note 3.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

RETHRERE Cash flows from operating activities
B 5t AT 7 Profit before income tax
HHE Adjustments for:
M - MR RREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
EREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets
B A Dividend income
A B A Interest income
LRIV Finance costs
BREMELAEBEZE Changes in fair value of investment
properties
HEZRANABETAEZZE  Gain on disposal of financial assets at
BE EER FVTPL
HEREMEER Gain on disposal of investment
properties

@Tﬁ@xﬁjﬁﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬁ Loss on redemption of financial assets
2EKE M AERE  at FVTOC
HEDE B LRMFEERE  Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
BRARBEFAER Zir"ﬁﬁ Change in fair value of financial assets
ENBRZAABEE and liabilities at FVTPL
fE H E=%E Exchange difference

REESBEA 2L EEF  Operating profit before working capital

changes
FEWEMLD(EM) Decrease/(Increase) in properties held
for sale
S NEMmEWERFURL Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other
(i jJD) receivables
HibEMBEFR O ) /30 (Decrease)/Increase in other payables
E\Z']EJ 12N Increase in contract liabilities
HEE AR BEFAIEIEZ  Proceeds from disposal of financial
TRMEEMB-—NAEB assets at FVTPL-equity securities
TR E 25 listed in Hong Kong
BEERANEBEFG AER Purchase of financial assets
ZEMEE-RBEBLD at FVTPL-equity securities listed
PR 7R 7 55 in Hong Kong
RETHREXZRE Cash generated from operations
EERRE TN Finance costs paid
B P1S T Profit tax paid

L TETEL R 2 FFE Net cash generated from operating
activities
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—s-2x —hi
2020 2019
FE T FA7T
HK$/000 HK$’000
277,434 768,131
711 1,867
3,352 -
(632) (227)
(37,866) (25,975)
36,382 30,004
(5,840) (683,397)
(607) (49)
(15,611) (11,105)
1,247 -
3 —
9,294 558
49,566 (59,543)
317,433 20,264
44,043 (3,109)
22,784 (3,024)
(38,453) 38,414
136,125 116,143
6,722 -
(38,638) (1,530)
450,016 167,158
(36,416) (28,277)
(142,934) -
270,666 138,881
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ReERBESEENZ
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ExSBOYE HAERS

FRZEASTRREEEY

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividend income

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of investment properties

New fixed deposits with original
maturity of over three months
placement of

Release of fixed deposits with original

maturity of over three months
placement of
Release of pledged bank balances

Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL-

short-term investment
Proceeds from disposal of financial

assets at FVTPL-short-term investment

Proceed from disposal of investment
properties

Redemption of financial assets at
FVTOCI

Purchase of financial assets at FVTOCI

Proceed from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid
New bank and other loans raised
Repayment of bank loan
Increase in advances from a director

Advance/(Repayment) of amount due to

a related company
Payment of capital element of lease
liabilities

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,
on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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GEHEREXR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

—E-%HF —E-NF
2020 2019

FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
632 227
37,383 26,557
(435) (790)
(12,221) (93,063)

= (193,368)

193,368 195,632
28 6,209
(1,225,457) (242,278)
1,045,058 210
514,681 107,968
3,129 -
(31,593) -

7 —

524,580 (192,696)
(20,845) (24,131)
597,792 140,950
(499,559) (180,950)
11,000 30,400
166 (71)
(2,840) -
85,714 (33,802)
880,960 (87,617)
398,298 518,393
(46,351) (32,478)
1,232,907 398,298
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

—B-®F —E-hF
2020 2019
THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BITEEFEREATZEEY Analysis of the balances of cash and
EER DM cash equivalents
EEFEREVBAKRHEKES] 2 Bank balances and cash as stated in
RITEFEE® consolidated statement of financial
position 1,236,667 595,454
B BB EARE Less: Fixed deposits with original
TFHIER maturity of over three months - (193,368)
o BRIRIEITEE Less: Pledged bank balances (3,760) (3,788)
1,232,907 398,298

Aret . AEEERKEITNERE ER=
T-NFELA-RUFEREEME
WEEBEIH - LT IET - LW
BRI GEL - hEXEREBMBR
SEAF16FNRFAZERNERER
HEAER R & P iR 5F RIIE3 -

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July
2019, using the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, comparative information is not restated
and the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS
16 is recognised in retained profits at the date of initial

application. See Note 3.
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FRERZENL/ ()

AEENRERBHRREL
ZELER

B0LBEAR SRS
ZEHARLABERD (MR
ITHRBTERES

A RERETDRENFER

FREE(RE)/RALE

BHEREHA=Z-)
KERE (W)

B EREEN-Z-NE
wEBRE (i)
Bkt
fganEs

“FNERAZTRER

Balance at 1 July 2018

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income/(expense) for the year:
Exchange loss on translation
of financial statements
of foreign operations
Change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI (recycling)
Surplus on revaluation of
land and building
Income tax relating to components of

other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive (expense)/

income for the year

2018 final dividend approved
and paid (Note 11)
2019 interim dividend approved
and paid (Note 11)
Issue of share capital:
Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme

Balance at 30 June 2019

- E——

GEEEETER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

KARREARGRR
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

BAREE

iARHEE

2R
kx BERE  NRERRE  EE(EYR) REER 4% FEREE L

Financial

assets at

fair value

through other

Property  comprehensive
Share Exchange revaluation reserve Retained Non-controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* (recycling)* profits* Total interests equity
TR ThR TR Thn TERL TR TER TERL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

(Hit29a)
(Note 29(a))

2,221,269 (80,850) 25,727 (12,536) 4,226,591 6,380,201 162,228 6,542,429
- - - - 572,899 572,899 28,754 601,653
- (298,094) - - - 298,094) - (298,094)
- - - 5419 - 5419 - 5419
- - 2014 - - 2914 - 2914
- - (481) - - (481) - (481)
- (298,094) 2143 5419 572,699 280,657 28754 311411
- - - - (85,457) (85,457) - (85,457)
- - - - 43,891) (43,801) - 43,891
105,217 - - - - 105,217 - 105,217
2,326,486 (378,944) 26,160 717 4,670,142 6,038,727 190,982 6,829,709
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

KRARAARLRER
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
BOAEE
TARKEE
EEZER
k& BEER  NREMER  EE(EYWH): REER 3] FERER 3
Financial
assefs at
fair value
through other
Property  comprehensive
Share Exchange revaluation reserve Retained Non-controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* (recycling)* profits* Total interests equity
Tin TERL T Tin T TR TER T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
(Wit29a)
(Note 29(a))
Z5-hEtR-RER Balance at 1 July 2019 2,326,486 (378,944) 28,160 (7,117) 4,670,142 6,638,727 190,982 6,829,709
RRERMBRLEN Adjustment from the adoption of
F16FAR W) HKERS 16 (Note 3) - - = = (136) (136) o (136)
ZE-NECA-AEARER Adjusted balance at 1 July 2019 2,326,486 (378,944) 28,160 7,117) 4,670,006 6,638,591 190,982 6,829,573
FRgi/ (B8 ProfitLoss) for the year - = = = 47,69 47,696 (14,689) 33,007
EhEf2ERE/ (2H) Other comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year:
BEENEBRBURARELL Exchange loss on translation of financial
EipE statements of foreign operations - (100,366) - - - (100,366) - (100,366)
RO EH MR ENEL Change in fair value of financial assets
SRAELARENRD (BAS)  atFVTOC fecycling - - - (10,061) - (10,061) - (10,061)
THRETERER Surplus on revaluation of land and
building - - 78 - - 78 - L
Bt 2ERETRRBNFER Income tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income - - (120) - - (120) - (120)
ERRE (X)) /AEE Total comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year - (100,366) 608 (10,061) 47,69 (62,123) (14,689) (76,812)
2019 final dividend approved and paid
(Note 11) - - - = (89,345) (89,345) - (89,345)
2020 interim dividend approved and paid
Ji (Note 1) - - - - (46,565) (46,565) o (46,505)
LUK Issue of share capfal: i
RENRR S Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme 115,065 = - = = 115,065 - 115,065
ZEIRERAZTRER Balance at 30 June 2020 2,441,551 (479,310) 28,768 (17,178) 4,581,792 6,555,623 176,293 6,731,916
* HREBREBE2IEFESM BRI * These reserve accounts comprise the Group’s
K ARER 7 FEEA4,114,072,00078 reserves of approximately HK$4,114,072,000 (2019:
TL(ZZF— N5 1 4,312,241,00087C) ° HK$4,312,241,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
BaE: AEEFAKETHNEMPE BN Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July

TZ-NFELtA-RBNPERBBYE
HEEAMEIH - U T AT @ LW

2019, using the modified retrospective approach. Under

this approach, comparative information is not restated

BRI EEL - hEXERAEEMBR
HEAF16FNRFAFERERER
HEAER B & P iR 5F RIE3 -

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =4t (£8) ARAR

and the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS

16 is recognised in retained profits at the date of initial

application. See Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—REHR

B (EE)ARRB(ARRTFL T—
MEEFBEMKILZBREERR K
AR Z Mt B E XMW E #
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ARRABREMBAR (FHEIANEE])
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RN EE 2 SRR B ISR ©

AREBMZEZXBEHR/YMERERM
REMRBEHMEETELEBBERS -
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—t+ABHETIEE -
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a

limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the
annual report and, its principal place of business is
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
controlled by Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin”), a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. At the reporting date, the directors consider
the ultimate parent company of the Group is also Yan
Yin.

The Group is principally engaged in property
development and investment and provision of property

management and related services.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020 were approved for issue by the
board of directors on 29 September 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. TEETHERRBE

1. 4B B %

BN EI132B EF2808 2 F E4r
EUBBRERDBREEGHMAE
([BEEGFMAg) BH2EE
M mEER (BB HREE
all) - ke eEmEEAER
ZEBMBREER BEGIE
Al((HEgT £ kZREBELSE
BELBREAZEHRAMER -

R EMER M EBERZEFBRA
BOIZHRE - TRBNEEBBA
RGMAERARZES LML ZE
R ERE -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
on pages 132 to 280 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (“Listing Rules”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. TESFTHERBE (&) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1. #m I B 2% () 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
REVBRERBERALTES .:JFBI The significant accounting policies that have been
B AT o (R B AHETEEZEI « 1 used in the preparation of these consolidated
LERTHEER E%Pﬁﬁ:‘i&&rgg@ financial statements are summarised below. These
JER o BRIMFTET BT 2 BAM policies have been consistently applied to all
TR & 2 Al S B3 N & B B A5 AR the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
22 (A ) ERMIFE3 FHE - adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the

impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in Note 3.

TG RRILRE R AN AR EL The financial statements have been prepared on the

METHARREBEYEERRI historical cost basis, except for:

- BREWE: — investment properties;

- BEAnBEFABmRZEHE — financial assets at fair value through profit or
E loss (“FVTPL");

- REARBEFAHEMEZEK — financial assets at fair value through other
HIZEMEE & comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”); and

- PE - #SEARENLHRE — land and building classified under property,
F plant and equipment

FRAGFEEERTIGHBERF which are stated at fair values. The measurement

I bases are fully described in the accounting policies

below.

JESEE N R EHRERE S et It should be noted that accounting estimates

et RRK - BEXSEET HIRE and assumptions are used in preparation of the

EEEHAMEHRTHZHEER financial statements. Although these estimates

MEAGIEL - HERERKRK are based on management’s best knowledge and

CHZEGEAEHA - FRES judgement of current events and actions, actual

RBEHESRAEM EHE - R results may ultimately differ from those estimates.

FREFTHVBREMSBERZ The areas involving a higher degree of judgement

HISS N F4KE - or complexity, or areas where assumptions and

estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. FESHBERE (F)

2.2 ImEERE

RAMBmMREBIEARRE R EN B
’Aﬁjﬁii/_\ﬂz—i—ﬁz,ﬂﬁ%i&
= o

MEARAARNEEZEGINELR - K
FEEH —FEER  ZETHEREEX
BB R EIWﬁéﬁ%E@E’TET%f
RESATEMEE - WA
HZEENEITEE %0
Eﬂﬁil{?%%ﬁﬁ%%%_/ﬁ\ﬁ%ﬂ

CEERBEEMEN(BEE X
ET’@E%%) °

AREBBESZEFEAESHER
Al Z WA R G B ARG TSR
KA BEIAREE A BB B
NAEIZ AR -

RERAMBHREE - REARARTA
B35 - MR ORI Y N B 18
s %ﬁﬁ SEARFIHEEHE
ZABHREERGAS KRB A
MAREETSEUANEE 2 AEE
TTRERIE - B QR M EHRET
ERNSHECRLERELFE
IARER AR IR SRR —
By o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power over the
entity, only substantive rights (held by the Group

and other parties) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statement of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

2. TESTTHERE (&)

2.2 GEERE(E)

IR TBNARRINE
ESEEMBARMRERE  MAE
B B SRR A AR B
BN - BRAREERBANOE
NesMBEEENMENERS -
HREBEEBEH  NEEFE
BUAR R EESZNE AR AR
FEER LB 0 Be SR & 8 (AR SFIE

MRS o

IR S AR B M ISR R IARE
mEY  WERARBERTE AR
R D HZ2 - EAREFEET
FFEREREEARERIEGEER
Wz R 0 Bl 2 5 3% FF IR AR
m RN ERERRE AR D A B
B IE N 2 WS AR -
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Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income respectively for
the year between non-controlling interests and the

owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

2. TESTHERE (&)

2.2 REERZE (&)
ERRQB M B@ERS - BB AT
PR AR A FE(RDR (B ZE 7 - BR IEa% M
BARIEINARFEIELEXBIE
FEHESED o AR TR AR B
EEERENEESIBTRENE
B KANEBRFBRENEEKAR -

RARFHEMBARNRERERE
HE BWE L ERB BB E o
WUE T 2 Al sl 2 R U B9 P AR
BHEARRAHIBZ P HER

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also

includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

2. TESTTHERE (&)

2.3 HEEIRE

MEBENETEH - HMARA
T2 T aE T o

A ARERZERMEHRRAR
TIMEZ SRR 5 H 2 T iHER
TEBZMENERZIIESERE - 1
BER MINEFHEZEBREBEN
BERGEERHERGRE - GEIR
REMRGEERBNBREEREE
NMEBEMELEL ZHNER 5
RIEm R PR -

A AREESIRBAINEETE Z3E
E%I\E - DIREEAAEBEEHR
MER]ME - JER A EERZ
EEHE PR 2 o UE £ RAET
EZEHHEBMIERRE (B
RERRHE B RRRETR
") -

s

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated (i.e. only translated

using the exchange rates at the transactions date).
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2. FESHBERE (F)

2.3 SR E (&)

REREMIFHREK - FIBRIEAARE
E2HEWUINEE 25 Z2FH
EBERTBHRE - ARFE RS
T BERABHUGEER 2K
[ERFrE /BT - WA AR
R 5 B IE 2 g (i FE 2 3 8 K 08K
B2BART) BRI 2 T R
FrE/BTT - At mELE 2 E =
BYONEEANZBREREBEE LK
g e

REESIERBHEARAEER
HINEFEH 2 E R - P KR
HEEEINEF M B A T A 1E
OHE)MS @ ZEBEGHA
BRIAEAEZBEYBENASEEH
DIEEEL o URTR BN IEERE
mEEAE N ZEH R IEER -
BrEEH>EEEZE -

MR B BINETH T RBHETT
BERE (Al AREEHIE) - AIR
;HrI:EL#%E?HE%ﬁ P IR IR 1A
A NEBREPER - HRAA
ﬁm*ﬁfﬁFE(EﬂTﬁ&mEE’]
ERAIHAERFNEAER) -
RETIER ZR L I BEF 0 1R

EEmE e

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into Hong Kong dollars.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately

in the exchange reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to
non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they

are not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e., no loss of
control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e., of
associates or joint venture not involving a change
of accounting basis), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to

profit or loss.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

2. TESTTHERE (&)

2.4 MR- HERRE

W~ MR MRk s (M EE2.1290 B
AL R B E AR SN AR
BEAL HERKN(BREER
A5 & B 88 7 2= P 8 /O 3 36 A
RUEPMEEMEMMAAR) R - F
BN ImBRAREE R ENTRAH#ETT
& BBRIEANBE REHITE M
REFtRERBEE (WBE) K -BT
s EMARTTEE B A EY
S BRI AR E REHTE M
REtRERK (WE) HIK -

MITER R B BB R M) 5 IA
RABERERFFTEMRTRIE
BE @A) K BHAKTER
s W P HER - WEF AR T
WIMEEHRFHEE] - MREFEE
18z FE R B4 RUE SORE
18 RIEHIRES AR - B
B RIEHE MRS WP R [
N E ARG SORE R R R
R RS BEEEZEERRE
ST EAEGRHNERR
PR IR RSB ENSLEA
FRAHEAMER G Y -

Property, plant and equipment (other than cost
of right-of-use assets as described in Note 2.12)
are initially recognised at acquisition cost,
manufacturing cost (including any cost directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Group’s
management). Except for land and building held
for administrative purpose as described below, they
are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Land and building held for administrative
purpose are stated at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other
comprehensive income and credited to “property
revaluation reserve” in equity. To the extent that
any revaluation decrease or impairment loss has
previously been recognised in profit or loss, a
revaluation increase is credited to profit or loss
with the remaining part of the increase recognised
in other comprehensive income. Downward
revaluations are recognised upon appraisal or
impairment testing, with the decrease being
charged to other comprehensive income to the
extent of any revaluation surplus in equity relating
to this asset and any remaining decrease recognised

in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2020 463 | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t (££8) AR AF 149)



—

GEMBREME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2. TESTHERE (&)

2.4 Y% - HBERRE (E)

FERRBEEZERAEEZ B
REMGFAIERFHEKAERE
E1ENRR REHRE R B REER A
HROLRRTIRITE - HEFITERN

T -

T KT 20,
R REREFE

B 10%

B N B 20%

HEMEEE 33%3k HIEE

FAFR

(A& 2

BEE)

BEZRREE FEFTERARE
REfeanes@laE BETRN R

B -

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

Land and building 2%
Furniture, fittings and office

equipment 10%
Motor vehicles and accessories 20%

Leasehold improvement 33% or over the
remaining term
of the lease, if

shorter

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each reporting date.
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2. TESTTHERE (&)

2.4

2.5

MR - R RRE (E)

& W s Sk B 1R TY DA S5 & P S 5008
HEMEERTEIERMET
W s P FERR » A B i Mg
FH - ENEHBEKEEBRERE
i AP M FE R P e

PERAAAEBEEEE ZRMER
ERBIEREBIEE - R SER
BBz RREEREGE TR
AREE R MZIER 2 BRARBER] 5
HWEE - FIEHMBEERREEMN
EEREFzEmRPIHE-

BREWE

BEMETER ARSI ERS
2Tk HEF (RME2.12)
BEESWA KR RKESFHE -
M EBIFREFE M ARE AR
2 R B E sk 3R R R A E
BEYEZYE -

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation
surplus remaining in equity is transferred to
retained profits upon disposal of land and building

and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 2.12) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties include completed properties
and investment properties under development for
continued future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value.
Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers, with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and nature of the investment
property. The carrying amounts recognised at
the reporting date reflect the prevailing market

conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.

For a transfer from completed properties for sale
to investment property that will be carried at fair
value, any difference between the fair value of
the property at that date and its previous carrying

amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments
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Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised
when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial

assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance
with HKFRS 15, all financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, in case of a financial asset
not at FVTPL, plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at

FVTPL are expensed in the profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

Financial assets are classified into the following

categories:

amortised cost

- FVTPL; or

- FVTOCI.

The classification is determined by both:

— the entity’s business model for managing the

financial asset; and

—  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within finance costs or other income, except for
expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables

which is presented within administrative expenses.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and

collect its contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted
where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
Group’s trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash fall into this category of financial

instruments.

Annual Report 2020 %:# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t (%) AR/AH (155)



J—

Aa MR E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTOCI — recycling
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If the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collection
of contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in profit or
loss of ECL, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to

profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different
business model other than “hold to collect” or
“hold to collect and sell” are categorised at FVTPL.
Further, irrespective of business model, financial
assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest are accounted
for at FVTPL. This category includes structured
deposit.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

2. TESTTHERE (&)

2.6 E@MIA(E)

TREE (&)
EHEENEATE (F)

BRERE

RAEZFRED RRRAAEER
ANBHmZ EMEE  RIFZBRAR
ETRRHAFEENEMNMES -
I BEIAHERZIRER - AN&EE
EEREBEBERRAABEFAR
o2 mEd s (DA EUR) - thiREE
RAEZFETAEMER LETH - B
REERENERTANARHRK
REVERR A ETT

A3

7N 5 B R BRI B RO R RSB
ZEED TARENRERBRT
R -NEESEBEmTHNIHEM
YA SR e

TERAE
THEEN T EAE

REBOERBEBREA BERM
B% HERIE - EMEMNRIHM
BEiE 07 AN SRIR (B 1A RN FRHE R
PREREVFRIE ~ BB R B HV IR
MEBBEEK) °

eMBEHERGRIN ZAR
BEAETTVHAE  TEBEARKR
BRRAETRABREAAEE
FAFABREZERARE-

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Equity investment

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition
of the investment, the Group elects to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling). Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but only be made if the investment meets the

definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Dividends are included in the “other

income” in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include interest-
bearing borrowings, lease liabilities, other payables
and advances from related parties (including
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amount due to a related company and advance

from a director).

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities)
are initially measured at fair value, and, where
applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the

Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method except for derivatives
and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which
are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or

losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges that are reported in

profit or loss are included within finance cost.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in
Note 2.12.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

2.7

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Other payables and advances from related parties

Other payables and advances from related parties
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise ECL —
the “ECL model”. Instruments within the scope
included loans and other debt-type financial assets

measured at amortised cost and FVTOCI.

The Group considers a broader range of
information when assessing credit risk and
measuring ECL, including past events, current
conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future

cash flows of the instrument.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In applying this forward-looking approach, a

distinction is made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage

1”); and

— financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 27).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date. However, none of the Group’s financial assets

fall into this category.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1
category while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the

Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over

the expected life of the financial instrument.
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2. FESHBERE(E) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering
the potential for default at any point during the life
of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience and
external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics

and the days past due.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables, debt investment at FVTOCI and bank
balances and cash equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of default

occurring since initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the reporting date with the risk of
default occurring on the financial assets at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if

available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default

swap prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in

the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration

in the operating results of the debtor;
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower

to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by

the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, debt investment at FVTOCI and other
financial assets measured at amortised cost are set
out in Note 33.2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale include completed

properties for sale and properties under

development for sale and are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

(i)

(i)

Properties under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see Note 2.18).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion

and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Completed properties for sale

In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs

to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.
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2. FESHBERE(E) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.

2.10 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2.15) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 2.7 and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has

become unconditional (see Note 2.6).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see Note 2.15). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be

recognised (see Note 2.6).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are

not presented on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtors fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within “other payables”. The fair
value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under
the debt instruments and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for
assessing the obligations. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of

any deferred income.

Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured at
the higher of the amount determined in accordance
with ECL under HKFRS 9 as set out in Note 2.7
and the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised over the guarantee period.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Leases
(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019

For any new contracts entered into on or after
1 July 2019, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is
defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract,
that conveys the right to use office premises
(the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration’. To apply this
definition, the Group assesses whether the
contract meets three key evaluations which are

whether:

— the contract contains an identified asset,
which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made

available to the Group;

— the Group has the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset throughout
the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contract;

and

— the Group has the right to direct the use of
the identified asset throughout the period
of use. The Group assesses whether it
has the right to direct ‘how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the

period of use.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Leases (Continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

(Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a

lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. The right-of-use asset is
measured at cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset at the end of the lease,
and any lease payments made in advance of
the lease commencement date (net of any

incentives received).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Policy applicable from 1 July 2019 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a

lessee (Continued)

Except for those right-of-use assets meeting
the definition of investment properties and
those relating to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which revaluation model was
applied, the Group depreciates the right-of-
use assets on a straight-line basis from the
lease commencement date to the earlier of the
end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset
or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at
the end of the lease term. The Group also
assess the right-of-use asset for impairment
when such indicator exists. Those right-of-
use assets meeting the definition of investment
properties or relating to a class of property,
plant and equipment to which revaluation
model was applied are subsequently measured
at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies.

At the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments unpaid at that
date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group’s incremental

borrowing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Leases (Continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

(Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a

lessee (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are made up of fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed
payment) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable payments based on an index or rate,
amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee. The lease payments
also included the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonable certain to be exercised
by the Group and payment of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects

the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability
will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest cost on the lease liability.
It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment
or lease modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as expense in the
period on which the event or condition that

triggers the payment occurs.

When the lease is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the
right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-

of-use asset is already reduced to zero.
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(Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a

lessee (Continued)

The Group has elected to account for short-
term leases using the practical expedients.
Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, the payments in relation to these
lease are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term

of 12 month or less.

Right-of-use assets are included in the property,

plant and equipment.

Applicable before 1 July 2019

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment of a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Leases (Continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

Applicable before 1 July 2019 (Continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the

following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and,
if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a

finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building
situated thereon, at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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2. TEEHHERBE () 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2,124 (&) 2.12 Leases (Continued)
(a) HEZESERFEBBFAEA (a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

(#4&) (Continued)

AR -_ZE—NF+H—HZ Applicable before 1 July 2019 (Continued)

A (#)

(i) AEANKEHEER (ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee
MAEEERERAKLENE Where the Group has the right to use
EfFEBECEE - HIIRE of assets held under operating leases,
MEMX Mz RESRME payments made under the leases are
EFHNERFEREE charged to profit or loss on a straight line
R EAEMANE basis over the lease terms except where an
BEREFHEBEZEA alternative basis is more representative of
RN REMEEEBE - I the time pattern of benefits to be derived
W EEEEBRTE from the leased assets. Lease incentives
RREXNMEFES B received are recognised in profit or loss as
HIAERK B 73 o an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments made.

(b) ZXEBEZHEA (b) The Group as a lessor

EALEMA  AEEBEHRE As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as
DTREAKREHENREMEE - either operating or finance leases.
INREEEE FER T EER A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
EEFMBEEBBENME AR transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
M - B ERREEE incidental to ownership of the underlying asset,
IMRTER - AIDBARKEMR and classified as an operating lease if it does
g- not.

AREETREREMENLE The Group also earns rental income from
HERIE KA - HE WA operating leases of its investment properties.
EHEERRNIRERERER - Rental income is recognised on a straight-line

basis over the term of the lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is recognised at the amount of consideration
of shares issued, after deducting any transaction
costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the

equity transaction.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue arises from the sale of properties held
for sale, rental income under operating leases and

estate management income.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the

Group follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer.

2. ldentifying the performance obligations.

3. Determining the transaction price.

4. Allocating the transaction price to the

performance obligations.

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance

obligation(s) are satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time
or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the

promised goods or services to its customers.

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties recognised
when (or as) the control of the property is
transferred at a point in time. Revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains the
physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the

consideration is probable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Sales of properties (Continued)

Deposits received from purchasers prior to
delivery of the properties to the customers are

contract liabilities.

For contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised property or service exceeds one
year, the transaction price is adjusted for the

effects of a significant financing component.

Rental income

Accounting policies for rental income are set
out in Note 2.12(b).

(iii) Estate management income

(iv)

v)

Revenue is recognised in the period when

services are rendered.

Interest income

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of ECL

allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income

Revenue from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Impairment of non-financial assets
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Property, plant and equipment, other non-current
asset and interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing. All such assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the

asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating

unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the assets
in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value

in use, if determinable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

2.17 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided

through several defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a

percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries that
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. This subsidiary is required
to contribute 10% of its payroll costs to the central

pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions

payable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)
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Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

2.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income earned on the temporary investment
of the specific borrowing, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are complete.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit

or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused

tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For investment property measured using the fair
value model in accordance with the accounting
policy above, the measurement of the related
deferred tax liability or asset reflects the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amount
of the investment property entirely through sale,
unless the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to

set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the chief operating decision maker for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service

lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable

segments:

Property sales;

—  Property rentals;

Estate management; and

—  Others — securities trading.

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried

out at arm’s length prices.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that finance
costs, income tax, corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating

segment.

Segment assets include all assets but bank balances
and cash, deferred tax asset, investments in
other financial assets (including financial assets
at FVTOCI), land and building and corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not
allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to

the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment. These include tax payable,

deferred tax liabilities and certain borrowings.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to

reportable segments.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to

the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group
and the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close family members of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs
New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for

annual periods beginning or after 1 July 2019

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new and amended HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated

financial statements for the annual period beginning on

1 July 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior

periods have been prepared and presented.
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HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning or after 1 July 2019
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” along with three
Interpretations (HK(IFRIC)-Int4 “Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC) — Int 15
“Operating Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC) — Int 27
“Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease”). HKFRS 16 has been
applied using the modified retrospective approach,
with the cumulative effect of adopting HKFRS 16 being
recognised in equity as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits for the current period. Prior

periods have not been restated.

For contracts in place at the date of initial application,
the Group has elected to apply the definition of a lease
from HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC) — Int 4 and has not
applied HKFRS 16 to arrangements that were previously
not identified as lease under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4.

As a Lessee

The Group has elected not to include initial direct
costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset
for operating leases in existence at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, being 1 July 2019. The
Group measure the right-of-use assets as if HKFRS 16
had always been applied since the commencement
date of the lease (other than discounting using the
relevant incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16).
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning or after 1 July 2019
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
As a Lessee (Continued)

Instead of performing an impairment review on the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application,
the Group has relied on its historic assessment as to
whether leases were onerous immediately before the

date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

On transition, for leases previously accounted for as
operating leases with a remaining lease term of less
than 12 months, the Group has applied the optional
exemptions to not recognise right-of-use assets but to
account for the lease expense on a straight-line basis

over the remaining lease term.

On transition to HKFRS 16 the weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities
recognised under HKFRS 16 was 3.45%.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning or after 1 July 2019
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
As a Lessee (Continued)

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease
commitments at 30 June 2019 to the lease liabilities

recognised at 1 July 2019:

TET
HK$’000

Total operating lease commitments disclosed

at 30 June 2019 6,572
Recognition exemptions:
— Leases with remaining lease term of less

than 12 months (8)

Operating leases liabilities before discounting 6,564
Discounting using incremental borrowing rate
as at 1 July 2019 (268)

Total lease liabilities recognised under HKFRS
16 at 1 July 2019

6,296

Classified as:
Current lease liabilities 2,677
Non-current lease liabilities 3,619
6,296
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning or after 1 July 2019
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)
As a Lessee (Continued)
The following table summarises the impact of transition
to HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position at 1 July 2019:

THET
HK$'000

Increase in right-of-use assets
(included in property, plant and equipment) 6,160
Increase in current lease liabilities 2,677
Increase in non-current lease liabilities 3,619
Decrease in retained profits (136)

As a Lessor

Upon initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group is not
required to make any adjustment on transition for leases
in which the Group is a lessor but account for these
leases in accordance with HKFRS 16. Comparative

information is not restated.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have

not been adopted early by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform!
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material'

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®
Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use*
Onerous Contracts-Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!
Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018 - 2020*

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

° Effective date not yet determined

7 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisition for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

8 Effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2022.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy
for the first period beginning on or after the effective
date of the pronouncement. Information on new and
amended HKFRSs that are not expected to have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below:
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar property in similar
location and condition and subject to lease and other
contracts. In making its judgement, the Group considers

information from a variety of sources including:

(i) the floor areas of the properties with respect to the
consideration from the independent and identified

buyer;

(ii) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to

reflect those differences;

(iii) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the

transactions that occurred at those prices; and
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

4. EXRSEHHERHE (&) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
MEIARBEFEMS (E) Fair value of properties (Continued)
(iv) FTIRBESRETEA - HTHERKK (iv) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable

REREMASEMLFT (SEEMRA
BEHEREME DB ERR) kA
REIRERMSHRTRESBRE
fE HY N E M R AP A RO IR K o

AEEYMEEREMSEBRE
MoBIELEE  BEFE TEBA
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RZZEZFEFRA=ZTHEHDA A
7,084,875,000/% 7T 536,400,000
BT (ZZE—NF 258 B
7,659,411,000/% 7T 536,400,000
BIT) o RABENFIBEE H M
T4 R EI15IENA o
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estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and using discount rate that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and

timing of the cash flows.

The Group’s properties have been valued
individually, on market value basis, which
conforms to The Hong Kong Institute of Survey
Valuation Standards. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the management of the Group
has considered the highest and best use of the
properties. The carrying amount of the investment
properties and land and buildings as at 30 June
2020 are approximately HK$7,084,875,000
and HK$36,400,000 respectively (2019:
HK$7,659,411,000 and HK$36,400,000
respectively). Details of the fair value information

are set out in Notes 14 and 15.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Allowance for properties under development and

completed properties for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group’s properties under development for
sale, the Group takes into consideration the current
market environment and the estimated market value
(i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
selling expenses less estimated costs to completion of
the properties). An allowance is made if the estimated
market value is less than the carrying amount. If the
actual market value on properties under development
for sale is less than expected as a result of change in
market condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development cost, material provision for
impairment losses may result. The carrying amount
of the properties under development for sale as at 30
June 2020 is approximately HK$1,496,021,000 (2019:
HK$1,496,668,000). No impairment loss on properties
under development for sale have been written down to
net realisable value during the year ended 30 June 2020
(2019: Nil).

Management exercises its judgment in making
allowance for completed properties for sale with
reference to the existing market environment and
the estimated market value of the properties, i.e. the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling
expenses. A specific allowance for completed properties
for sale is made if the estimate market value of the
property is lower than its carrying amount. If the actual
market values of the completed properties for sale are
less than expected, as a result of change in market
condition, material provision for impairment losses may
result. The carrying amount of the completed properties
as at 30 June 2020 is approximately HK$511,224,000
(2019: HK$445,141,000). No completed properties for
sale have been written down to net realisable value
during the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil).
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting for income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), Malaysia
and Macau. There are transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Significant management judgement is required in
determining the provision of income taxes. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the

period in which such determination is made.

In measuring the Group’s deferred tax on investment
properties measured at fair value, management of the
Group have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of these investment properties
measured using the fair value model were recovered
entirely through sales was not rebutted. Deferred tax
has been provided at tax rates that are expected to
apply upon sales of the investment properties held by
the subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong, Macau,
Malaysia and the PRC.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting for income tax (Continued)

For the properties in the PRC, the tax expenses on
changes in fair value of investment properties and
properties sales are recognised taking into account the
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise Income
Tax (“EIT”) payable upon sales of those properties in the
PRC. The LAT is determined based on management’s
best estimates according to the requirements set forth in
the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations and provided
at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable deductions including land costs,
borrowing costs and the relevant property development
expenditures. As at 30 June 2020, deferred tax liabilities
in relation to the fair value changes of investment
properties of approximately HK$1,070,462,000 (2019:
HK$1,289,825,000) have been recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2020, as set out in Note 27.

In addition, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$43,551,000 (2019: HK$41,969,000) in relation
to tax losses have been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2020, as detailed in Note 27. The recognition
of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in

which such a reversal takes place.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

5. REVENUE
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note
1 to these consolidated financial statements. Revenue
from the Group’s principal activities recognised during

the year is as follows:

— —EF-NF

2020 2019

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

Y HE Properties sales 474,911 139,951
MEMRE Property rentals 63,453 55,975
Y E R Estate management 14,516 5,615
552,880 201,541
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods

and services at a point in time in the following major

product lines and geographical market:

Segments

Geographical markets

PRC
Hong Kong
Malaysia

Timing of revenue
recognition under
HKFRS 15 from external
customers

At a point in time

Revenue not in
the scope of HKFRS 15

BE-ZE_ZBEEXA=1THLEE
Year ended 30 June 2020

VIREE UXHEE  YXER R
Property Property Estate
sales rentals management Total

TERT TERT TERT FTERT
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

474,911 14,664 11,192 500,767
- 47,571 3,324 50,895
- 1,218 - 1,218
474,911 63,453 14,516 552,880
474,911 - 14,516 489,427
- 63,453 - 63,453
474,911 63,453 14,516 552,880
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

WA (&) 5. REVENUE (Continued)
REFHEITESRANKADHE (&) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)
BE_ZT-NAEFRA=THILFE
Year ended 30 June 2019

WEHE WEHEE DREH i
Property Property Estate
sales rentals management Total

THET THET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

7 &8 Segments
% 18 1 35 Geographical markets
M PRC 138,521 9,445 3,964 151,930
BB Hong Kong 1,430 44,828 1,651 47,909
BRAEE Malaysia - 1,702 - 1,702
139,951 55,975 5,615 201,541
REEBUBERE Timing of revenue
ERISE155% KB recognition under
IREFERRA HKFRS 15 from external
WA B B R customers
EREERBE At a point in time 139,951 - 5,615 145,566
WANEE BB Revenue not in
WELERIF155% the scope of HKFRS 15
B EE R - 55,975 - 55,975
139,951 55,975 5,615 201,541
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6. TEEFR 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
ARAEZ(RTELEEARA)RE The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
DAEE A F®E DI SRR operating decision makers, have identified the Group’s
2.20 ° ZEAME D I WEEIE R IZ reportable segments as further described in Note 2.20.
CDHRABSHNEEEELAEMIELSR These reportable segments are monitored and strategic
B M BOORTE © decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment

operating results:
—EZEF 2020
NEEE NXHE  NRER Eft aE
Property  Property Estate
sales rentals management Others Total
TEn TEn TAn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue
REMRER From external customers 474,911 63,453 14,516 - 552,880
PR Inter-segment revenue - 840 20,259 - 21,099
THREIBRA Reportable segment revenue 474,911 64,293 34,775 - 573979
ARESREN/ (FR) Reportable segment profit/(loss) 319,787 66,032 2,028 (8,055 379,792
HigE# - Other information:
% BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 53 1,263 123 - 1,439
FREAENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets - - 2,624 - 2,624
MEMA Interest income 29 15,151 22,121 565 37,866
flaxH Interest expense = 30,605 = - 30,605
FERGGEA) /X8 Income tax (credit)/expense 304,456 (60,029) - - 244,427
RENEALEEEM Increase in fair value of investment properties - 5,840 - - 5,840
BRRBEFARRZ Decrease in fair value of financial assets
SREAEDABERD at FVTPL - - - 9,294 9,294
THEIDEE Reportable segment assets 2,810,517 6,310,669 7,232 458,046 9,586,464
IHEIHEE Reportable segment liabilities 559,591 262,835 5,395 5428 833,249
ERERBIPEE Additions to non-current segment assets (other
(SBTARELHERS)EM  than financial instruments and deferred tax
assets) during the year 146 12,457 6,213 - 18,816
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

2019

Revenue
From external customers

Inter—segment revenue

Reportable segment revenue
Reportable segment profit/(loss)

Other information:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax expense
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Decrease in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL

Reportable segment assets
Reportable segment liabilities

Additions to non-current segment assets (other
than financial instruments and deferred tax

assets) during the year

Annual Report 2020 %:# | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =t (%) AR/AH (203)

NEEE  NEEE NEERE 2 “a
Property Property Estate
sales rentals management Others Total
T T L L TiEn
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
139,951 55,975 5,615 - 201,541
2,458 840 24,329 - 27,627
142,409 56,815 29,944 - 229,168
104,324 718,760 4,652 (282) 627 454
110 1,475 282 - 1,867
13,895 12,065 15 - 25,975
- 28,887 - - 28,887
78,616 87,862 - - 166,478
- 683,397 - - 683,397
- - - 558 558
2,762,985 6,884,204 2,554 250,217 9,899,960
326,945 262,515 1,328 - 590,788
138 93,690 25 - 93,853
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

6. DEER (&) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

KEBEZ ] wRE m 302 42 F0 A E EF The totals presented for the Group’s reportable
CETEVBETHRBRERENHHRE segments reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures
(N as presented in the consolidated financial statements as

follows:

i 323 — N4

2020 2019

FERT FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

A & o ZRURA Reportable segment revenue 573,979 229,168
7 B [ U A 88 Elimination of inter segment revenue (21,099) (27,627)
SBEUEA Revenue of the Group 552,880 201,541
aJ &5‘:/\—‘5,@%\] Reportable segment profit 379,792 827,454
ENN W/NEIE N Unallocated corporate income 39,145 37,668
AHOBRAZ M Unallocated corporate expenses (105,121) (66,987)
Eﬁ%;ﬂzﬁ Finance costs (36,382) (30,004)
& B R B A a A Profit before income tax of the Group 277,434 768,131
—E®F —E-AF

2020 2019

FHET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

AIFRE D EE Reportable segment assets 9,586,464 9,899,960
RITEFRRT Bank balances and cash 1,236,667 595,454
HEMmAREE Other corporate assets 228,054 210,898
IR IE & = Deferred tax assets 16,290 14,780
EFBEEE Total assets of the Group 11,067,475 10,721,092
A EDEHEE Reportable segment liabilities 833,249 590,788
i O] Tax payable 989,395 529,342
BREEBE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,261,920 1,163,687
Em A alE Other corporate liabilities 180,533 317,741
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 1,070,462 1,289,825
SEEaE Total liabilities of the Group 4,335,559 3,891,383
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EEMEAEL BREFBMBRE
ZRZE SRPE N HMER - AR
EJE M o

AEBEBFAKAEE —IIBREEFHR
SUWATEEI0%IIA L -

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenues from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following

geographical areas:

HIREF Wz FRBEE
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
—8=%F ~“T-N\F Z¥-BE —ThF
2020 2019 2020 2019
TET TET TET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

50,895 47,909 = 3,482,806 3,372,341
500,767 151,930 2,005,894 2,621,789
- - 1,302,983 1,363,671

1,218 1,702 336,507 341,684
552,880 201,541 7,128,190 7,699,485

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets (other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) is based on the physical location of

the assets.

The Company is an investment holding company
and the principal place of the Group’s operation is
Hong Kong. For the purpose of segment information
disclosures under HKFRS 8, the Group regards Hong

Kong as its place of domicile.

No revenue from transaction with single external
customer is amounted to 10% or more for the Group’s

revenue for the year.
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BE_FT-_FTHFA=THLFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

7. Hitlg A - FEE 7. OTHER INCOME, NET

EHRAEE RS Dividend income from listed equity

A investments
HEZRAAEES A Gain on disposal of financial assets
BRzomEE at FVTPL
A
LEREVEERN Gain on disposal of investment
properties
F B U A Interest income
FMETEWA Sundry income

@ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £t (£M8) HR~28 | Annual Report 2020 4
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2019
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HK$’000

227

49
11,105

25,975
588

37,944



GEMBRERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

8. MR A 8. FINANCE COSTS
—E_FHF —E-NEF
2020 2019
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MBER : Interest charges on:
RITER B Bank loans and overdrafts 36,441 31,113
EEWE (H731(a)) Advances from a director (Note 31(a)) 9,971 10,709
E b &S BR K Other payables - 140
&2 (fat26) Bond (Note 26) 768 750
H BB A Other incidental borrowings costs 8,820 5,941
FHEBBENEEER  Finance charges on lease liabilities 175 -
BEEKA Total finance costs 56,175 48,653
B N BE e Less: Interest capitalised into
— BERPEFEME — Properties under
(K1 5E) development for sale (Note) (19,793) (18,649)
36,382 30,004
Mt - B ERAE DRI FF %1.800% Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised to properties
£3.404% (ZF—NLF 1 1.931%= under development for sale at a rate from 1.800% to
3.325%) EARMER M EFF BIEHE 3.404% (2019: from 1.931% to 3.325%).
H oo
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

9. BRB A= A
MR BT R M B THIEE

EIRAN(BRESTHS)
(K1:£13.1)
& IEBEREMEF

JE BRAR AR IR 8 LR

-Gl
ZANGE
ME - BERRBITE

EREEENE
KREMERELEESWAN
BEKAR

BREMEREELHES
WA B 3 AR

[ 5L 5 1R
HEHEER-BF

HEZR
REBRERBEBNBRE
HERIF16RFNEREE
NMEEHR121E A B HE
=

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging the

following:

Staff costs (include directors’
emoluments) (Note 13.1)
Salaries, wages and other

benefits
Contribution to defined
contribution plans

Auditor’s remuneration
Current year
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Direct outgoings in respect of
investment properties that
generate rental income
Direct outgoings in respect of
investment properties that did
not generate rental income
Net exchange loss
Operating lease charges —
Buildings
Lease charges:
Short term leases and leases
with lease term shorter than
12 months as at initial
application of HKFRS 16

O A A EET AE 2 Loss on redemption of financial

Wat 2z &R EERER
HEME - ez kR EEE

assets at FVTOCI
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
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—E-F —E—hAF
2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
24,554 24,162
584 752
25,138 24,914
709 758

711 1,867
3,352 -
10,504 12,576
1,368 2,184
12,457 9,193
- 4,241

328 -
1,247 -
3 —
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10. T8 H X H

AR ASEERBEFEAKRBEHERE
BEERBEE T _TFA=1+H
IEFERBRERBEN - HUt 8B EER
EMBHRERTPRBEBF S IERME -

BRBEFEEMNERGD - FRFRRHN
MK AE25% (ZZFE—NF  25%) °

T+ b IR E ) B AR B AR B A R B
WORBIERWBEGHE - THIRERE
AFHEN RERBERHLN - WK T
REAFFHNEH -

9 55 R 2 BER Y AR 98 48 70 2 1 B A
BHEAEAEEEEEBRRRT
GESIE R

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not
have assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended
30 June 2020 after set-off tax loss brought forward from

previous years.

Under The New Law and Implementation Regulations,

the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2019: 25%).

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain

allowable deductions.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the

Group operates.

—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEIBLIR Current tax

— 4N — Overseas
R ZTER PRC EIT 127,714 7,154
T+ IR E R LAT 178,535 59,053
306,249 66,207

IE B 1E Deferred tax
E (Kt 27) Current year (Note 27) (61,822) 100,271
FrigH X AR Total income tax expense 244,427 166,478
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

10. RGBT (&)

MEASXHZHERIREBHEENES

B

[ 58 A1 ik A

REBFEHRBE 16.5%
AFE(ZT—NF  16.5%)
Z B

PRHR S 2 TR &

BARMBEZ RIBZE
BN R ZERI 2 RIER

4B

=

RILFERH SRR
M55 &

R A HE R D R 5 P R 7S
BRZUEEE

A £ 3 IR (A T

FrERXH

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before income tax

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax
rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of differences in
overseas tax rates

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of
unrecognised tax losses

LAT

Income tax expense
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Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$000
277,434 768,131
45,777 126,742
19,110 10,700
(26,847) (94,618)
34,139 81,094
2,163 1,850
(8,450) (18,343)
178,535 59,053
244,427 166,478
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

11.8 2 11.DIVIDENDS
(@ FFERE (a) Dividends attributable to the year
—E-EHF —E-AF
2020 2019
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REfRR B AR E@A% 7.5 Bl Interim dividend of HK 7.5
—ENHF 7581 cents (2019: HK 7.5 cents)
per ordinary share 46,565 43,891
MR ARHAKRE SR ERI  Proposed final dividend of
508l (==& —h - HK 5.0 cents (2019:
15.0/8 1) (H75E) HK15.0 cents) per
ordinary share (Note) 31,981 89,345
78,546 133,236
TECEFEN T -NF2FRERK Scrip dividend alternative was offered to
BRMFUBRRSHRTERE - & shareholders in respect of the 2020 and 2019
BOERREZAT interim dividend. This alternative was accepted by
the shareholders as follows:
—E-EHF —E-AF
2020 2019
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
A% 2 Dividends:
e Cash 7,197 5,335
PARZ A B Share alternative 39,368 38,556
46,565 43,891
K1t - Note:
PRERE B %R 2 REIRE I AR P The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
SHERAEIE - not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

11. 188 (&)
(@) EERS (HE)
i)y BRERIERINHEEN

11.

DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(a) Dividends attributable to the year (Continued)

(i)

Dividends attributable to the previous financial

I F E R R year, approved and paid during the year
—F=FHF —T-NHF
2020 2019
THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFEMBFERHR Final dividend in respect of
BB AR 15.08 1 the previous financial year,
(ZF—N%F: of HK15.0 cents
15.0781l) (2019: HK15.0 cents) per
ordinary share 89,345 85,457

REART B IR AR A B AR

Scrip dividend alternative was offered to

FEE - WEBCERREXN shareholders in respect of the final dividend.
™~ This alternative was accepted by the
shareholders as follows:

—E-®F —E-AF
2020 2019
THERT TET
HK$’000 HK$'000

R SNE Dividends:
He Cash 13,648 18,796
AR AKX B Share alternative 75,697 66,661
89,345 85,457
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

12. 8RB F 12.EARNINGS PER SHARE
FRERNEDEBERF AT EE The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
REAE share is based on the following data:
2F Earnings
—ECEHF —E-NF
2020 2019
FTERT TAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
REEBZHB ARG RT Profit attributable to the owners
NEFEFRERR of the Company for the purpose
EEERN of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 47,696 572,899
i &vig - Q=] Number of shares
—E®F —E-NF
2020 2019
EEITEBR ZINEFIE Weighted average number of
NEFEFRERRT ordinary shares for the purposes
of basic earnings per share 611,721,455 579,295,232
TECEFNM_FE-NFREEER Dilutive earnings per share for 2020 and 2019 are
Tak —E-TFRNA=ZTHMZZE the same as basic earnings per share as there was no
—NERA=ZTHEEERF RER potential ordinary share outstanding as at 30 June 2020
FRAFHERA - and 2019.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

13.EERSREEAENE

131EE#M S

ARAPEFDWHBR 2 & BER

m

—g-%F
HITEE
iy
5%
ET T

ERITES
i B2 W
R B
BRE
TrE
ZR%

2020

Executive directors:
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
Ho Sau Fun Connie
Yung Philip
Chao Gigi

Non-executive directors:
Chao Howard
Lam Ka Wai Graham*
Sun Ping Hsu Samson*
Ting Woo Shou Kenneth*
Lee Ding Yue Joseph

BN IFMITES

13.DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

13.1 Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or

receivable by the directors of the Company are as

follows:
Hi R
-#E Rk
ExMe e HeEE  HEHR nE
Employer’s
contribution
Other  to defined
benefits — contribution
Fees Salaries  allowance plans Total

TER TR TER TR TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

- 8,834 = - 8,834
66 1,055 3 18 1,142
66 802 3 18 889
66 1,640 216 18 1,940
66 416 2 18 502

158 - - - 158
66 - - - 66
66 - - - 66
66 - - - 66

620 12,747 224 72 13,663

*  Independent non-executive directors
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HAZ

FHITES
i BaWl
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*

*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

13.1Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
HoAh M &5
it RIR
EEMe e  ReBE  FEHEX ek
Employer’s
contribution
Other  to defined
benefits —  contribution
Fees Salaries  allowance plans Total
TET TET TAET TAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2019
Executive directors:
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil - 10,016 - - 10,016
Ho Sau Fun Connie 63 1,012 - 18 1,093
Yung Philip 63 773 - 18 854
Chao Gigi 63 1,553 90 18 1,724
Non-executive directors:
Chao Howard 63 416 858 18 1,355
Lam Ka Wai Graham* 151 - - - 151
Sun Ping Hsu Samson* 63 - - - 63
Ting Woo Shou Kenneth* 63 - - - 63
Lee Ding Yue Joseph 63 - - - 63
592 13,770 948 72 15,382
* Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is also the Chief

Wi B TRAANRRIITHRAEE -

H BN BREIERTTR

REPTIRHEIRB T

BE-T-

— =

TERZF-NERA
SHALFELEEFHERAE

MEREBME

Executive of the Company and his emoluments

disclosed above include those for services rendered

by him as Chief Executive.

No director has waived or agreed to waive any

emolument in respect of the years ended 30 June
2020 and 2019.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

13.EERSNEBAEMS (&) 13.

PB2REFHMz2EMAL
HE—_Z-_FTFEA=Z1+HILEF
B AfumeHFmMALZH  Ef

iz (—F—hF: W) SEAEE
ZEZ BRI mEFMALN

BE_ZT-_TEFA=THLFE
B eBOT

e Salaries
RKEFRETE Contribution to

contribution plans

B> ARmT -

1,000,000/ 7T &
1,500,000/8 7T

RREFEEAR  BERAEEI&ES
FA LM - tERINAZA
ARE B F A KRR (E

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

13.2Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 30 June 2020, four directors
of the Group is among the five highest paid
individuals (2019: four) whose emoluments are
included above. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the remaining one (2019: one) highest

paid individual is as follows:

—E-EE —ET—NF
2020 2019
T#ET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,462 1,405
defined
18 18
1,480 1,423

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$1,000,000 to
HK$1,500,000

B < 43 Bl A &
Number of individuals
—E-EF —ET-hNF
2020 2019
1 1

No emolument was paid to the directors and the
highest paid individual as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office during both years.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

14. 1R &Y= 14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FREEZZ2FE 2WMERS MBIRR Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the
RIEBM T - consolidated statement of financial position can be

summarised as follows:

—E-®F —E-AF
2020 2019
FER FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

RAREE At fair value
REA—BZEREE Carrying amount at 1 July 7,659,411 7,095,577
ME =58 Exchange differences (93,527) (115,763)
H e Disposals (499,070) (96,863)

N Additions:

— BEB S - subsequent expenditure 12,221 93,063
N EERE Change in fair value 5,840 683,397
RAA=+RHEREE Carrying amount at 30 June 7,084,875 7,659,411
REBAETREMEHEKREEE Certain investment properties of the Group with an
2,972,900,0008 70 (=& — L F : aggregate carrying value at the reporting date of
2,205,600,0007% 7T) 2 # 3 T R 1T LA HK$2,972,900,000 (2019: HK$2,205,600,000) were
R T AEE 2 RITEE (FEE37) - pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note 37).
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14. R EW=E (&)

REMEZIREBEEE
(i) RZAEBEERFZ

TRINRAEEREMEN RS H
MERFIEEEEERITEZ AN
BE WREEBMBREELSE
1B3RAREBEAEMRTEZ=ERQ
R EERAED c AREBELSEM
RAMERDZEABEEE A B
ERHSEUMELATSHE

- FAME: AE-RBAE
AEZAREE BARRE
EXBERAEREEETS
PHRBABRBRERE

— B_RMEE:AE_RBAE
FREZAREE MHE&BAE
ZABREEHARTEE R
BWAE BEESEEHAEILIF
RATAEBRZEE - TAIE
il UNEVRIZ T ¢ ]
E2ZE 2@ A\ E

— F=RHE:EATAERH
BIEE2WMABAFAEZAR
EE

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.
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14.REMZE (F) 14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
REVEZARBEEE (HE) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)
(i) R EEERFZF (&) (i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
—E_FF —E-NF
2020 2019
B=ZR EB=#&
Level 3 Level 3
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
REELAAREBEEEE Recurring fair value measurement
"EY Investment properties:
mE-FH Commercial — Hong Kong 25,200 24,500
FEx-FHF Residential — Hong Kong 3,397,800 3,291,400
[EEI: A Commercial — Macau 315,023 335,623
F=E - B Residential — Macau 987,959 1,028,048
T - BXRAD Residential — Malaysia 353,112 358,222
F=E -7 Residential — PRC 2,005,781 2,621,618
7,084,875 7,659,411
EHE_ZT_ZTFR_ZF-NFX During the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019,
A=+BIEFERN  F—RKMEZ there was no transfer between Level 1 and Level
BB mER  KWERERES 2, nor transfer into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
SARSNE=REL - AEREHIK policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
REAREHHTERAAEBER fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
Rl E IR R RIEN B AEEE R period in which they occur.
MR e
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

14. REY x (H)
RENEZ A ABEBE (H)

(i) R EEERFZF (&)
BT _ZTFR_FT-—NFRA
STHLEREMFECHBIREZEE
BB GEMETER - LREH
KR E Y 5 Rl B BB SR TT
BRAREITERM - MG KA
I RPIR AP B W 7 S B
AR AREITEM - ETIR
BMiSEENEREERMRRIRE
ARER  W2EER 3 &K
MEBUMEREETISER S - &L
BREERFEZBRPER - £
HEAKEENREMELALEE
o RFEE&KeE M&ENER -

AEEEREETHMNFERSH
HE 1T ER B E R AE 1T (R ER

SEDEE

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Investment properties were revalued on 30 June
2020 and 2019 by independent and professional
qualified valuers. The valuation of properties in
Hong Kong was revalued by K.T. Liu Surveyors
Limited. The valuation of properties in Malaysia,
Macau and PRC were revalued by Roma Appraisals
Limited. The properties were revalued on market
value basis on their existing development stage
and usage, and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the similar
location and condition or by capitalisation of
future rental which is estimated by reference to
comparable rental as available. The fair value gains
or losses were recognised in profit or loss for the
year. In estimating the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The Group’s management has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual

reporting date.
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REMEZAREBEEE (&)

(i) E=ZRA BB EHNEH

RENE:

Investment properties:

E S

Commercial - Hong Kong

FE-F%
Residential - Hong Kong

fFe-%%
Residential - Hong Kong

[EE Sty

Commercial - Macau

{FE— %

Residential - Macau

REHEW (Hita@an)
Valuation techniques
(Note (a)&(b))

VON-UN| 3
Income capitalisation

approach

UON-US| 973
Income capitalisation

approach

TEHEA
Market comparison

approach

MEHLEA
Market comparison

approach

MEHEA
Market comparison

approach

GEMBRERME
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Note:

FABERENBARE

Unobservable inputs

CUN[di

Capitalisation rates

EARfL X

Capitalisation rates

miaE B/ FHR)
Market price (HKD/square feet)

NEORE  E 28 BEY
() /5fE
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

mEE (&FT/FAR)
Market price (MOP/square feet)

MENRE  NE - BE - EEN
() /EE
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

mEE (RMT/FHR)
Market price (MOP/square feet)

MENRE - UE - 58 EEN
(i) /BB
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

FUBRNEAGE

Range of unobservable inputs

.
2020

BE3.0%

3% per annum

F52.0%

2% per annum

19,298 - 22,393

(7.5%) - 51.86%

14,571 - 16,000

(15%) - 15%

5,997 - 6,904

(10%) - 10%

—T-NE
2019

BF3.0%

3% per annum

FE2.0%

2% per annum

19,456 - 95,081

(16.5%) - 34%

15,780 - 17,065

(15%) - 0%

0,476 - 9,022

(30%) - 10%
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

14. R EW=E (&)

Hiat - (&)

REnE:

Investment properties:

FE-BRAD

Residential - Malaysia

FE-HE
Residential - PRC

REMEZAREBEEE (&)

(i) B=RIABEGEHEN (B

BRI (Hitasb)
Valuation techniques
(Note (a)&(b))

TEHEA
Market comparison

approach

MEHLEA
Market comparison

approach

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements(Continued)

Note:(Continued)

FABRHBARE

Unobservable inputs

MEE (FRARLE/FAR)
Market price (RM/square feet)

WENDE - UE - 25 EBEN
() /&8
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

mEE (ARE/FHK)
Market price (RMB/square meter)

MENRE  NE - BB EEN
() /EE
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties
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FUBEENBAEE

Range of unobservable inputs

i
2020

1,157 1,237

(20%) - 10%

52,200 - 55,000

(15%) - 15%

“E-NF
2019
920 - 1,000

(10%) - 10%

52,500 - 60,000

(5%) - 0%
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14. REY * (H)
RENEZ A ABEBE (H)

(ii)

F=4

(a)

AR EBEFTENER (&)
(%)

E_T_ZTFER-_FT-NEFEXA
=TH - REBNEEREYD
EURKREEHOWAERIERE
Al EhER - AR A B AL
ARG TH2EREBNA WY
MHEMFTEISHESEIT - FTER
AMERET2RBEHEMETE
HBEUMETREROWEE B
LA EME Sz EM A E =
AR - 2R BENFE2E M
BER(ERZEMBEEM -

EZZ_ZTFER_FT-NFRA
:-I—E%mﬁé%.?\;aw;i RN
ATERFEOEEREERED
¥ MO BERZ2RALEY
XA ENER  LUFAR
HFEFKAEEE HAWSLR
EAEE - BREBHTHAFEEAL
MYMENEE UE SEBENE
AR GEXIFTIN -HEE - L
B SELEENS  AnBE
EBNEHE  MArBERD A
T o
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements(Continued)

Note:(Continued)

(a)

As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the fair values of
certain commercial investment properties in Hong
Kong are determined using income capitalisation
approach by capitalisation of future rental. In the
valuation, the market rentals of all lettable units
are made by reference to the rentals achieved by
the Group in the lettable units. The capitalisation
rate adopted is by reference to the yield rates
observed by the valuers for similar properties in the
locality and adjusted for the valuers’ knowledge of
factors specific to the respective properties. The fair
value measurement is negatively correlated to the
capitalisation rate.

As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the fair value of
commercial and residential investment properties
located in Hong Kong, Macau, Malaysia and the PRC
are determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square feet or square meter
basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount mainly
specific to the quality, location, view and floor level
of the properties compared to the recent sales. The
fair value increase as to premium and fair value
decrease as to discount on quality, location, view

and floor level.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

15. 9% - eI RRE

BE-R-N\%
tA-HLEE

KK

ffE

ZithE

FHEFE

HEZE-1F
AAZTALEE

BNERETE

ERZE

B

nE

EEH

BRRAEFS
RZE-AEAAZTE
R

[t

ZiE

REEFE

At 1 July 2018

Cost
Valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2019

Opening net book amount
Exchange differences
Additions

Depreciation

Surplus on revaluation

Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2019

Cost

Valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

fERReE
Right-of-use assets
FELBR
B¥FARAL
REE At &R %ER
Land and FRE E¥ERB
building held BE  Fumitwe, AEREH
for own use Other fittings Motor BERZEHR
carried at fair ~ right-ofuse ~ and office  vehiclesand  Leasehold AR
value assefs  equipment  accessories  improvements Total
TR TR TRL TRL TRL TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 12,828 7,777 939 21,544
34,170 - - - - 34,170
- - (10,093) (7,513) (809) (18,415)
34,170 - 2,735 264 130 37,299
34170 - 2,735 264 130 37,299
- - (9) () - (12)
- - 790 - - 790
(084) - (949) (104) (130) (1,867
2914 - - - - 2914
36,400 - 2,567 157 - 39,124
- - 13,548 7,765 - 21313
36,400 - - - - 36,400
- - (10,981) (7,608) - (18,589)
36,400 - 2,567 157 - 39,124

; 224 ) CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = ((8) AR5 | Annual Report 2020 4F ¥
@



A MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. 9% - Rk &iE (&)

HE-2-NF Asat 1 July 2019
tA-BLEE

BIEEETE Opening net ook amount

RREESHEESEE  Adiustment for the adoption of
FI6HBR (W3 HKERS 16 (Note 3)

RZF-NEtA-H At 1 July 2019 restated
BifRY

EHEE Exchange differences

E Additions

& Disposal

ik Depreciation

EhRE Surplus on revaluation
BREEERE Closing net hook amount

RZEZBEXAZHHE  At30)une 2020

S Cost

fatE Valuation

2itHE Accumulated depreciation
REERR Net book amount

HEMNFAER SN E28 -

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

fERRLE
Right-of-use assets
KELHR
BFfERL
REE it HH ZEBR
Land and ERE RYERB

building held BE  fumitwe, REREH
for own use Other fttings Motor BEEZHR
carried at fair ~ right-of-use  and office  vehicles and Leasehold ag
value assets  equipment  accessories improvements Total

TR TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

36,400 - 2,367 157 - 39,124
- 6,160 - - - 6,160
36,400 6,160 2,367 157 - 45,284
- - 9) - - 9)

- - 387 18 - 435

- - - (10) - (10)
(728) (2,624) (658) (53) - (4,063)
728 - - - - 728
36,400 3,536 2,287 142 - 42,365
- 6,160 13,662 7,755 - 27,797
36,400 - - - - 36,400
- (2,624) (11,595 (7,613) - (21,832)
36,400 3,536 2,287 142 - 42,365

Details of the leases are set out in Note 28.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

15. 9% ~ B RRHE (E) 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
BT MIEF AR BEE SRR - HE If the land and building were stated on the historical
BEAOR : cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

—E_FHF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
DAz Cost 20,200 20,200
REHTE Accumulated depreciation (3,636) (3,232)
BREFEE Net book amount 16,564 16,968
REBEFRABZ LHERBFREERZ All the Group’s land and building with an aggregate
48 BRI 8 A36,400,0008 7T (ZE— N, carrying value at the reporting date of approximately
£ 1 36,400,000/8 7T) O AR EE 2 4R HK$36,400,000 (2019: HK$36,400,000) were pledged to

ITEREERM (MF3E37) - secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 37).
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15. 9% - Rk &iE (&)

THREFZAANEBEHEE
(i) RAEEBRIE

TRIRAEE L MEFRHmE
HEERSIEEEEERTEZR
REE LREFBEMBERSEER
B3R AR BEFEMAEZ=E
NEFEBESHNE D - AREEZE
FIsRAEERTS 2B ABEERA
BRNES2UMmMELATOHE

- B—RMHEE:AE-—RBAE
FEZAREE BARRE
EXRBENRFERREERRTS
FHRABERETE

— Bo_REE:UAEF_LBEAE
ATEZAREE BEGAE
A BRMHEARTEE R
BAE BESEBHABELIE
KRATABE 28T - T &
57 8 A A I 8 T35 BUR A]
E2ZE 28 A&

— FZAME:ERTAERH
BEEZERABUFTEZARF
BE

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Fair value measurement of land and building
(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s land and building measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

15. 9% - Rk (&)

THREFZAARBEEEE (H)

(i)

AR EEEREZE (F)

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Fair value measurement of land and building

(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

—EB®F —E-NF
2020 2019
B=H B
Level 3 Level 3
THET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
KREERREBEEE Recurring fair value
measurement
BEEER T NETFT © Land and building held for
own use:
FE-FHF Residential — Hong Kong 36,400 36,400

EHE_ZT_ZTFR_F-NFRX
A=+BHIEHFERN  F—RKNEZ
oW mER W EEBREE
=R E=REL - XEBAIK
REBREDRSHRATERAAE
BERREZRFE LIRRRIEH G

B R -

E-_ET_ZEFR_F—NLFERA
=t+HtHREFCHBTREE
BERGEMEITEMR - B
EMTAERAGREBEMISEERE
i WS ELR— B0 KR EELL
MERTHAT SRS ©

AEEEREETHRMFERSH
HE 1T E R B E R AETT R ER

AR R A 0

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019,
there was no transfer between Level 1 and Level
2, nor transfer into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

The land and building were revalued on 30 June
2020 and 2019 by independent and professional
qualified valuer, K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited on
market value basis and by reference to recent
market transactions for similar properties in the

similar location and condition.

The Group’s management has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual

reporting date.
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15. 9% - Rk &iE (&)

THREFZAARBEEEE (H)

(i) BE=ZRAABEGTTENEN

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Fair value measurement of land and building

(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

BAFERLHEET
Land and building held for
own use:
5 L BUE FABRENGEA #E
Market Comparison Unobservable input Range
approach
e ZFNF
2020 2019
FE -8 Mz B mEE BT/ FAFR) 19,298 - 22,393 19,458 - 20,739
Residential - Hong Kong ~ Market comparison Market price (HKD/square feet)

approach

REBNBEREE LM RZ
FHAABEEEMATSLEOX
R 2RATLBMEATHEE
RESERER  BREMENE
B UE SBENEERAREEN
FM-REE LB RENERE
ME AR BENENREE  MA
REEBD BT -

FHAEFERN I LEFTEMGEE
S BEBEREREMEERETHY
XEMHEBIPER -

nEORE UE 8B

BEMHH 1.15% (7.5%)
Discount on quality, location,

view and floor level of the

properties

The fair value of residential land and building
located in Hong Kong are determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per
square feet basis, adjusted for a premium or a
discount mainly specific to the quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties compared
to the recent sales. The fair value increase as to
premium and fair value decrease as to discount on

quality, location, view and floor level.

Deficit/Surplus on revaluation of land and
building held for own use is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in

“property revaluation reserve”.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

16. HMIER B EE 16.OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET
—EFHF —E—NF
2020 2019
TFET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
SRES Club debenture 950 950
@ A& &5 AR AN BB (B B 1B 51 BE o Club debenture is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

17.HttEmEE 17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
HibteMEEBRBATRE Other financial assets included the following
investments:
—E_EHF —F—hF
2020 2019
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
BRARBEFTAEMEAEWZEZ  Financial assets at FVTOCI:
KAZE EBRE LT (HiFa)) Perpetual notes, listed in Hong Kong
(Note (a)) 123,174 130,069
KARE ERBRI LT Perpetual notes, listed outside Hong
(Ki#2b) Kong (Note (b)) 4,418 3,064
B5 HEBRB L™ (W HFC) Debentures, listed in Hong Kong
(Note (c)) 4,495 7,524
&% EBBEIN LT (Hi#(d) Debentures, listed outside Hong Kong
((Note (d)) 52,145 31,265
184,232 171,922
REBEE Current assets

BARBETAELEZEN S Financial assets at FVTOCI:
&% EBBEIN LW (B/it(d)) Debentures, listed outside Hong Kong

((Note (d)) 6,472 -
B%  EEE L™ (Hitc) Debentures, listed in Hong Kong
(Note (c)) = 1,626
6,472 1,626
190,704 173,548
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175t ®EE (&)

REBA-BEBEAFERE  ZF
BEANBENZRERENGORS
MEMHE  TREENARGRELE
MRERETEEAEMREERNS
M EE AT -

Btaz

(@ AEEREEBEB LM KAZE &
% % N F500,0003 7T 210,000,000
Enxc BETEINHA  FZHFIEA
7.75% EBEHEBEEN F5.72%M
R T 35 i R R R K [E E B R R & AN
R4.45%%26.50% 2 @ B¥FIRE—

R e

AEEFEMEXKAEZELE A2EEH
240,0003 Jt %500,000% 7T * £ &
BN BEZREMNENTEF
5.25%%26.25% ' FF¥FIRE—IX o

() AEEBHE—(ZZT—NF: M) EHE
%4 K& % 51,000,000% 7T £FHB
> BIHIE A2028F1A318 (==
— N 1201992 H22H E2028%1H
318)  BEEAEMNED R AETF6.5%
(ZZE—NTF : 5F7.25%%6.50%) °
BEFRE—IK -

AEBFETEERS AN T
250,0003 JT £3,100,0003 7t © % Hi
H A202143H27H £2025F6 728
B BEEEAEMNENFEFF6.25%E
11.875% B¥FRE—X B_-F
—NWEXNAZ+TH &EAHER -
BAFEBAELTES A28
F300,0003 Tt £1,000,000% 7T * %I
B H A2021F3H27H £2026F4H8
H BEEEMENTEFF6.75%2
11.88% ©

(o) BRAABEFAEMEZAKZEZ SR
EECDEMUEBRE FAEENET
& (MisE37) °

() EMXRARENESFHE A RER KR
REMTREN ARBETARET
Wi M= AR -

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

The Group holds investments under a business model

whose objective is to hold to collect the associated

contractual cash flows and sale; and the contractual

terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Note:

(a)

The Group has investment in perpetual notes with
principal amounts ranging from US$500,000 to
US$10,000,000 listed in Hong Kong without fixed
maturity date at floating rate of 7.75% with reset rate on
reset date ranging from 5.72% plus mid-market swap rate
and fixed rates ranging from 4.45% to 6.50% per annum,
payable semi-annually.

The Group has investments in two perpetual notes with
principal amount of US$240,000 and US$500,000 listed
outside Hong Kong without fixed maturity date at a
coupon rate ranging from 5.25% to 6.25% per annum,
payable semi-annually.

The Group has investment in one (2019: two) listed
debenture with principal amounts of US$1,000,000 listed
in Hong Kong with maturity dates of 31 January 2028
(2019: 22 February 2019 and 31 January 2028) at a fixed
coupon rates of 6.50% (2019: 7.25% and 6.5%) per
annum, payable semi-annually, respectively.

The Group has investments in ten listed debentures
with principal amounts ranging from US$250,000 to
US$3,100,000 with fixed maturity date ranging from
27 March 2021 to 28 June 2025 at a coupon rates
ranging from 6.25% to 11.875% per annum, payable
semi-annually which carry forward from 30 June 2019.
Additional nine listed debentures with principal amounts
ranging from US$300,000 to US$1,000,000 with fixed
maturity date ranging from 27 March 2021 to 8 April
2026 at a coupon rates ranging from 6.75% to 11.88%
per annum were purchased during the period.

Financial assets at FVTOCI have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 37).

The credit risk on listed perpetual notes and debentures
is considered to be insignificant because the issuers are
assigned high credit ratings by international credit rating
agencies.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

18. M B 1 8 18.SUBSIDIARIES
R-B_EFER_F-NFRNA=F Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2020
A XEZMBARZEMET : and 2019 are as follows:
BRTRA

AmmIEE/  EH/ERRE
REHRE  Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation ordinary share BEZRELS

WEAR or registration/  capital/registered  Proportion of ownership EEXH
Name operation capital interest Principal activities
B S
Directly  Indirectly
Ace Cosmos Finance Limited KERAEE 10,0008 72.42% - RBEER
BRIXT
British Virgin 10,000 (2019: (2019:-)  Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") US$T shares 72.42%)
ARERREBRAF B WAET 100% - WEEER
Bongi Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2019:  (2019:-)  Property trading
100%)
SEMEXEERRAF B WAET 100% - DXER
Cheuk Nang Property Management Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2019:  (2019:-)  Property management services
Company Limited 100%)
AXNEREERBBRAA B 2BA20% T 100% - BEREERH
Dun Man Secretarial and Management Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$20 (2019:  (2019:-)  Provision of secretarial and
Services Limited 100%) management services
BARERRAH B WAET - 100% SHELE
Golden Scheme Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2019:  (2019:-)  Property investment
100%)
R ARRAT B WAET 100% - BBEFMERARER
Green View Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2019:  (2019:-)  Mortgage lending, property
100%) investment and development
EREXARAA B 3,000 - 019 HERERER
#300,000 7T 100%)
Lo & Son Land Investment Company Hong Kong 3,000 shares,  (2019: -) (2019:  Property investment and
Limited HK$300,000 100%) development
EEEXERAA) B RHET 100% - HERE
Lucky Faith Properties Limited* Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2019:  (2019:-)  Property investment
100%)
Martego Sdn Bhd * SRAE 5,000,000 - 100% HEZERERE
BRISKESSE
Malaysia 5,000,000 shares of ~ (2019: -) (2019:  Property investment and
RM1 each 100%)  development
BEERBRAA & WrFHET 100% - WERE
New Grow Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares, HK$2 (2019:  (2019:-)  Property investment
100%)
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

RZEBE_EFR_F-—NEFE~A=+
B xEWREARZ2ERNOT : ()

WELA

Name

HEERAH
Pacific Charm Investment Limited"

Power Tripod Limited

EERRARAT

Power Wide Development Limited

BE (M) BRAF
Top Regent (Asia) Limited

EARRARAE

Yorkshon Development Limited*

KERBRAR
Ever Regal Limited

SRREARAT
Cheuk Nang Construction Company
Limited

AMBIEE/
REHE

Place of incorporation
or registration/
operation

B
Hong Kong

A
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2020

and 2019 are as follows: (Continued)

BERTRE

&R/ ERRAR
Particulars of issued
ordinary share
capital/registered
capital

REET
1 share, HK$1

10,0008
10,000 7T
10,000 shares

HK$10,000

AR 2B T
2 shares, HK$2

1008% 2£1007 1T
100 shares, HK$100

URFET
2 shares, HK$2

TRETET
1 share, HK$1

10,0008%
10,000 7T
10,000 shares,
HK$10,000

BRZRELA
Proportion of ownership
interest
B 3
Directly Indirectly
100% -(2019:-)
(2019: N/A) (2019: N/A)
- 100%
(2019: -) (2019:
100%)
100% -
(2019:  (2019: )
100%)
- 71.70%
(2019: -) (2019:
71.70%)
- 100%
(2019: -) (2019:
100%)
100% -
(2019:  (2019: )
100%)
100% -
(2019:  (2019: )
100%)

IERE

Principal activities

REARE

Investment holding
WEERREE

Property development and trading

WERARBARE
Property investment and
investment holding

HERERRR
Property investment and
development

WERERER
Property investment and
development

HWERE

Property investment

WERRE

Property development
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

18.Mf & A 7] (4&) 18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
RZZBZEFRZZE-NFRA=T Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2020
H:TEZEfBATZERWT « (&) and 2019 are as follows: (Continued)
BERITRA

AmmIEE/ ER/ERRE

Z-HE Particulars of issued

Place of incorporation ordinary share

WEAR of registration/  capital/registered
Name operation capital
SENEEE (M) BRAR (Hitn) PE 500,000 AR
(Note (i) PRC RMB500,000
EE (RN DEERBRAR" (W) PE 500,000 AX
(Note (i) PRC RMB500,000
AAERERE (M) BRI (Wit) BB 94,000000%
(Note (i) PRC US$94,000,000
BREHERS (RI)ERAT (Hitn) FE 494,000,000 AKH
(Note (i) PRC RMB494,000,000
RINERE SR TRARD R (M) FE 5,000,000 AR%
(Note (i) PRC RMB5,000,000
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BRZRELA

Proportion of ownership
interest

B 3

Directly Indirectly

- 100%

(2019: -) (2019:

100%)

- 100%

(2019: -) (2019:

100%)

- 100%

(2019: -) (2019:

100%)

- 100%

(2019: -) (2019:

100%)

- 100%

(2019: -) (2019:

100%)

IERE

Principal activities

RENFEERE
Provision of property management
services

RENFEERE
Provision of property management
services

WERRE

Property development

WERR
Property investment, development
and trading

WERRE

Property development
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

18.Mfi BT (&)

Hret -

(i)

#r

ZERBAREBETEIAEEIMA
SN ERE -

EERAREAFEREHRZ
FEHREENTIEWNBAAE
HENERA - WINEER A
FIHEMMB AR ZFHERE
EERBRITE °

MEBARZREDEM TR
ERIRITHAREBIEHERZ
BB D AR (M EE37) »

NEERHFE (FH) &sthiE
BHRAERARBEERERK -

R F AL
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18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

#E

The entity is registered as a wholly foreign owned

enterprise under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
Shares of these subsidiaries have been pledged to
banks as security for bank loan facilities granted

to the Group (Note 37).

Companies not audited by Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited.

incorporated during the year.
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18.Ft & 2~ |l (#&)
TRIEHTAEEMNE R FlAce
Cosmos Finance Limited (7% & &9 K
BAREPRBEEANIEERER) &Y
HiER - TRMZINOTHEER - &
TEMBRER A FIER B A2 8FE o

18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following table lists out the information related
to Ace Cosmos Finance Limited, the subsidiary of the
Group which has material non-controlling interest.
The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

Ace Cosmos Finance Limited

—E_FHF —E-hF
2020 2019
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEER R A DX Non-controlling interest
percentage 27.58% 27.58%
JEMEEE Non-current assets 1,302,983 1,363,671
mENEE Current assets 405,085 404,959
mBAE Current liabilities (1,029,095) (1,028,612)
EMEBBE Non-current liabilities (39,770) (47,559)
BEFE Net assets 639,203 692,459
JEEIRE R BRE(E Carrying amount of
non-controlling interest 176,293 190,982
WA Revenue —
KFEEFE Loss for the year (53,256) (104,258)
RFEZHEBEER Total comprehensive expenses
for the year (53,256) (104,258)
DETIFERERZ Loss allocated to
] non-controlling interest (14,689) (28,754)
EEEBMEED Cash flows generated from
Reneg operating activities 218 12,371
REEZSEAIRERE Cash flows used in investing
activities (198) (12,928)
BMEEBMBAMIELME  Cash flows used in financing
activities - (139)
ReimA Grt) Fz8 Net cash inflows/(outflows) 20 (696)
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19.PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

—ECEF —E-NEF

2020 2019

FERT TETT

HK$’000 HK$'000

ERPYE Properties under development 1,496,021 1,496,668
[REIDE7/ES Completed properties 511,224 445,141
2,007,245 1,941,809

FEWEN L E M EHEEHH405F

E70F1F -

The lease term of the land use right of the properties

held for sale ranging from 40 years to 70 years.

20. A REEFTAEZZE®ME 20.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

J=3 THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—B-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
FE T FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRAREBEEFARRZZ Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss
REE LT 2 RAFE S Equity securities listed in Hong
(K15t (a) Kong (Note (a)) 31,168 7,938
FHIRE (H1at b)) Short-term investment (Note (b)) 426,878 242,279
458,046 250,217
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20 BAREEFABREZEHE

E (]|
Wiz

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note:

(@ AEERETERAZFERENAAE (@) The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed equity

BEERW33. 7P s S -

(b) MHEE BEREFTR
BIRITIW BEMARITELE - HEIR
2B MIE R IBERNZHERR &
EE O FTHES S IRB M ISR RE
FRENF1.35%%3.80% (=T — AN
F 1 1.65%%3.97%) °

21. R U E 5 Bk 5 5 H b FE UK AR X

FE UL B 5 R =K
HE=%

H fth & UL Bk 7K
BB R
MBE K ZKA
NEEBERES
B B A IR
Hitiz &

EL 18 UR R 3K

securities have been measured as described in Note 33.7.

TF R A B (b) The short-term investment represented structured
deposits which are placed with bank in the PRC and
contain embedded derivatives, the returns of which
are determined by reference to the performance of the

fluctuation of exchange rates in the market and the

interest rate earning for the range from 1.35% to 3.80%
(2019: 1.65% to 3.97%) per annum quoted in the market.

Trade receivables

From third parties

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Costs for obtaining contracts
Utilities deposits

Prepaid other taxes

Other deposits

Other receivables
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21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E-SHF —ET—hF
2020 2019
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,704 1,123
5,943 5,511
6,398 6,243
2,676 2,726

= 4,879

693 13,469
12,919 11,848
28,629 44,676
30,333 45,799
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21. B E 5 AR 508 H b A8 W AR K

(%)
REBNEZHEWKRIERERNER
NEBRE  AEBUGFEEBR  UE
EREEE S EWHIERBNEMRE
EREfE - BEWMEHRK - RIBETTEM
EXHEAHYUEZRUFR (BHE
H 5 NEMEKGRIES ) B R D AT a0
T~

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The trade receivables of the Group represent rental
and management fee in arrears. The Group maintains a
credit policy to minimise any credit risk associated with
trade receivables. As at the end of the reporting period
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables (which is
included in trade and other receivables), based on the
debit note or invoice date, is as follows:

—E=FF —TNF

2020 2019

TET FAET

HK$’000 HK$000

0-30 & 0-30 days 1,009 998
31-60 X 31-60 days 333 98
61-90 X 61-90 days 125 11
@90 X Over 90 days 237 16
1,704 1,123

EWESERELRERREIIES -

AEBYEBSXEEETRER  XEHF
BrRAEEREUNEBNEEEERR

MSEHNKAETERRESEER
EENMEENIEENA  EXFER
HEMAS AEBEEBSBERNL - W
R AR  ANFEDHTIE
= P ERR115,0008 T (ZF — N4 ¢
m) e

Hib WK BIEXNEZEmNRE
NETAEBEREMENERZYERN
EETRE - ENE2NERRBRKRS
UK - HtEFEHRER BT EER
RRETEKRH °

Trade receivables are due upon presentation of
invoices.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, and sufficient rental deposits are held to cover
potential exposure to credit risk.

Costs for obtaining contracts mainly represent the
incremental costs, primarily sales commission, as a
result of obtaining the pre-sale property contracts. The
Group has capitalised the amounts and amortised when
the related revenue are recognised. HK$115,000 (2019:
HK$Nil) has been recognised in profit or loss in current
year.

Other receivables included deposits paid to
constructors to perform construct works for the
Group’s investment properties and properties under
development. The credit risk of deposits paid are
considered to be low, therefore the impact on ECL is
considered as immaterial.
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2. BITHEEFRAE 22.BANK BALANCES AND CASH
—B-BF T NF
2020 2019
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
[REE SR e Pledged deposits 3,760 3,788
E HITE 3K Fixed deposits — 193,368
RITHETF Cash at bank 1,232,907 398,298
4R Total 1,236,667 595,454

R-ZZ—hAEXNA=1H  THEXR
7NAE B R EA AT B ENFE R 1.95%26.00%
R K& o

AEBMNBRTERSEHRBR2EY
1,198,612,0008 7T (=& — N5 :
573,082,000/ 7T ) H) R 1T 4 &7 17 LR
FEIRIRTT o IRBEBCHEARLFEHN
BB RGO ACEEEEEGEN) - R
THERBETSEREE -

ERY - EERARGES SRR
SRR BEMTREN  BAXSHTF
REBRERTRRELTSERTIR
H3RTT -

No fixed deposit noted for the year.

At 30 June 2019, the fixed deposits earn 1.95% to
6.00% interest per annum with an original maturity of 6

months.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
is approximately HK$1,198,612,000 (2019:
HK$573,082,000) of bank balances denominated are
placed with banks in the PRC. Under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the bank balances are not freely

transferred.

The credit risk on pledged deposits, fixed deposits and
cash at bank are considered to be insignificant because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings,

assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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23. HL fth P& A Bk 5K 23.OTHER PAYABLES

—E_FF —E-NEF
2020 2019
FERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HERE Tenant deposits 9,638 8,656
HiEMERA R ETE R Other payable and accruals 141,973 182,612
151,611 191,268
EMmENZFONEEEERAEEER The carrying values of other payables are considered to

AEEMNEGEIUUE - be a reasonable approximation of their fair value.
EMENZELRETERAIEZLE Other payable and accruals mainly included other tax
Bl - #2%E114,546,0007 7T (Z payable for sales of properties in PRC amounted to

ZT— 4 : 158,401,000 7T) B BIEHE HK$114,546,000 (2019: HK$158,401,000).

Hip BAIES ©
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24. EWEE 24.CONTRACT LIABILITIES
—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
FERT TETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RATKEY R E Contract liabilities arising from receipt
SIBMERNEE in advance from sale of properties 436,470 306,600

BHEEEIKREBNEENRSZE
RHREE - BIEMEHIREAREK - A&
R PEERBITERORENRS
BN AEEREFEERMIRB
SR L N

=+

RZZE-_ZFEFNA=Z+H A58
MEHNBENA —FARAERHDLY
436,470,000 7L - (ZZ — L F :
306,600,000/ 7T) R IEEFT KN —F A
BRABWA - EREBRERZF - Z2
HETEREAMEXNIHTE -

EHBEBEEFTY 248 5105,739,000
BL(ZE—LF B)ERFRER
=2 N

HRRBEF BV BEREERNEI155HD
RE - MMERASBTEB—FNEL
UARBEEDEGRELERMER QR
ZEE

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of
the end of the reporting period. The Group expects
the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue
when the Group transfers good or service to the

customer.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s contract liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$436,470,000 (2019:
HK$306,600,000) and are expected to be recognised
as revenue within one year. As a practical expedient,
the balance does not involve significant financing

component.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the
year amounting to approximately HK$105,739,000
(2019: Nil) have been recognised as revenue during the

year.

Since all the contracts with an original duration of
one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts

is not disclosed.
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EA—RBENTFEEKREKRE 25.AMOUNTS DUE TO A RELATED

IE COMPANY/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

ZpEAEIEM CENEBETER The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

B HEREEESEALEEHES - repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the

amounts due approximate their fair values.

ARREENLABEERFNERES A director of the Company is also the beneficial owner
A e of the related company.
BEREE 26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
BEREEBE AT - The analysis of the carrying amounts of borrowings is as
follows:
i —T-hNHF
2020 2019
H it FHET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
REBAE Current liabilities
RITERRN—FR Bank loans due for repayment
T Hf Z #B tn within one year (a) 1,261,920 1,163,687
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
BHER —F1& Bond due for repayment after
FI|E 7 &R 1n one year (b) 10,351 10,108
1,272,271 1,173,795
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26. E S5 E ()

Bret -

(@ PR|EEH  AEEORITFFRMER

26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) At the reporting date, the Group’s interest-bearing

BUAT A A - borrowings of bank loans were secured as follows:
—E-BF —E-NF
2020 2019
FERT THETT
HK$’000 HK$’000

BEEE: Interest-bearing borrowings:

— BEW (W () — Secured (Note (i) 1,261,000 1,144,500
— IR — Unsecured 920 19,187
1,261,920 1,163,687

Bati) |RATE R BER (H5E37) -
W ZBFI R B - R E
BH - RITERHERF X
51.4960% (ZE — L &F
3.2219%) °

EatE BRITER (BREEHE)
R AR -

Note (i) Bank borrowings are secured (Note 37) and
interest-bearing at floating rates. The effective
interest rate of the bank loans at the reporting
date is 1.4960% (2019: 3.2219%).

The above interest-bearing bank borrowings,
including the term loans, are carried at amortised

cost.
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26. B R fEE (&) 26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)

st - (4&) Notes: (Continued)

(b) fEHTM1E10,500,000/% T & FE I 8 & (b) Bond with nominal value of HK$10,500,000 is unsecured
VA 4F Rl 3£ 5% Y [E & A & A F 8 - 7 and bears interest at a fixed rate of 5% per annum. The
WEHZBEBREREG7.9450% © (&5 effective interest rate of the bond at the reporting date
MR R ELER - EEN - ENLE - is 7.9450%. The bond has no early redemption clause,
TRIRZBR - BEBEER_ZE-_FN is unconditional, unsubordinated, non-convertible,
AZ+XAEH EHFEFR—F& unsecured and with maturity date on 26 August 2022.
B wmoERERDEE - The bond classified as a non-current liability is expected

to be settled after one year.

FMBRTERFTRFEY BHE —RE All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
KL Z G - BEAREERERRED of covenants that are commonly found in lending
EeE e ESKEIREER - arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group

was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities

would become repayable on demand.

RITEEAAER FHERA2H8WE Bank borrowings are secured, details refer to Note 37.
37 c FAAKEREBE M EREIE Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
BEAMMFE33F R ZZETFR risk are set out in Note 33.3. As at 30 June 2020 and
Z-—NFARA=TH FHREREEHR 2019, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
HMGFREBWER - facilities had been breached.
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27 IEFERIH
FRECHERBEZHMT :

w+A—H

PE R ZE%R

HEMEEN
BEfEEEFE A (FER)

B H 2 m W a R

5”‘>
o
[
—+
i

27.DEFERRED TAXATION

The movements during the year in the deferred taxation

are as follows:

At 1 July

Exchange differences

Release on disposal of properties

Credited to /(Recognised in)
profit or loss

Recognised in other
comprehensive income

At 30 June
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—®-®& T hF
2020 2019
T#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(1,275,045) (1,174,297)
52,656 (3)
106,275
61,822 (100,271)
120 (474)
(1,054,172) (1,275,045)




27 JEFETLIE (48)
FRETHBEERAE (EERBE

EHREHAERRE) BT ¢

EEBIERE

R-ZZE—-NFtHA—H

P E#
EXHERET
BRtAREMZE K ST

RZE-NERA=THEK
—ET-NFtHA—H
EHERE

HEMEER

BGHA) /ZHEREF
ExHERMEPERGR

R-ZBEZEBEXA=T+H

27 .DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

GEMBRERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 July 2018
Exchange differences
Charged to profit or loss
Credited to other comprehensive

income

At 30 June 2019 and 1 July 2019

Exchange differences

Release on disposal of properties
(Credited)/Charged to profit or loss
Charged to other comprehensive

income

At 30 June 2020
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EfthEEY

MEiBE MEBIEFTN

Revaluation  Accelerated
of properties tax e
and LAT  depreciation Total
THET TAET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,187,248 27,138 1,214,386
3 - 3
102,100 51 102,151
474 - 474
1,289,825 27,189 1,317,014
(52,656) - (52,656)
(106,275) - (106,275)
(60,312) 72 (60,240)
(120) - (120)
1,070,462 27,261 1,097,723
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27 EERIE ()

FEEHRAEE

R_ZE—N\FLtH—H
BEiF AEEmF

R-ZE—NAFEXA=+tBK
—E-NFtH—H

B RS AR Sk R EERR AN TS

B 75 AR e 3R T R B
EEMIAEREFE

B 75 AR e 3R T R B
EEMIAREFE

27.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

BEE

Tax losses

THET

HK$’000

At 1 July 2018 (40,089)

Credited to profit or loss (1,880)
At 30 June 2019 and 1 July 2019

(41,969)

Credited to profit or loss (1,582)

At 30 June 2020 (43,551)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of

financial position:

—g-%F T A%
2020 2019
FHT FHT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net deferred tax assets recognised

in the statement of financial

position (16,290) (14,780)
Net deferred tax liabilities

recognised in the statement of

financial position 1,070,462 1,289,825

1,054,172 1,275,045
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IEIEFRIE (48) 27.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
RWERELEBEEE Unrecognised tax losses

B 2R R OE FOm B9 S AT TR R The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately
AEEARAABRNBEBEBL HK$243,829,000 (2019: HK$281,932,000) due to
5 #243,829,000 (=ZF — L& unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses do
281,932,000/ 70) - BB E T2 R not expire under current tax legislation.

RIRTTHUA M E i ©

HERR 28.LEASE LIABILITIES
TRETRTAEEHEEENRIHRS The following table shows the remaining contractual
RZEIEAHE : maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities:

RIEBEENREER
—F AN E|H
EE _EFRFINH

HEBENRE

REBEENKBEIRE
—F A2 H]
EE_EFRFINH

o —FREHBE D EA
mEBE

—F (R B B0 B B A
I B A

—E-EHF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
THERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Total minimum lease payments:
Due within one year 2,711 -
Due in the second to fifth years 1,012 -
3,723
Future finance charges on leases
liabilities 92) -
Present value of leases liabilities 3,631 -
Present value of minimum lease
payments:
Due within one year 2,627 -
Due in the second to fifth years 1,004 -
3,631
Less: Portion due within one year
included under current
liabilities (2,627) -
Portion due after one year included
under non-current liabilities 1,004 -
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28. HERE (F)

RNEB &Y RBEERTRE P EER
TP B REENFEI6H YN _-F
—NFLtA - BAARHVIREAER
BT RIEF A G ERE175H
REEHENHERBNEERE - =
T-NFERA=ZTHNLELBEERFARKR
Bt - BEEREMBHREERNE 16
SRV EE B M S o

AEERSRHEERGBEHRKETETT
EEE AR RS AR LB R - TR
HEHARRAE - BEMEELES
REFEZF-

HE-_ZE-_EFA=tTHILFE H
ERIRSREARTEL 53,168,000 7T °

28.LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 30 June 2019 has not
been restated. Details for transitions to HKFRS 16 are

set out in Note 3.

The Group considers that no extension option or
termination option would be exercised at the lease
commencement date. All leases are for offices,
warehouse and carpark. The lease periods are from one

to three years.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the total
cash outflow for the leases was approximately
HK$3,168,000.
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28.LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Details of the lease activities

28. HEEE (&)
HEFTHHNFHFHASE
R-_E—NWFLtA—BR-_ZE-FTHF As at 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020, the Group has
NA=ZTH  AEEEFEITPRAE B
EREEMHEESR -

entered into leases for offices, warehouse and carpark.

MHEBREBESHE FerHEH
ERAEEERE HONERAREE HEHE #@E =18
Financial
statements items Range of
Types of of right-of-use Number of remaining
right-of-use assets assets included in leases lease term Particulars
i SNE MR - RN T ++@EA TEABNEEMES
Office Property, plant and 1 17 months Subject to monthly
equipment fixed payment
RE MR - HER MR E T —1{E&A FEARNEERE
Warehouse Property, plant and 1 1 month Subject to monthly
equipment fixed payment
1REAL FEHEE 1 —1{& A THABNEEES
Carpark Short-term lease 1 1 month Subject to monthly
fixed payment
Fi/INE REHEE 2 WEEALER TEABNEEMES
Office Short-term lease 2 4-7 months Subject to monthly

fixed payment

Annual Report 2020 4¢3t | CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £& (%£B) AR2AA



J—

Aa MR E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

29 R AR # 1w
(A) B=&
BETHRZERE  Ordinary shares, issued and fully
paid:

BREEZERK - Voting ordinary shares:
RAFEL At the beginning of the year
ANRR S EEIM Issue of shares pursuant to scrip

BifRdn dividend scheme
RAFER At the end of the year
Htat

1. MABRKEETE

(a)

E-FE—NF+A=++
B AARREBER=ZZF—N
F+—A=1+THBAME AR
REFE - 4308317
Mo AR - #£15,502,561
B T — \FREAR
BEENRREZIRE -

EF-_E—NAFRA=ZH &
NEBBER-_ZE—NEMNA
ARGV IPS S AN
LA3.70% 7T 8 17 A & BC AR
5+ $£10,420,6810% 45 F 5t
—E-NFHEKREEZIN
AR B ZRRR -

Wit

Notes

Notes:

29.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(A) Share capital

It St 33 —Z-NE
2020 2019

R #E TER Ot TAT

Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
595,634,100 2,326,486 569,710,858 2,221,269
43,979,467 115,065 25,923,242 105,217
639,613,567 2,441,551 595,634,100 2,326,486

1. Scrip dividend scheme

(a)

On 27 December 2018, the Company issued
and allotted a total 15,502,561 ordinary shares
in the Company at HK$4.30 to shareholders
who elected to receive shares in the Company
in lieu of cash for the 2018 final dividend
pursuant to the script dividend scheme
announced by the Company on 30 November
2018.

On 3 May 2019, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 10,420,681 ordinary shares in
the Company at HK$3.70 to shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu
of cash for 2019 interim dividend pursuant to
the script dividend scheme announced by the

Company on 9 April 2019.
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

29.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(Continued)
(A) Share capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

1. URKBFE (&)

() BEZE—NF+=—A=+=
B AQAFREBER=_ZF—N
F+—A=—+—8B2QfMH
B DA B AR B EHE - BA3.00
BT BT o B 0 K
25,232,406/ %G TR = F
—NFERARKRBIEREURR
BZRE -

(dy EZZE=ZTEFRHARA &
NERENR T T FENA
Z“HAMH KRR ETE
LA2.107 7T 8 77 1 5 B iR
13 - $£18,747,0610% 45 T 5t
ZETFREIREERZEMN
R B 2R -

2. PRALA LR AT 2 BT,
R EERARDBAMER -

3. RFER AEARAZHERR

Scrip dividend scheme (Continued)

(c)

On 23 December 2019, the Company issued
and allotted a total 25,232,406 ordinary shares
in the Company at HK$3.00 to shareholders
who elected to receive shares in the Company
in lieu of cash for the 2019 final dividend
pursuant to the script dividend scheme
announced by the Company on 21 November
2019.

On 5 May 2020, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 18,747,061 ordinary shares in
the Company at HK$2.10 to shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu
of cash for 2020 interim dividend pursuant to
the script dividend scheme announced by the

Company on 3 April 2020.

All shares issued as mentioned in Note 1 above rank

pari passu with the existing shares of the Company

in all respects.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold

BE  HEIBOARE ZRND -

or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities

during the year.
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29. A K fe# 5 (#E) 29.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(Continued)
(B) f#f& (B) Reserve
b /NS The Company

CREE
Retained
profits/total
reserves
TETT
HK$’000
R_ZE—-NF+H—H Balance at 1 July 2018 97,429
REFEE Profit for the year 33,396
FFEEZEWREATE Total comprehensive income for the year 130,825
EHERENN =T — NF R E 2018 final dividend approved and paid (85,457)
BEHEREN 2T —NLFEFRERKRE 2019 interim dividend approved and paid (43,891)

RZZE-NFRA=+TERK Balance at 30 June 2019 and 1 July 2019
—E-NFtA—H 1,477
KEFERF Profit for the year 208,256
TFEEEREBRABE Total comprehensive income for the year 209,733
BHENREN ZZE—LFRIKE 2019 final dividend approved and paid (89,345)
EHEREN ZZE T F P HARE 2020 interim dividend approved and paid (46,565)
R-FB-ZFTFXA=1+H Balance at 30 June 2020 73,823
RZE_ZEFXA=+H RE At 30 June 2020, the aggregate amounts of reserves
EBNTEHIE6R 2 R ETE - available for distribution to equity shareholders of
AIDIKRTFTARNABBRR 2 FEELERE the Company, as calculated under the provisions
572,823,000 Bt (ZE—NLF: of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
1,477,000 7T) ° was approximately HK$73,823,000 (2019:

HK$1,477,000).
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30.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

—E-EHF —E-NF
2020 2019
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IRBEE Non-current assets
NI F Interests in subsidiaries 254,727 254,737
JrE WY JBB A B 3RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 171,502 172,650
426,229 427,387
RBEE Current assets
JE WY JB8 R B) RRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,725,373 2,388,980
RITEFLRS Bank balances and cash 558 169
2,725,931 2,389,149
RBAE Current liabilities
H At JE T BR X Other payables 1,356 1,303
AR NETE =] Amounts due to subsidiaries 454,897 317,980
456,253 319,283
REBEEFE Net current assets 2,269,678 2,069,866
HEERARBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,695,907 2,497,253
FRBER Non-current liabilities
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 10,351 10,108
RN Advances from a director 170,182 159,182
180,533 169,290
EEFE Net assets 2,515,374 2,327,963
g EQUITY
&% 75 Share capital 2,441,551 2,326,486
f## (K15329(B)) Reserves (Note 29(B)) 73,823 1,477
REHBEHE Total equity 2,515,374 2,327,963
iRy Hik B
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil Yung Philip
EF z5F
Director Director
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SILEBEBREANLTZERRS 31.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
BRRAFBRREMTDER 2R S In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
SERIN AT ASEEEAREAL elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
RERNETZIERARS during the year, the Group had the following material

transactions with connected and related parties:

— —E-NF
2020 2019
gz FHET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
XN FEEERBAER Remuneration paid to key
e BREHTE management personnel,
T3S F including amounts paid to
RRARIEEME - the Company’s directors as
disclosed in Note 13:
FehkHEMEHES Salaries and other short-term
=gl employee benefits 15,584 15,817
BERR 12 18 7 Post-employment benefits 108 90
15,692 15,907
FMEMTHLEZEL Interest paid to Dr. Chao Sze
Tsung Cecil (a) 9,971 10,709
ST TRt AN Architect and other
BBRAF (CCAL]) X professional service fees
B R ET ORPT) paid to Cecil Chao &
BRAF ([CCDML])  Associates Limited (“CCAL")
AR R it HXE A and Cecil Chao Design
(Macau) Limited (“CCDML") (b) 4,200 24,150
AT FHEFEE S Commission paid to Szehope
BRAGHASE Securities Company Limited  (c) 113 4
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EAEEEATZEARXE (&) 31.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Bret -

(a)

ittt AREEREEKRLE
EEERABZBR  RBTRER
BIM%stERBE R -_T-FF XA
T+ R EttEEtISATAEE B
K A170,182,0008 70 (= — N 4F -
159,182,000/ 70) - fE ittt S 1F 1+ B %
RIS ERAEEERLBREER
SEEEER DAL -

CCALKRCCDMLIK 15 & 75 5T 7E 2 & 3K
RUHBERAMBEBARBE TARER -
it 218+ ACCALRCCDMLZ B 25
BB A ZEX SR ETRAET4A
EAECEERERS - EmHAA
FUUAEZBRBEEREEEETEWMES
PR o

Bt BHL R RESERARZE
HEAA ©

BRIA £ ATl 9h - 0 R B AT B
FARAMELETIREBNEEZR
2 wHR R HEALH - MARAE
ENERBALITRZERS  THX
BHTEEREREFTEAER -
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Notes:

(a)

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has provided unsecured
advances to the Group at 1% over prime interest
rate in Hong Kong per annum. At 30 June 2020,
the advances from Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
amounted to approximately HK$170,182,000 (2019:
HK$159,182,000). Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has
confirmed that he will not request repayment of these

advances in coming one year.

CCAL and CCDML rendered architectural and related
services to the Group on terms agreed between both
parties. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner
of CCAL and CCDML. These transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the

reports of the directors.

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner of

Szehope Securities Company Limited.

Other than the above, no other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company or a
connected entity of the director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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N.ERETEHELENEBSHNYEE 32.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
METHELENAEEEBEEHAH The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

MR - financing activities can be classified as follows:

BELA FER
BEfBE EEBR Advance Amounts

HEARE Interest- Advance froma  due to non-
Lease bearing from a related  controlling
liabilities  borrowings director company shareholders

TRT TR TRT TET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

—T-NEF 1 July 2019

+H—H - 1,173,795 159,182 1,381 239,990
MIRAEBE®  Impact on initial application of

HEEBF1657 2 HKFRS 16 (Note 3)

TE(Hi#3) 6,296 - - - -
—T-hEF 1 July 2019 (adjusted)
T A— B HE) 6,296 1,173,795 159,182 1,381 239,990
Berg: Cash-flows:
—-8% ~ Repayment - (499,559) - - -
ik - Proceeds - 597,792 11,000 - -
-ENHAEELH - Capital element of lease
BATLER rentals paid (2,840) - - - -
—BEDQAIEE - Increase in advance from
Zm a related company - - - 166 -
FRE: Non-cash:
—ERFE - Interest expense 175 _ _ _ _
—EEFIE — Interest accruals - 243 _ _ _
g g 2 30 June 2020
AXB=tH 3,631 1,272,271 170,182 1,547 239,990
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NEBEZHELENRENHRK

(&)
—T-N\F 1 July 2018
+A—H
Renme Cash-flows:
—&N ~ Repayment
-5 — Proceeds
—BERQAIBE - Increase in advance from
Bm a related company
R Non-cash:
— T F B — Interest accruals
—E-NF 30 June 2019
ANB=18

3.emMEKMEERAAEBEEE 33.

R
AREBAE-REBEBEFERIRER
PIEEERTATDYSRER &R
B B 5EE (BEIMNERR - F
R NMEMERRR)  EERRK
MEE & EE -

ERME T A AR R EBER &
EfERREFIINT - EEEEEN
EfE Ut B A REOR B B R RE R A
BRI HETT ©

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

32.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Continued)

IR

BELA RERBH

BREE ELbA Amounts

HEaR Interest- EE8F Advance from  due to non-
Lease bearing Advance from arelated  controlling
liabilities  borrowings a director company  shareholders
TRT TR TRT TET THRT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 1,213,299 128,782 1,452 239,990

- (180,950 - - -

- 140,950 30,400 - -

- - - (71 -

- 496 - - -

- 1,173,795 159,182 1,381 239,990

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of
operations and in its investment activities. The financial
risks include market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and

liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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3.2 FERMEERAABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

BE (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

BIETHEEREEER 33.1Categories of financial assets and liabilities
LTHERzeMEENESREBEN The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
REEZINEMBERAREKA - statement of financial position relate to the

following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities:

—E-FHF —ET-hHF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
TREE Financial assets
REHEE Amortised cost:
JEWE 5 BR % & HoAth Trade and other receivables
JrE Ug BR 3R 15,316 26,440
RITHERKRRE Bank balances and cash 1,236,667 595,454
/NI ﬁfﬁﬁ‘)\ﬁﬁﬁ Financial assets at FVTOCI:
2 H W Z%ﬂﬁ%i
KARE HEEBE Perpetual notes, listed in Hong
Kong 123,174 130,069
KARE HEEB Perpetual notes, listed outside
) Hong Kong 4,418 3,064
& &EB/EL™ Debentures, listed in Hong Kong 4,495 9,150
&% EBBHEIN LM Debentures, listed outside Hong
Kong 58,617 31,265
WARBEFTAEZZ  Financial assets at FVTPL:
‘:Eraﬁ BE -
RHEE Short-term investment 426,878 242,279
REEEELD Listed equity securities held for
&N trading 31,168 7,938
1,900,733 1,045,659
ERMAaR Financial liabilities
B HEE - Amortised cost:
A FE 1~ BR IR Other payables 149,723 190,264
JEE < FE #258 A I ER SR 0B Amount due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 239,990
J& < B3 N Rl FIR Amount due to a related company 1,547 1,381
EERfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,272,271 1,173,795
EEBN Advance from a director 170,182 159,182
HERE Lease liabilities 3,631 -
1,837,344 1,764,612
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BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

3.2 FERMEERAABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.21= & E k& 33.2Credit risk

EERREXZEHFENEANE
FERAEERBEENRR - K
SEERMBREREERIINR
FHEFITRE - WHEBEEBER T
FRMHNER SR - URERZOMS
R B ISR R AR

AEBENEERRIEZEXREES
NE A EURIR o AN E B R TE
o ERERMIRITAR LIRS
EERBRERERMTCE AR/
ZEFREL  PEMBREEA
TBRIT YEREEEFNR K
SERSZEFEREBREIE - &1
RITHBERNR  ERERFE
MRXZHFEHIEETER -
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Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk

of financial loss from defaults.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk on pledged deposits, fixed deposits
and bank balances and cash are considered to be
insignificant because the counterparties are the
major banks in the Hong Kong, PRC and Malaysia
with established credit ratings, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk. Given the high
credit ratings of the banks, management does
not expect any counterparties to fail to meet its

obligations.
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33.eMEREERAABEEE

BUR (&)
33.2f5 B Ak (8)

ESEKSE

A& BER A L 505 AR B 15 3R
HEBIFBORFTBEENTEBREAE
Ko REITEFEHEREX  BEF5E
WHRIBERBEAZEERBFER
MBS - TR EFEHERE
KBEE  SEERELEZMNA
EHEEE - ARBIRBRNRZHE
WHEWREENKR  WEEHE
M zABRERPXHHERE -
Bl 1tk BT 7 260 HA ) JE LU RR SR 0 4% & 5T
HERERBARARKE - X&H
EHE—ZTE-_TFA=1THI
FEMNEZEKFIBNTERERE
KEBERL  BRAEFPHNEERER

BBERLTENRMELHEER
BRAEETARMEEH K0 1E
FRE
REBHEKATENHLEREER
ElFR R M EWRIE AR E
Bt ARt 2mE W a2 EHFRE K
R MIRTTHEE - REEREER
Rk REEEBHRBEELGER
A0 8% AN 38 1 48 B DA I B AT AN BB AR
B BRI E 1T E MR RS ANE
At - CHEHMEERRRF - A
R BTV DB HER -
UM S - TR R H Al FE W IR R
EERBREESEE -

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.2Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group has applied the simplified approach
to assess the ECL as prescribed by HKFRS 9. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the past due days. In calculating the ECL
rates, the Group considers historical elements and
forward-looking elements. Assessed lifetime ECL
rate of trade receivables is minimal for all ageing
bands as there was no recent history of default and
continuous payments were received, and rental
deposits are required from tenants prior to the
commencement of leases. The Group determined
that the ECL allowance in respect of trade
receivables for the year ended 30 June 2020 is
minimal as there has not been a significant change

in credit quality of the customers.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost include deposits and other receivables
debt investment at FVTOCI and cash and bank
balances. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group would make
periodic collective and individual assessment on
the recoverability based on historical settlement
records and past experience as well as current
external information. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In these regards,
the credit risk of deposits and other receivables are

considered to be low.
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3.2 FERMEERAABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (88) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
332 E @k () 33.2Credit risk (Continued)

BEBHEXL B RMELHEER
BAAEE ARMEEH K&
FRE (&)

HRRARBEF ARLMEERS
WEBEEAARENERTH
Fit N EE AR AR EE AR
EEWEFOEBREFAZHNE
RERR - EREITANRIEE
AR BERERAERMPES A
CRERITER -

RNAREEED G EMEKIRN
TEHEMBRE12(E ANEHRER
BRIDETRIE - A5 B TIaHER
NRZE SR EERNE TR E
BEEN ABRE T -TFA
—tHLEFEMNEORBRRE -

333RBEEER

MBIEER T HE AN R B REEBITH
FBAaBENEENER - AEEE
HnsltrEp T 2REEEETY
BEEALREHEERSRENEE
REERANAREMRERRB XA
HeRDEZFE Mg —&
EEBZRSREREN S B
M NBRASE R AR EHER R
MRS RHEREESBHEENEE
RNEZEGHEE  UReR kR
HOWESHE -

AEEAHFECREEBARDE
THE URACARERRDE

LA
& R bR o

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk on debt
investment at FVTOCI are considered to be
insignificant because the debt investment at
FVTOCI are with good credit rating, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk. Given the
good credit ratings of the issuers, management does
not expect any counterparties to fail to meet its
obligations.

The directors of the Company have assessed that
the ECL for other receivables are minimal under the
12-months ECL method as there is no significant
increase in credit risk on these financial assets
since initial recognition and the risk of default is
low during the year ended 30 June 2020.

33.3Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its payables and financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants by reviewing each operating
entity’s cash flow forecast, to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions and related parties to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have

been effective in managing liquidity risks.
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33.eMEREERAABEEE

HE(E)
333RBELEME (&)

AREBERARRANR_F_FTFR_
E-NFRA=ZTHHTHEEL
Bz MR ERAMRNE SR
E(BREREA QO EMRTER
B sk HRFL - AIRERE
HEIRTHR) R 22T -
EERANEZEREEMNRKE

17 ZABERAEERARFRS
BT AR - EEREADH
ANET BE-EFHROEEAR
SEEARARERBEXNZEH -

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.3Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as
at 30 June 2020 and 2019, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date). When the creditor
has a choice of when the liability is settled, the
liability is included on the basis of the earliest date
on when the Group can be required to pay. Where
the settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in
which the Group is committed to pay.

A4 - RERRERA

Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

BR-E  SHRE
R-ERE  BIRWE BOREE  AERR
BEER  Morethan  Morethan  FHLAE

BEE  Within1  1yearbut 2 years but Total
Carrying  year or on less than less than  undiscounted
amount demand 2 years 5 years cash outflows

TER TR TEn TER TER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

R=B-BFAA=1H At 30 June 2020

FiteRas Non-derivative financial liabilities

HiERER Other payables 149,723 149,723 - = 149,723

ERERRRESR Amount due to non-controlling shareholders 239,990 239,990 > = 239,990

EREBRAZE Amount due to a related company 1,547 1,547 - - 1,547

HEfEE Interest-bearing bhorrowings 1,272,271 1,262,445 525 10,500 1,273,470

E2DH Advances from a director 170,182 - 180,392 - 180,392

HEER Lease liahilities 3,631 2,711 1,012 - 3,723
18734 1656416 181929 10500 1,848,845

RZZ-NERR=TH At30 June 2019

FITEEHEE Non-derivative financial liabilities

HA R Other payables 190,264 190,264 - - 190264

EREAREESN Amount due to non-controlling shareholders 239,990 239,990 - - 239,990

EREELANE Amount due to a related company 1,381 1,381 - - 1,381

FERE Interest-bearing borrowings 1173795 1,164,212 525 11,005 1,175,762

EEEE Advances from a director 159,182 - 168,732 - 168,732
1,764,612 1,595,847 169,257 11,025 1,776,129
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3.2MEKREERAABEEE

B (48)

333RBELEME (&)
Fitsr B ERNESBEEIERBET
MAERIGHROERER - BRIEE
RPN ENTETEERY T
ERMEROITBLENT - 2S5
BEFEAAOMNEAENTEX
o ZEREBIAREBEMNIT AR - A
NEBEERBRITTIAAIREITEE
BRI E SR AEE - ARRES
HiE THERBBREBEERBGHT
HHEBERERBHEE -

R-E-EERA=1A At 30 June 2020
FTEEREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BREE Interest-bearing borrowings

RoZ-NEAAZTER
FEsRet

EERE

At 30 June 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings

0 525 B9 F 6 0 Y L 4 4 4 TR T
EEREBRFIETR AT
SREBIDHEIAMRDENS
BARGHERI -

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.3Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for interest-
bearing borrowings comprised term loans from
banks with a requirement on demand clause.
The maturity analysis of the term loans based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements is summarised as follows. The
amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company
do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that the term loans will be repaid on accordance
with the schedules repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

VALK -ERREREER AR R ERMR
Maturity Analysis - Term loans subject to a repayment on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments

SR-5  SRWE
R-Fn  EIRRE EIREE  ARRRE
FHEER  Morethan  Morethan  FiLAE
BEE  Within1  Tyearbut 2 yearshut Total
Carrying  year or on less than less than  undiscounted
amount demand 2 years 5 years ~cash outflows
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,272,271 1,281,480 525 11,025 1,293,030
1173795 1228,638 771 1815 1,412

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those effective
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
year.
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

33.eMEREERAABEEE

B (48)
33.4F) = 7 B

MERRIEVBTIAEZ AREESK
RenEgREMSNEREMZE
B R - RIRBERNIRITET
Hh  REBRARANEEKRNE L
BEEE -

KEIZWTH fEZERBRR

HEEABRT Lﬁﬁ?xéf&ﬁ%%
E - HPERERITERNERR
A &t%ﬁﬁﬁt%aﬁbﬂﬁ - E A
SEEHRSREMNERELR - BRI
RBEERNBEELBEGR  BFE
REBEMRLFBRITREREE
B NERGREENE -

REBZXARBEREFZFBEEE
WA AEEHNERBRTESR -

7N 5% 8 3 {55 PR 58 B ) = 3 e ) R
JELFg

AEBEBHFREDRBERABAEIEIN
E@gﬁﬁl‘jﬁkﬁ ’ quu/"%Eﬁ@Z)dl

RZEBE-ZFRA=+H ' FBEHF
R F, TS0 T B EAM

EETE  gRd EnAEE
bR B 1& & F & AR B s F #9816,000
BT (ZF—NF : 493,037,000/%
JC) ° %508 F 2 LI THRAAEE
f%%TE%ET%i&%EﬁNJ%ZE}
"""""" v

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.4Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Except
for bank balances, the Group has no significant

interest-bearing assets.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank balances and cash, short-term investment
and interest-bearing borrowings which includes
bank loans and advances from a director. These
arrangements issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. In accordance
with the terms of the interest-bearing borrowings,
the interest rate will be adjusted should the Hong
Kong dollar prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) be changed.

The Group’s perpetual notes and debentures are
earning fixed interest rate, therefore it is immaterial

to interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to

hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior year are

considered to be effective.

At 30 June 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease/increase the Group’s profit after
income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$816,000 (2019: approximately HK$3,037,000).
The 50 basis point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the

next annual reporting date.
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3.2 FERMEERAABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

B (48)
33.5 9N EE &L B

INERBIEERMEEZ A
REEREHARERKEMZ I
TE o AEEBTENEE -
T RPBEEE - KRR 50 Rl
F8  BRAELRPENEMEN
BE - DUNERHENEMEENRE
Bz Yo [ =

& B
B BT

R-ZB-ZEFXA=1+H
Z 5 & H th fE U BR 3N
BIIEFERERE

BAREFARMEE S

LERMEE

A B R R E

% E-NEFXA=1H
5 Ko B b JE W R 3R
THEZREBE2

%@Aﬁﬁkﬁﬁiﬁw

ZEMEE

A AR E

(EE%S

S i}

33.5Foreign currency risk

in foreign exchange rates.

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
The Group operates
mainly in Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated in the local

currencies of Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and

liabilities, translated into HK$ at closing rates, are

as follows:

At 30 June 2020

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Overall net exposure

At 30 June 2019

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Overall net exposure
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RMB Us$
FHxT FH&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
662 -
- 3,699

- 190,704
662 194,403
662 -
- 5,436

- 173,548
662 178,984
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BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

3P.2@EAMREERAAEBMEEREE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
B (48) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
33.5JMNEE [EL B (48) 33.5Foreign currency risk (Continued)
BRESITE BT - NEEE The Group did not have significant foreign currency
EoEAIT 2 EMIEEKRINER risk between US$ and HK$ as HK$ is pegged with
o SNERBEE S TEE - US$. The foreign currency risk are considered
immaterial.
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3.2 FERMEERAABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.6 H b E 1% E k2 33.60ther price risk

HiBREAREMBIAZARE
@@%Xﬁéﬁ%é%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
(R =) R INESBFRIN)

ﬁ@%ﬂ“°$$.£x@ﬂtm
BRAZFFOTHERES  ZFL
mkﬁ%&é“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
ABRzemMEEREBESF DA
RFAEEIHNEREF LA
TENSREE - EREESEEE
REEE  BRERIELEEMNIT
@j} °

AEEEHFECREABEER
ﬁﬂfﬂﬂﬂ B - WRBE K

o

§§'r

BEREBREMIO0% (ZFE—AN
F10%) BRESHREENF
ZEEZEWMT

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is mainly exposed to
change in market prices of listed equity securities in
respect of its investments in listed equity classified
as financial assets at FVTPL and debt securities
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI. The
management will monitor the price movements and

take appropriate actions when it is required.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are

considered to be effective.

A hypothetical 10% (2019: 10%) change in prices
of trading investments would result in an effect to

the Group’s result for the year as follows:
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AEBHEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.60ther price risk (Continued)

—ECEH
2020
TR
HK$’000
Increase in profit for the year as
a result of increase in price of
financial assets at FVTPL
3,116
Decrease in profit for the year
as a result decrease in price of
financial assets at FVTPL
(3,116)
Increase in other comprehensive
income for the year as a result
of increase in price of financial
assets at FVTOCI 19,070
Decrease in other comprehensive
income for the year as a result
decrease in price of financial
assets at FVTOCI (19,070)

—E-hF
2019
FAT
HK$’000

794

(794)

17,355

(17,355)
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33.eMEKBEERAA
B (&)
BIRGAHBRREXFERATLE

BEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.7Fair value measurements recognised in the

FrE
TRINTASEE SR T ARREH
MERBIZEEEERTECAR
BE  WREEBVHERELASE
PBRARBEIFEMATZI=ZER
AEEEMNE D c AABEZEM
KRAMERDGD 2B ABIE LSS AIE
RRESEZEUHmMELENA TS -

— ERASE  AE - RBAME
HEZAREE  BDWARE
B A EN B B R RS
R R R

— F_AMHE:UAE_FBAE
AEZAREE MHEHBAE
ZAIBREHARARTEE R
BAE EEER2HAEILI
ERTAEBRZEE - TR B
R 2 NME R E T I5 B8R ]
E2ZE 2@ A E

— FZAME:ERTAERH
BIEEZHABUGTEZ AR
BE

TREENBEEREEROBEZIAR
BREAZEBR BERHAAE
AEAAERER ZHKERENE
A1E °

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement.
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3.2 FERMEERAABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

HR ()
BBIRGBEMBRRARARRZATE
it & ()

RiFE PR REKR T IR A AER
EZEREBEENMABRAABELRS

W

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Conti

33.7Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial positio
(Continued)

nued)

n

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value in the consolidated statement of financial

DN position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as
follows:
g EE mat
RZEBEZZFXA=1TH At30 June 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Hf it THERT FTHET FTET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
mAREEF AIEZEZ  Financial assets at FVTPL:
TREE -
BHEEEELD Listed equity securities
NG held for trading (a) 31,168 - 31,168
HERE Short-term investment (c) = 426,878 426,878
BAREBEF AHEMEE Financial assets at
WazemEE : FVTOCI:
KARE HEEE Perpetual notes, listed in
i) Hong Kong (b) - 123,174 123,174
KAZEE - EBHEEI Perpetual notes, listed
= outside Hong Kong (b) = 4,418 4,418
B EREL™ Debentures, listed in
Hong Kong (b) - 4,495 4,495
BEE EHEBEN T Debentures, listed
outside Hong Kong (b) - 58,617 58,617
31,168 617,582 648,750
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3.2 FERMEERAABMEEE 33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

HR () FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
BIRGEMBRRARIBRZAFE 33.7Fair value measurements recognised in the
T2 (%) consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

EF—E Nl = Bat
RZZT—HFENA=+H At30)June 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Total

i TAET TAET TR
Note  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BE Assets
ZAREE ABZ 2 Financial assets at FVTPL:
EMEE
BFEIEEE LMIRAZES Listed equity securities
held for trading (a) 7,938 - 7,938
HERE Short-term investment (c) - 242,279 242,279
BAREBEFAEM Financial assets at
FERGE 2 EBMERE:  FVTOCH
KAEE EHEAELM Perpetual notes, listed in
Hong Kong (b) - 130,069 130,069
KAZEWE - EEHEEI Perpetual notes, listed
=il outside Hong Kong (b) - 3,064 3,064
BF EBAELD Debentures, listed in
Hong Kong (b) - 9,150 9,150
BEE EHEBEN T Debentures, listed
outside Hong Kong (b) - 31,265 31,265
7,938 415,827 423,765
RBEHREAEE—E - F_EX There has been no transfer among levels 1, 2 and 3
F-EGHEE® - in the reporting period.
EAERERRLE  EEAAE The methods and valuation techniques used for
EfEANEMBTARRMEE XK the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
o compared to the previous reporting periods.
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3.2 A MEERAAEEEE
BUK (48)
BIRGEUBRAXPERZAFME
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33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

33.7Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

Note:

(@)

Listed equity securities held for trading

The listed equity securities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting

date.

Listed debt securities

The listed debt securities are denominated in United
States dollars. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting
date.

Short-term investment
Fair values have been determined by reference to the

performance of the fluctuation of exchange rates on

the market.

33.8Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried

at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial

instruments carried at amortised cost are not

materially different from their fair value as at 30
June 2020.
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34.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost

of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by
total capital. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total borrowings (including current and non-
current interest-bearing borrowings and advances from
a director as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less bank balances and cash. Total
capital is equity as shown in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged since 2009, was to maintain a gearing ratio
of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at 30 June
2020 and 2019 were as follows:



—

GEMBREME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

34.

EXERE (&)

BEREE

EEEBX

(CESGE

o IRITERLRE

H+

REFR

/

BEXR (K TE)

BER

R

= £

g

Th

fret - MEARBEMBEEARARRAFE

AR -

34.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Advance from a director

Total borrowings

Less: bank balances and cash

Net debt

Total capital (Note)

Gearing ratio

attributable to owners of the Company.
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2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000
1,272,271 1,173,795
170,182 159,182
1,442,453 1,332,977
(1,236,667) (595,454)
205,786 737,523

6,555,623 6,638,727

3.14% 11.10%

Note: Total capital includes all capital and reserves
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35. 7% ¥ 35.COMMITMENTS
(@) EARFEIE (a) Capital commitments
R¥E BN ERTYEZ EAE Capital commitments in respect of properties
PR R T BB IE AT B SRR under development outstanding at the reporting
B date not provided for in the consolidated financial

(b)

statements are as follows:

—E®F —E-NF

2020 2019

FTET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

CHEBRER Contracted but not provided for 291,419 325,420
BEHE-AHEEA (b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

RER  XEERBAYMEET At the reporting date, the Group had future

BERUBZ AT - RRWE Z 1K aggregate minimum lease rental receipts under

HEEKFBELT non-cancellable operating leases in respect of the

Group’s properties as follows:

= —F-NF

2020 2019

THERT TATT

HK$’000 HK$’000

—F R Within one year 34,926 27,452
—FBEEMEN After 1 year but within 2 years 4,613 10,372
MFRE=FNA After 2 years but within 3 years 503 274
=FRENFA After 3 years but within 4 years — 164
40,042 38,262
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35. 7 IE (&)
(b) ¥BEHE-HEEA (H)

AEERBKEHELHEEER
Bz (MeE14) - VIZHER—
ERF - WADEERIIBSEARE
EEZHEFESHERN R RETE
SRR - MHER—RBERKBEP
XNREL - HEHTEEXEH

A
= °

(c) EEHE-RAEAMEA
RZE_ZEFA=+H" Zlgli

35. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor
(Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (Note
14) under operating lease arrangements which
run for initial periods of one to five years, with an
option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective tenants. The terms of the lease
generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits. None of the leases include contingent

rentals.

(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessee

As at 30 June 2020, the lease commitments for

EREHEE s HERE(Z short-term leases (2019: future minimum rental

F ET\%}%‘K}%Z@%’UTE&&KiH payables under non-cancellable operating leases) of
H&EBES)OT : the Group are as follows:

2020 2019

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

—F R Within one year 164 2,849

F_EERF In the second to fifth years

inclusive = 3,723

164 6,572

RZEB_ZFXXA=1TH  ~&H As at 30 June 2020, the Group committed to a

EAmHERAINI2EAZR
EO

ZERERFIEHNH 28 ©

lease for a warehouse in which the lease period is

within 12 months.

Details of these leases are set out in Note 28.
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35. 74 (#&) 35.COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(c) BEHE-AFEBEA (&) (c) Operating lease commitments — as lessee
(Continued)
R-ZB—NFARNA=1TH X&H As at 30 June 2019, the Group leases properties
RBKEHEREY X - HEWNY) under operating leases. The leases run for an initial
R EABR 3 k6fE A - AILARIEE period of 3 years or six months, with an option to
FIMEE  WHEIHASKEEESRS renew the lease and renegotiate the terms at the
ERAEREER BB E I AH K expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between
K- MHELHTBEREXEES - the Group and respective landlords. None of the

leases include contingent rentals.

36. MBRREK 36.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS OF
THE COMPANY

KARERETFTETHERAMD The Company has executed corporate guarantees to
RITHMEMBPITIBRLRAAER 2 banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
¥8 52,254,000,000 (Z & — L &F subsidiaries to the extent of HK$2,254,000,000 (2019:
2,354,000,000/8770) - EfF = - =F HK$2,354,000,000) of which HK$1,261,000,000
FRA=THEME%1,261,000,000 (2019: HK$1,144,500,000) was utilised as at 30 June
—ZE— L  1,144,500,000%F 7T) ° 2020. At the reporting date, no provision for the
RFEHE BRESZAANBATE Company’s obligation under the guarantee contracts
EERDKRAIGEEAL - M AR F] have been made as the directors considered that it was
BEREDETHEEIELEE - Bk not probable that the repayment of the loans by the
REOARBELITEE - subsidiaries would be in default. The fair value of these

guarantees was immaterial.
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37.

EEEH

RmER  AREBETIEEIRZ &
R1TEE 5H1,261,000,0005 ¢ (= F
— L 1 1,144,500,000/%8 7T) :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

REENETREME FHE
MERTHREFT  HEEES
B A2,972,900,0008 7T ( —Z— A
% 2,205,600,000 7 7v) (Ff5E
14) ~ 1,539,000 B (ZZE—Ah
% 11,539,000 #7v) (Mizk19) &
36,400,000 7T (=& — L5 -
36,400,000/ 7T) (FI5E15) 2 R
THRTT

HTHEBRBITAEERAGEER
FIE

SRITASTFRRMEIES, 760,000/8 7T (=
ZT— A4 ¢ 3,788,000/ 7T) O 1EK
(M 5E22)

ETHBRAR 2N EEEFIRIT
(MtsE18);

HETHEOLE RS - Riglkas -
HeWARRME LM HRNIRE
)53

BRARBEFAEMEEER 2
& E 49190,704,0008 T (=&
—NEF:RBRARBEFAHEMEEAE
Wz & @& E4173,548,000/%
7T) (MEEE17) °

37.PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the reporting date, the Group’s total bank borrowings
of HK$1,261,000,000 (2019: HK$1,144,500,000) were

secured by the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

legal charges on certain of the Group’s investment
properties, properties held for sales and land and
building with carrying values of approximately
HK$2,972,900,000 (2019: HK$2,205,600,000)
(Note 14), HK$1,539,000 (2019: HK$1,539,000)
(Note 19) and HK$36,400,000 (2019:
HK$36,400,000) (Note 15) respectively;

floating charge over all the assets and undertakings

of certain subsidiaries;

charge over certain bank account balances with
carrying values of approximately HK$3,760,000
(2019: HK$3,788,000) (Note 22);

mortgages over the shares of certain subsidiaries

(Note 18);

assignments of sale proceeds, insurance proceeds,
rental income and deposits arising from the tenancy

agreements of certain properties; and

financial assets at FVTOCI of approximately
HK$190,704,000 (2019: HK$173,548,000) (Note
17).
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Property

BREMANBLEE
SR (F1)
Scenic Crest

Mui Wo

Lantau Island

New Territories

Hong Kong (Portion)

BBR R AHEEL0R
MRILE (317)

South View Garden

80 Shek Pai Wan Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

(Portion)
BARE % F8200%:
7 (8h)

Villa Cecil 200 Victoria
Road, Hong Kong (Portion)

BEITEIEEE30%
S5 L3 (31)

Cheuk Nang Lookout,

30 Severn Road, The Peak,
Hong Kong (Portion)

W&

Lot no.

48716305

716inDD. 4

1184, 185, 186, 187,
188, 189, 1901915
A.LL. 184, 185, 186,187
188, 189, 190 &191

M3 83385 BEL
REEE R
Sec. Bof I.L. 8338 & Ext.

MAREMHE 10675

R.B.L. 1067

COMPLETED PROPERTIES
As at 30 June 2020

WREH

Government

lease term
(%)

(years)

FHH1992F 1
555
55 from 1992

M1888E#51999F

999 from 1888

H1922F 51
TSEETSE
75 + 75 from 1922

M1992F 5 55F

55 from 1992

Eopil

Type

A%/ %

Commercial /

Residential

A%/ E%

Commercial /

Residential

Residential

[} 4
BREER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FFR)
(s.f)

3,892

3,892

6,683

6,683

g
BRERR
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(FFR)
(s.f)

3,903

3,903

12,500

12,500

TEVRE

Schedule of Major Properties

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Car parking

spaces

Fris &
RS

% owned

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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TEVFER

Schedule of Major Properties

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Property

FRESME19%

b

F— ZRZE(HH)
Villa 1, Villa 2 and Villa 3,
Villa Cecil, Phase II,

192 Victoria Road,

Hong Kong (Portion)

EBELHE216%
BRE-HE-BRE_E
Tower 1 and 2,

Villa Cecil, Phase Ill,
216 Victoria Road,

Hong Kong

BERXE
SRADERRT
BER502508E (51)
Parkview

Lorong Perak
50250 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia (Portion)

SRR
AYIBE R (1)
Cheuk Nang Garden
Longhwa, Longgang,

Shenzhen (Portion)

;282>
@

&

Lot no.

i 2441

L. 2441

TR EMH 2155
LR R
R.B.L. 215 & Ext from

F13595 &
(RIfEPT77308Y) » E576

Section 57, Lot 1359
(formerly Lot PT77),
Section 57

FH15EA819-0128

Lot No A819-0128

COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
As at 30 June 2020

BREH

Government

lease term
(F)

(years)

1923 E 5t
TSEETSE

75 + 75 from 1923

1922 5t

75FETSE

75 + 75 from 1922

KAFE

Freehold

M2004E#70F

70 from 2004

£

Type

Residential

]

€

Residential

Residential

A%/ EE

Commercial /

Residential

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ (%8) HR25 | Annual Report 2020 44t

B#E
BREER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FER)
(s.f)

35,382

35,382

73,292

73,292

27,236

27,236

429,343

429,343

LS
BREER
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(FAR)
(s.f)

47,689

47,689

97,000

97,000

Car parking

spaces

20

20

21

21

1,054

1,054

Firf &
RS

% owned

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100



TEVRE

Schedule of Major Properties

BE-ZFT-FTH,BA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
As at 30 June 2020

imt k53
Bk 1% ke EHIR BN
LS 1& BRE8  HARE  HEEER  A8EER AREER B AR %AAH BIfR
Total Total
approved  marketable Car Stage of
Government gross goss  parking completion Development
Property Lot no. lease term Typet Sitearea  floorarea floor area spaces % owned date asat 30/6/2020
(F) (FiR) (F5R) (¥R
(years ] (3] ()
ERARLTE SEMERENE B1991E % 39,999 83,99 113,366 70 100 20 g-HREtNfE
FREETN 5% EliFE-HRE
B2a0% RS
One Kowloon Peak Tsuen Wan Town 56 from 1991 Residential 39,999 83,99 113,368 70 100 2021 Atotal of 11 units of
§ Po Fung Terrace, Lot 352 Phase 1 were sold
Ting Kau, Tsuen Wan The Occupation Permit
of Phase 2 has been issued
Ceci Centrl Residence 113852113863 MR BR/EE Bew  EH - 87 00 BfRE  HEHCERFLE
FREE BAESTR 1,708,648
FESMERA
05088
Cecil Central Section 57, Freehold  Commerciall 86,038 Phase 2 - 867 1000 Notyet New plans are
Residence Lorong Lot 11385 and 11386 Residenial 1,708,648 determined approved by the
Perak 50250, government authorities
Kuala Lumpur Malaysia
RfiRRGRE NIEAE OVERHI0E BR/ER 97597 1,676,000 - 1B T BERE  FLANNRRDER
Estrada de Lot No 21202 10from 2011 Commercial/ 97,597 1,676,000 - 1,031 7169 Notyet  Application for new land
Seac Pai Van Residenial determined ~ lease has been submilted
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TEVRE

Schedule of Major Properties

BEZT-FTHFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

BRPYE (&)
RZZFEZFTFA=+AH
hg 8 hEES
Government
Property Lot no. lease term
(%)
(years)
Eifat) RMTBAGME  B007ERH50E
e E10485 8
New Villa Cecil Lot No. 1848 50 from 2007

Shui Hang, Cheung Chau
Hong Kong

S R
iR

Cheuk Nang * Riverside Yu
Hang Distrct Hangzhou

D.D. Cheung Chau

REERNE % #009F
LURUERR  2ABARRNE
ER H00F

1ABERE

Chong Xian Zhen North ~ Residential
of Chong Hang Jie West 70 years from
of Yan Shan Gang 25/12/2009
Commercial

40 years from

25/12/2009

LGS

Type*

Residential

Residential/
Commercial

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)
As at 30 June 2020

HELER

Site area
(#5%)

(]
11,751

111,751

350,847

350,647

Bk
BREER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(7R
]

41,088

41,088

1,096,561

1,09%,561
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g
BREER
Total
marketable
gross

floor area
(7R
fsf

58,291

58,291

Car
parking
spaces

778

778

fri
ERR:

% owned

100

100

100

100

R-%-8F

Rit 1R ABZ1H

RRAS BIfR
Stage of

completion Development

date asat 30/6/2020

mr o F-HAEERL
FEIETR

Exk HhEERERY
2021 The Occupation Permit of
Phase | was issted.

The superstructure of Phase I

has been completed and a Fire
Certificate has been issued

201 TRETN:
BREEDARY

TEETE

201 The construction

is completed. Inspection by
the Government authorities
is in progress
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